
1 of 29 Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
July 17, 2024 

PIKES PEAK LIBRARY DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
JULY 17, 2024 5 pm 
PENROSE LIBRARY 

VIRTUAL MEETING (ZOOM) 

Cultivate spaces for belonging, 
personal growth, and strong communities 

Call in: 1-253-215-8782 or 1-312-626-6799 or 1-669-900-6833 or 1-346-248-7799
Meeting ID: 837 1958 5376
Passcode: 940463

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

I. CALL TO ORDER

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

III. PUBLIC COMMENT (3 Minute Time Limit per Person)

IV. REPORTS
A. Friends of the Pikes Peak Library District Report (Rita Jordan) Five minutes 
B. Pikes Peak Library District Foundation Report (Courtney Deuser) Five minutes (p. 2) 
C. Financial Report: (Randy Green) Five minutes (p. 3) 
D. Public Services Report (Tammy Sayles) Five minutes (p. 11) 
E. Support Services Reports: Communications Report, Facilities Report, Human Resources Report,

Information Technology Report, Safety, Community Resources & Security Report (p. 19) 
F. Chief Librarian’s Report (Tammy Sayles) Five minutes 
G. Board Reports

1. Governance Committee Five minutes 
2. Internal Affairs Committee Five minutes 
3. Public Affairs Committee Five minutes 
4. Liaison comments
5. Trustee comments

V. BUSINESS ITEMS
A. Consent Items

Consent items shall be acted upon as a whole unless a specific item is called for discussion.
Any item called for discussion shall be acted upon separately as “New Business”.

1. Minutes of the June 19, 2024 Board of Trustees meeting (p. 26) 
B. New Business

1. Decision 24-7-1: 2023 Audited portion of the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report     (p. 29)

VI. ADJOURNMENT

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83719585376?pwd=nE510rMvBSxfxc5YMz3uhkkon76pq7.1


2 of 29 Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
July 17, 2024 

 

 
 

The full packet of materials for this meeting of the Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees is available at 
https://ppld.org/board-trustees 

https://ppld.org/board-trustees


3 of 29 Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
July 17, 2024 

REPORT 

Discussed two potential projects for the Friends of PPLD to sponsor during the ongoing 
renovations at Penrose Library with Michael Branter 

Set up a meeting to discuss aforementioned projects with leadership from the Friends of 
PPLD board 

Continued communications with Peggy Shivers to ensure the Foundation is providing 
the appropriate support of her projects 

Met with Finance to discuss protocols for processing donations and handling the funds 
of the Shivers Fund and Latina Voices 

Completed discussions and signed the contract and sent the invoiced Children’s 
Hospital of Colorado for their sponsorship of the Summer Adventure reading program 

Followed up with the grant writer and appropriate departments within the district 
regarding various reports that are due to funders and potential opportunities that 
applications are opening for in the next few months 

Finalized the strategy and set a goal amount for the the year end mail campaign with a 
representative from Carl Bloom 

Met with Kim Melcor from Communications to discuss the strategy moving forward with 
program sponsorships and how the Foundation can support 

Met with a representative from Donor Search to see if their product would be a valuable 
resource for the Foundation 

Attended the Friends of PPLD Branch meeting on June 26, 2024 

Attended the Friends of PPLD Board meeting on July 10, 2024 



4 of 29 Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
July 17, 2024 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

June 30, 2024 
Monthly Financial Report 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Board of Trustees Meeting 
July 17, 2024 



Monthly Financial Report, Page 1 4 of 24 Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
July 17, 2024 

 

 
Monthly Financial Report - PPLD (as a whole) 
As of June 30, 2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

REVENUES 
Property Taxes (1) 
Specific ownership taxes 

 
 

Intergovernmental - E-Rate 
Intergovernmental - State Grant 
Intergovernmental - AEFLA 
Intergovernmental - IECLE 
Intergovernmental - Other 
Fines and fees 
Interest income 
Donations/fundraising 
Miscellaneous- Copy sales 
Miscellaneous- Parking lot collections 
Miscellaneous- Other 

 
 
 
 

Total Taxes 

Total Operating Revenue 
 

Employee contributions 
 
 

 
EXPENDITURES 

Personnel Expense 
Operating Expense 
Capital Outlay 

 
Total Other Revenue 

Total Revenue 
 
 
 
 

 
Total Expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of Revenue over Expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (uses) 
Insurance Proceeds 
Transfer In/Out 

 
 

Net Impact to Fund Balance 
Unrestricted Beginning Fund Balance (2) 

Ending Fund Balance (Projected) 

 
(1) Includes Interest on Taxes and Payment in Lieu of Taxes 
(2) 2023 Projected Unassigned Fund Balance 

 
Revised  
Annual  
Budget 

 
35,557,471 
3,500,000 

Year to Date Activity as of June 30, 2024 
 
 

Budget 
 

34,436,996 
1,750,000 

 
 

Actual  
 

36,758,380 
1,651,480 

 
 

Variance 
 

2,321,384 
(98,520) 

39,057,471 36,186,996 38,409,860 2,222,864 

544,000 0 0 0 
169,766 0 0 0 
84,002 0 0 0 
95,005 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 
90,000 45,000 38,502 (6,498) 

500,000 250,000 704,106 454,106 
479,438 154,446 35,188 (119,258) 
25,000 12,500 16,098 3,598 
11,000 5,500 5,272 (228) 
32,962 16,481 15,367 (1,114) 

2,031,173 483,927 814,533 330,606 

394,323 197,161 202,512 5,351 

394,323 197,161 202,512 5,351 

41,482,967 36,868,084 39,426,905 2,558,822 

25,213,996 12,898,482 10,523,057 2,375,425 
14,789,738 7,480,654 6,743,418 737,236 

5,569,716 2,057,314 676,833 1,380,481 

45,573,450 22,436,450 17,943,308 4,493,142 
(4,090,483) 14,431,634 21,483,597 7,051,963 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 

(4,090,483) 14,431,634 21,483,597 7,051,963 
15,937,098 15,937,098 15,937,098 0 
11,846,615 30,368,732 37,420,695 7,051,963 

 



Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees Monthly Financial Report, Page 2 
July 17, 2024 

5 of 24  

 

Monthly Financial Report - GENERAL FUND 
As of June 30, 2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REVENUES 
Property Taxes 
Specific ownership taxes 

 
 

Intergovernmental 
Donations/fundraising 
Fines and fees 
Other Operating 

 
 
 
 
Total Taxes 

Total Operating Revenue 
Total Revenue 

 
EXPENDITURES 

Public Services Administrative 
Programming Administration 
Branch Administration 

Total Public Services Expenditures 

Chief Librarian and CEO Office 
Support Services 
Security 
Finance Office 
Communications Office 
Development Office 
Interdepartmental 

Total Administration Expenditures 

Designated Funds 

Total Expenditures 

Net Impact to Fund Balance 
Unrestricted Beginning Fund Balance * 

Ending Fund Balance (Projected) 

 

 
Revised  
Annual  
Budget 

 
30,189,870 
3,500,000 

 
Year to Date Activity as of June 30, 2024 

 
 

Budget 
 

29,238,536 
1,750,000 

 
 

Actual  
 

31,246,814 
1,651,480 

 
 

Variance 
 

2,008,277 
(98,520) 

33,689,870 30,988,536 32,898,294 1,909,757 

892,773 0 0 0 
479,438 154,446 35,188 (119,258) 
90,000 37,500 38,502 1,002 

568,962 237,068 740,521 503,453 

2,031,173 429,014 814,211 385,198 
35,721,043 31,417,550 33,712,505 2,294,955 

 
8,952,674 

 
4,476,337 

 
4,041,671 

 
434,666 

1,781,405 890,702 647,554 243,148 
11,152,778 5,576,389 4,180,227 1,396,162 

21,886,857 10,943,428 8,869,452 2,073,977 

385,166 192,583 167,447 25,136 
7,987,469 3,993,734 3,315,610 678,124 
1,767,807 883,903 729,919 153,984 
1,499,764 1,034,133 1,040,629 (6,496) 
1,449,889 724,944 569,984 154,961 

366,193 183,097 117,953 65,144 
913,060 456,530 460,712 (4,182) 

14,369,347 7,468,925 6,402,254 1,066,671 

578,565 289,282 338,574 (49,291) 

36,834,769 18,701,636 15,610,279 3,091,356 
 

(1,113,726) 
 

12,715,914 
 

18,102,226 
 

5,386,311 
15,937,098 15,937,098 15,937,098 0 
14,823,372 28,653,012 34,039,324 5,386,311 

 



Monthly Financial Report, Page 3-4 6 of 29 Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
July 17, 2024 

 

 

Monthly Financial Report - GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURE DETAIL 
As of June 30, 2024 

 

 
 
 
 
General Fund 

Revised  
Annual  
Budget 

Public Services 21,886,857 
Public Services Administrative 8,952,674 

Public Services Administration 206,478 
Collection Management 2,555,261 
Collection Management - Library Materials 4,587,626 
Regional History and Genealogy 732,530 
Adult Education 870,779 

Programming Administration 1,781,405 
Branch Administration 11,152,778 

Branch Administration 1,376,202 
Penrose Library 1,394,894 
East Library 1,739,926 
Library 21c 1,567,829 
Cheyenne Mountain Library 535,150 
Fountain Library 414,916 
High Prairie Library 425,736 
Manitou Springs Library 376,370 
Monument Library 602,505 
Old Colorado City Library 453,902 
Palmer Lake Library - 
Rockrimmon Library 597,615 
Ruth Holley Library 461,131 
Sand Creek Library 560,866 
Ute Pass Library - 
Calhan Library 74,766 
Mobile Library Services 492,438 
The Hall @ PPLD 78,531 

Administration 14,369,347 
Chief Librarian and CEO Office 385,166 

 
Year to Date Activity as of June 30, 2024 

 
 

Budget 

 
 

Actual  

 
 

Variance 

10,943,428 8,869,452 2,073,977 
4,476,337 4,041,671 434,666 

103,239 73,660 29,579 
1,277,630 1,199,483 78,147 
2,293,813 2,133,955 159,858 

366,265 353,620 12,645 
435,389 280,952 154,437 

890,702 647,554 243,148 
5,576,389 4,180,227 1,396,162 

688,101 244,228 443,873 
697,447 534,725 162,722 
869,963 645,493 224,470 
783,915 635,560 148,355 
267,575 238,242 29,333 
207,458 172,822 34,636 
212,868 171,009 41,859 
188,185 160,219 27,966 
301,253 265,544 35,709 
226,951 179,677 47,274 

- - - 
298,808 228,745 70,062 
230,565 208,736 21,829 
280,433 245,217 35,216 

- 15 (15) 
37,383 34,500 2,883 

246,219 205,074 41,145 
39,266 10,421 28,845 

7,468,925 6,402,254 1,066,671 
192,583 167,447 25,136 

 



Monthly Financial Report, Page 3-4 7 of 29 Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
July 17, 2024 

 

 

Monthly Financial Report - GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURE DETAIL 
As of June 30, 2024 

 
 
 
 

 
General Fund 

Support Services 
Support Services Administration 
Human Relations Office 
Facilities 

Facilities - District-wide 
Facilities - Penrose Library 
Facilities - East Library 
Facilities - Library 21c 
Facilities - Utilities / Rents 

Information Technology 
Information Technology 
Creative Services 

Security 
Finance Office 
Communications Office 
Development Office 
Interdepartmental 

Interdepartmental - Other 
ATTRITION SAVINGS 

UNDESIGNATED 

Designated Funds 
DESIGNATED 

 
TOTAL GENERAL FUND 

  
Year to Date Activity as of June 30, 2024 

Revised     
Annual     
Budget Budget Actual  Variance 

7,987,469 3,993,734 3,315,610 678,124 
180,525 90,262 68,497 21,765 
782,552 391,276 291,312 99,964 

4,144,898 2,072,449 1,830,495 241,954 

1,133,100 566,550 524,975 41,575 
392,526 196,263 152,383 43,880 
245,305 122,653 106,192 16,460 
574,533 287,266 259,311 27,955 

1,799,434 899,717 787,634 112,083 

2,879,494 1,439,747 1,125,307 314,440 

2,439,167 1,219,583 950,368 269,216 
440,327 220,164 174,939 45,225 

1,767,807 883,903 729,919 153,984 
1,499,764 1,034,133 1,040,629 (6,496) 
1,449,889 724,944 569,984 154,961 

366,193 183,097 117,953 65,144 
913,060 456,530 460,712 (4,182) 

1,513,060 756,530 331,657 424,873 
(600,000) (300,000) 129,055 (429,055) 

36,256,204 18,412,353 15,271,706 3,140,648 

578,565 289,282 338,574 (49,291) 

578,565 289,282 338,574 (49,291) 

36,834,769 18,701,636 15,610,279 3,091,356 
 



Monthly Financial Report, Page 5 8 of 24 Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
July 17, 2024 
 

 

Monthly Financial Report - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND (CIP) 

As of June 30, 2024 

 
 
 
 

 
REVENUES 

Property Taxes 

 
Total Revenue 

 
EXPENDITURES 

Capital Fund- Facilities 
Capital Fund-Communication 
Capital Fund- Security 
Capital Fund- IT 
Capital Fund- Video Studio 
Capital Fund- Creative Services 
Capital Fund- Special Revenue Funds 

Total Expenditures 
 

Net Impact to Fund Balance 
Beginning Fund Balance* 

Ending Fund Balance (Projected) 

 
 
 

Revised  
Annual  
Budget 

 
2,723,332 

 
 

Year to Date Activity as of June 30, 2024 
 
 

Budget 
 

2,637,515 

 
 

Actual  
 

2,939,502 

 
 

Variance 
 

301,987 

2,723,332 2,637,515 2,939,502 301,987 

 
2,120,961 

 
835,990 

 
215,825 

 
620,165 

118,429 36,232 0 36,232 
1,450,083 528,354 18,730 509,623 
1,773,033 645,883 2,951 642,932 

5,000 1,250 0 1,250 
38,419 9,605 10,593 (989) 
63,791 0 0 0 

5,569,716 2,057,314 248,100 1,809,214 
 

(2,846,384) 
 

580,201 
 

2,691,402 
 

2,111,201 
2,354,244 2,354,244 2,354,244 0 
(492,140) 2,934,445 5,045,646 2,111,201 

 



Monthly Financial Report, Page 6 9 of 24 Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
July 17, 2024 
 

 

Monthly Financial Report - SELF-INSURANCE FUND (SIF) 

As of June 30, 2024 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REVENUES 
Property Taxes 
Employee contributions 
Other Revenue 

 
 
 
 
 
Total Revenue 

 

EXPENDITURES 
Personnel Expense 
Operating Expense 

 
 
 
 
Total Expenditures 

 
Net Impact to Fund Balance 

Beginning Net Assets* 
Ending Fund Balance (Projected) 

 

 
Revised  
Annual  
Budget 

 
2,644,269 

394,323 
0 

 
Year to Date Activity as of June 30, 2024 

 

 
Budget 

 
2,560,944 

197,161 
0 

 

 
Actual  

 
2,572,064 

202,512 
322 

 

 
Variance 

 
11,120 
5,351 

322 
3,038,592 2,758,105 2,774,899 16,793 

 
3,271,797 

 
1,677,500 

 
1,145,070 

 
532,430 

- 0 596,031 (596,031) 
3,271,797 1,677,500 1,741,101 (63,600) 

 
(233,205) 

 
1,080,605 

 
1,033,798 

 
(46,807) 

873,733 873,733 873,733 0 
640,528 1,954,338 1,907,531 (46,807) 

 



Monthly Financial Report, Page 7 
10 of 24 Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 

July 17, 2024 

 

 
 

2024 Budget 
Budget Reconciliation 

 

 
  

General 
Fund 

Capital 
Fund 

Self- 
Insurance 

Fund 
TOTAL 

BUDGET 
REVENUE      

January 9, 2024 2024 OAB Budget Ratification $35,721,043 $2,723,332 $3,038,592 $41,482,967 
 TOTAL REVENUE $35,721,043 $2,723,332 $3,038,592 $41,482,967 

 
 

EXPENDITURES      
January 9, 2024 2024 OAB Budget Ratification $36,286,668 $2,723,332 $3,271,797 $42,281,797 
March 20, 2024 2024 OAB Budget Adjustment #1  $2,782,593  $2,782,593 
March 20, 2024 2024 OAB Budget Adjustment #2-SRF (DPF)  $63,791  $63,791 

 TOTAL EXPENDITURES $36,286,668 $5,569,716 $3,271,797 $45,128,181 

 
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 

 
 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES $0 $0 $0 $0 
 
 

TRANSFERS IN / OUT     
    $0 

TOTAL TRANSFERS IN / OUT $0 $0 $0 $0 
 
 

 
Net Change in Fund Balance ($565,625) ($2,846,384) ($233,205) ($3,645,214) 

Projected Beginning Fund Balance $18,410,854 $2,354,244 $873,733 $21,638,832 
Projected Ending Fund Balance $17,845,229 ($492,140) $640,528 $17,993,618 



11 of 29 Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
July 17, 2024 

 

Public Services Report 
June 2024 

 
 
Compliments 

 
Colorado Springs author Mark Lee Gardner thanked the PPLD Interlibrary Loan staff during his 
acceptance speech for the 2024 Frank Waters Award presented by the Friends of the Pikes 
Peak Library District. 

 
Local author, Jimmy Sena, will have his book Tesla’s Walk published by Atmosphere Press on 
July 10th, he credits PPLD’s Regional History & Genealogy department as one of the local 
institutions from which this work is based. 

“I need to express my deepest thanks to the PPLD for allowing all the primary source 
materials to be freely available from the Library Archives; I utilized dozens of regional 
newspaper articles from 1899, the old City Directories of 1898 and 1900, and many 
local images throughout my years of research. I can truly say the writing of this book 
was a collaboration of sorts because of these archives. Thank you PPLD!” 

 
 
Adult Education 

 
Access 
Securing the Adult Education and Family Literacy Act (AEFLA) grant (see below) will allow 
PPLD to continue to serve those in need of education credentials and acquire English language 
skills. 

 
Accountability 
Adult Education has received AEFLA funding of $200,841 each year for the following four years. 
This grant is funded through the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) and 
distributed through the Colorado Department of Education (CDE). Because it is a federal grant, 
staff must ensure that all policies are followed in a timely manner. Adult Education and Finance 
work closely to ensure all due dates are met. 

Community Connections 
Deya Rohe has continued to help patrons explore and find jobs. She works closely with the 
Pikes Peak Workforce Center (PPWFC) to utilize their resources. She also participated in the 
PPWFC Sector Partnership meetings. 

Staff 
Bridget Bruch was hired as the new Strategic Services Nonprofit Librarian. Bridget’s previous 
work experience includes researching and writing grants for non-profits, participating as a board 
member, and years of librarian experience. 

 
Branches 

 
Access 
Ruth Holley Library and Sand Creek Library extended their operating days to Monday through 
Saturday beginning June 1. 



12 of 29 Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
July 17, 2024 

 

Library 21C Family and Children’s staff brought back the previously popular (2017 – 2019) 
Music & Movement Family Dance Parties this summer. They had 139 attendees on June 11 and 
144 on June 25. 

 
Calhan Library welcomed 900 patrons in June, a dramatic increase from June 2023 of 589 
patrons. 

Accountability 
Karin Swengel and Taryn Malila met with Director of Branches, Janina Goodwin and Assistant 
Director of Branches, Gigi Holman, to discuss scheduling models in preparation for the move 
into the Carnegie location. 

Christian Byrd began to create both an inventory spreadsheet as well as a maintenance 
spreadsheet for the Sand Creek Makerspace to ensure that the space is adequately stocked, 
and machines are well maintained. 

 
East Library had 15 teen volunteers begin their shifts in June. The teen volunteers at East 
Library are responsible for assisting staff with pull lists, helping with summer programming, and 
various other tasks around the library. A total of 201 teen volunteer hours were donated. 

 
Library 21c also noted the importance of their 44 volunteers, who gave 344.86 hours to the 
library, averaging 7.84 hours per volunteer in June. 

 
Communications 
To provide updates to Mobile Library Services (MLS) patrons concerning the Summer 
Schedule, MLS staff worked with Communications to create talking points, send thousands of 
emails, and navigate many phone calls. MLS worked with the Communications department to 
ensure the website was updated regularly. The IT department also provided MLS staff with a 
shared inbox where patrons could send an email to the team, and one available staff member 
would respond, creating a more efficient way of managing this communication. 

Tani Bifano and Aleksander Miller attended the El Paso County Kite and Wind Festival at 
Falcon Regional Park. About 70 visitors interacted with the staff and learned about PPLD 
resources and Summer Adventure. 

 
Community Connections 
Celia Egghart received a reference question at Ute Pass Library regarding family history around 
a property that was built in Cascade in the 1930s. The patron came into the library and 
immediately recognized a picture of their mother in the photographs of Ute Pass Library from 
when it used to be a school. Celia connected these patrons to the Regional History & 
Genealogy department for additional information. 

 
Library 21c staff are scheduling Book-A-Librarian appointments for patrons who need extra help 
with their projects using Makerspace equipment. Yelena Mitchell (LI) assisted two patrons who 
could not afford to pay for tailoring services and needed guidance and training in using their 
personal sewing machine to tailor clothes. Jason Kowell (LI) assisted a patron in creating a 
memorial plaque using Inkscape and the laser cutter. 



13 of 29 Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
July 17, 2024 

 

Rockrimmon had a special guest reader, Miss Teen Colorado, Liv Newman at Storytime this 
month. Liv is a Colorado Springs resident and her goal, through the Miss Colorado 
Organization, is to promote literacy within the community. 

Physical and Virtual Spaces 
Taryn Malila and Gigi Holman, Assistant Director of Branches, attended a meeting with Beth 
O’Neill, interior Designer working with PPLD, to choose furniture and fabrics for the new 
Manitou Springs Library renovations. 

 
Sarah Hoelting hosted family and children's programs outside the usual lineup, such as a 
special Storytime collaboration with the Old Colorado City Historical Society and parachute play. 
The Colorado-themed Storytime had 27 attendees! Several kids ranging from 5-to-7-years old 
thanked Hoelting and the History Center’s volunteer for the program. 

 
Staff 
Sand Creek Shelver, Ann Lewis, is retiring after 25 years of service. She has worked all 25 
years at SA shelving books and helping patrons! 

 
Tess Warren was promoted to Security Manager this month. This promotion created another 
adjustment in Branch Managers. Tim Morris now oversees Fountain Library and Cheyenne 
Mountain Library, Sara Sharples oversees Sand Creek Library and Ruth Holley Library, and 
Gigi Holman is now overseeing Rockrimmon Library. 

 
Meagan Huber was promoted to Young Adult Services Librarian. She started her new position 
on June 17. Rebecca Operhall transferred to the Children’s Librarian at East Library and started 
her new position on June 12. 

 
Collection Management 

 
Access 
Selection librarians purchased large print books, audiobooks, and eAudio titles to fulfill two 
grants from the Gerald Erikson Fund of the Pikes Peak Community Foundation, supporting 
resources for users with visual impairments. 

Accountability 
Three Collection Management and Interlibrary Loan staff attended the 11th annual Kramer 
Copyright Conference organized by UCCS. Copyright regulations impact library and interlibrary 
loan operations and the conference offers a helpful boot camp to better understand the 
application of those regulations. 

The Colorado State Grant for Libraries expenditures were $169,765.95 out of the $169,766 
award. 

Community Connections 
The Materials Team processed and distributed over 300 copies of the All Pikes Peak Reads title 
selection, Go as a River, by Shelley Read. 

Physical and Virtual Spaces 

https://ppld.org/appr


14 of 29 Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
July 17, 2024 

 

In May, an option was tested to use the patron self-checkout machines offline when the internet 
connection goes down. In June, that feature came in very handy during an outage and allowed 
patrons to check out over 5,000 items while temporarily offline. 

 
The Circulation Services Coordinator was focused on all things “shelving” in June, beginning an 
assessment of shelving height options at the East Library, helping install shelving in Collection 
Management, and working with Facilities to order shelving. 

Staff 
Interviews were conducted for the Cataloging and Materials Manager position, but the position 
was not filled and will be reposted. 

 
Programming 

 
Access 
Jennifer Eltringham coordinates and leads the monthly Repair Cafe events at Library 21c. The 
Repair Café volunteers repair broken or old items patrons bring in, such as vacuum cleaners, 
blenders, and bicycles! In addition, Jennifer also assisted with the 3D Printing Level 1, Sewing 
Level 1, and Advanced Sewing Skills classes at Sand Creek and East Libraries. She also 
facilitated four classes presented by Monumental Impact – a 2-part series on 3D design with 
Fusion at Library 21c and two soldering classes at East and Sand Creek. These classes are 
taught by high school students completing internships in technology and entrepreneurship. They 
fill a gap that PPLD employees do not have the expertise or capacity to teach and support these 
students in learning public speaking, teaching, and leadership skills. 

 
Joy Fleishhacker planned and hosted the annual PPLD Homeschool Curriculum Swap on June 
14, 2024, at East Library. Thirty families hauled in boxes packed with curriculum, books, 
educational materials, games, and more! The event was attended by 217 people, most of whom 
walked out with boxes full of materials. 

 
The 18th annual Mountain of Authors program took place at Library 21c on Saturday, June 22, 
with 200 in attendance throughout the day. This year the keynote speaker was noted food 
scholar and historian, Adrian Miller. Panelist speakers were Susan Joy Paul and Tanja Britton, 
both local authors and guidebook writers, and over 30 local authors showcased their books, 
Poor Richard’s Book Store sold Adrian Miller’s newest title. In addition to the full day event, 
Bryan Matthews updated the corresponding LibGuide to provide author biographies and the 
Virtual Showcase Author videos, which were edited and captioned by Heidi Buljung. The virtual 
option provides authors unable to attend the live event an opportunity to showcase their work. 

 
Heidi Buljung arranged four Free-For-All performances featuring UCCS Theatreworks 
performing a Shakespeare play in local parks. This program helps bring theater to those who 
may not have the means to attend a traditional theater performance. 

Community Connections 
Summer Adventure is going strong, and we’ve had great success adding adults this year! As of 
June 30, we have surpassed our total registration numbers from 2023 by 12% (16,015 people 
were registered on June 30, 2024, compared to 14,363 total registrations in 2023). Of those 
registered, 1185 were signed up through school outreaches coordinated by Rachel Martin. 



15 of 29 Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
July 17, 2024 

 

On June 29, Joy Fleishhacker and Gayle Meredith represented PPLD at the Summer of 
Discovery at the Space Foundation Discovery Center, celebrating the re-opening of the 
Discovery Center by showcasing other local organizations. 139 people stopped by the PPLD 
table to make star projectors and three library cards were issued. 

June continues to be a busy month for school visits. Five staff members visited 16 summer 
enrichment programs, offering two programs per visit, signing students up for Summer 
Adventure, and promoting literacy to 1125 students. 

Staff 
As a new member of the Programming team, Erica Purgason (all-ages Senior Librarian), and 
Susie Gray (Senior Associate focusing on makerspaces and studios) have been onboarding this 
past month through trainings, meeting with their team, and learning the resources and services 
Programming provides for the library district. 

 
The Programming Department surveyed branch staff about their usage of the program menu. 
Based on feedback, the team is creating a new all-ages menu and recurring menu. 

Regional History & Genealogy 
 
Access 
The Regional History Symposium events celebrated its 20th year. The Film Festival had 61 
attendees, in-person presentations/lectures had 82 attendees, and the virtual presentation 
component had 42 attendees. Local researchers, including faculty from UCCS and PPSC, local 
authors, high school students, local history researchers, and RH&G staff all contributed to the 
event. The film festival included six films, two from local high school student winners, and the 
public release of a portion of the RH&G new high-definition (5K) digitized Jim Bates footage of a 
battle in Cologne France. The in-person symposium featured six presentations, and three 
presentations in virtual format. The Symposium was planned, coordinated, and presented by 
John Jarrell, Program Coordinator. Thank you to staff who worked hard to make these events a 
success, and to the funding supporters, Friends of the Pikes Peak Library District and the 
James and Helen McAffrey Fund for Regional History. 

 
The popular Pikes Peak Newsfinder service had been decommissioned while RH&G staff work 
to upload data to the new digital collections platform, Recollect. RH&G staff will continue to take 
research requests while the data transition is in effect for the next several months. 

 
Jessica Spiker, Digital Archives Specialist, has digitized 6731 of the Stewart aerials, and made 
them available online. All of the negatives have been digitized from the collection. In June, 
Jessica started work on digitizing the remaining 500 prints that do not have matching negatives. 

 
Accountability 
Cara Ramsey, Archivist, worked with ArchivEra, our collection management system, to 
implement a WCAG compliant patron portal to comply with Colorado law by July 1, 2024 
(Colorado HB21-1110). 

 
Community Connections 

https://discoverspace.org/summer-of-discovery/
https://discoverspace.org/summer-of-discovery/


16 of 29 Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
July 17, 2024 

 

Regional History & Genealogy staff offered three classes to patrons in June: Genealogy Basics, 
Researching Female Ancestors, and Ancestry Basics. 20 patrons attended these classes, with 
Ancestry Basics being most popular. This class investigates how to use the Ancestry.com 
Library Edition database for research. 

 
Physical and Virtual Spaces 
Erinn Barnes, Archivist, continues to refine processes to populate our new Digital Collections 
platform, Recollect. Staff have begun to be trained and digital tools put into place to make this 
process successful. 



MG1u7ioot/fP2P4LD 2024 Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
July 17, 2024 

 

PPLD KPIs (Key Performance Indicators) 
 
 

Month: May 
 
 

 

 2024 2023 % Change YTD 2024 YTD 2023 % Change 

Door Count 176,579 154,161 14.54% 821,466 744,794 10.29% 
Circulation (physical materials) 190,729 192,679 -1.01% 932,516 966,609 -3.53% 
Reference Questions 9,233 7,916 16.64% 44,190 40,053 10.33% 
Meeting Room/Study Room 2,857 2,343 21.94% 13,338 10,964 21.65% 
Computer Usage 19,588 19,024 2.96% 89,968 85,075 5.75% 
Number of Programs 344 550 -37.45% 1,910 2,850 -32.98% 

Programs Attendance 11,170 13,609 -17.92% 60,485 62,937 -3.90% 
eResources (OverDrive/Libby, Hoopla, Kanopy) 292,077 250,921 16.40% 1,480,105 1,241,357 19.23% 
Culture Pass 261 274 -4.74% 1,351 1,099 22.93% 



MG1u8ioot/fP2P4LD 2024 Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
July 17, 2024 

 

PPLD KPIs (Key Performance Indicators) 
 
 

Month: June 
 
 

 

 2024 2023 % Change YTD 2024 YTD 2023 % Change 

Door Count 167,435 175,636 -4.67% 988,901 920,430 7.44% 
Circulation (physical materials) 191,496 217,536 -11.97% 1,124,012 1,184,145 -5.08% 
Reference Questions 8,593 9,538 -9.91% 52,783 49,591 6.44% 
Meeting Room/Study Room 2,674 2,167 23.40% 16,012 13,131 21.94% 
Computer Usage 17,944 19,914 -9.89% 107,912 104,989 2.78% 
Number of Programs 391 676 -42.16% 2,309 3,526 -34.52% 

Programs Attendance 12,704 16,158 -21.38% 73,501 79,095 -7.07% 
eResources (OverDrive/Libby, Hoopla, Kanopy) 285,278 250,251 14.00% 1,765,383 1,491,608 18.35% 
Culture Pass 419 400 4.75% 1,770 1,499 18.08% 



19 of 29 Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
July 17, 2024 

 

 
July Communications Board Report 

June stats 
 
Access  
 
 Website Statistics for June 

• Total pageviews: 329,542 
• New Users: 111,483 
• Most visited page: ppld.org/summer 

 
Website Redesign 

• The website administrators made considerable progress in the development of the website 
redesign. The base website is now complete and available on a testing server. The website 
administrators are currently reformatting content page-by-page to fit the new theme, while 
also redesigning our most popular pages. Once finished, we will move into the testing phase. 

 
Website Accessibility 

• The website administrators thoroughly tested ppld.org to ensure it meets Web Content 
Accessibility Guidelines (WCAG) 2.1 AA guidelines as required by HB 21-1110. 

• PPLD’s Accessibility Compliance Plan has been completed and posted. Progress updates to 
the plan will be posted quarterly. 

• Work is ongoing in maintaining compliance and working through the Accessibility 
Compliance Plan.  

o PDFs and linked documents are still under evaluation for compliance status and valid 
content. A plan is under development to remediate or archive PDFs and linked 
documents that are not accessible. 

o Third-party digital systems are still under review and vendors are being contacted 
regarding accessibility status with documentation requested. 

o A training plan is under development to build awareness among all staff and provide 
learning paths for staff responsible for creating documents and content. 

o Where needed, disclaimers are being added to ppld.org on pages with larger 
amounts of PDFs and linked documents or are the main access points to our third-
party digital systems. 

 
Multicultural Outreach & Accessibility 

• Setting up outreach attendance with the liaison for the 302nd Family Day event at Peterson 
SFB scheduled for Aug. 3. 

• Met with Chief Operating Officer for Mt. Carmel and reviewed services. Discussed how we 
can work together in providing information to their clients. 

• Met with ADA Coordinator for Independence Center to be trained on accessible gaming 
controls for the gaming room and teen area at Library 21c. 

• Ordered ADA equipment needed for each library to ensure accessibility for all. Accessibility 
equipment will be placed in all libraries in August. 

 
Communications 
 

Media 
• Number of stories – 83  
• YTD stories – 571 

o Summer Adventure appeared in four articles (The Gazette, The Gazette, KRDO) and four TV 
news broadcasts (KRDO), in addition to our video ad appearing during 21 news broadcasts on 
KOAA.  

o The Gazette and KKTV both shared the Summer Reading article from District Discovery 
magazine.  

https://app2.cision.com/#/articles/8500002380388508?searchId=2539654&startDate=1717200000000&endDate=1719791999999
https://app2.cision.com/#/articles/8500002383670619?searchId=2539654&startDate=1717200000000&endDate=1719791999999
https://app2.cision.com/#/articles/8600004342738920?searchId=2539654&startDate=1717200000000&endDate=1719791999999
https://app2.cision.com/#/articles/150001892762854?searchId=2539654&startDate=1717200000000&endDate=1719791999999
https://app2.cision.com/#/articles/8500002387190866?searchId=2539654&startDate=1717200000000&endDate=1719791999999
https://www.kktv.com/sponsored/pikes-peak-library-district/reading-helps-four-time-paralympic-gold-medalist-unwind/


20 of 29 Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
July 17, 2024 

 

o PPLD appeared in eight articles and 11 TV news broadcasts due to being the hosting location 
for a renter’s rights workshop, a veterans resource conference, and a Colorado Springs law 
enforcement community conversation.   

o The June Library Limelight Column discussed Summer Adventure in the context of literacy 
through a variety of activities.   

o KRDO shared an article and two TV news broadcasts about our free financial planning 
classes.  

o Colorado Springs Kids Magazine posted its A Look at Books article, which comes from us 
and invites folks to check out PPLD, and they included a paragraph about the Library in an 
article sharing back to school resources.   

o Colorado Springs Moms Collective shared an article highlighting our State Parks passes.  
 

Social Media 
Facebook (District-wide account): 

• Number of posts: 52  
• Total page likes:15,071 (62 new likes)  
• Total page followers: 16,724 (74 new followers)  
• Engagement: 7,404 
• Post reach: 96,718 (number of times our content was seen) 
• Page reach: 106,327 (60% increase from prior month) 
• Paid reach: 38,355 (32% increase from prior month)  
• Clicks: 914 
• Video minutes viewed: 611 

 
Instagram: 

• Content: 37 posts/videos/reels, 35 stories  
• Total followers: 4,204 (42 new followers)  
• Engagement: 945  
• Reach: 8,241 (number of times our content was seen)  
• Impressions: 22,781  
• Accounts reached: 6,316  
• Profile visits: 338  
• Link clicks: 54  

 
X (formerly Twitter): 

• Number of posts: 41 
• Total followers: 5,197 
• Engagement: 89  
• Impressions: 2,935 (number of times our content was seen)  

 
LinkedIn: 

• Number of posts: 7  
• Total followers: 1,685   
• Impressions: 1,126 (number of times our content was seen)  
• Engagement: 61  
• Page visits: 125  
 

Newsletter: 
• Number sent (subscribers): 133,543  
• Successful delivery: 121,649 (91% success rate)  
• Opened: 53,973 (44% open rate)  
• Clicks: 2,693 (2.21% click rate) (This is a lower click rate than usual)  

 
NextDoor: 

• Number of posts: 11 
• Impressions: 102,314 (number of times our content was seen) 

https://app2.cision.com/#/articles/8500002405446856?searchId=2539654&startDate=1717200000000&endDate=1719791999999
https://app2.cision.com/#/articles/8500002390288590?searchId=2539654&startDate=1717200000000&endDate=1719791999999
https://app2.cision.com/#/articles/8600004394739938?searchId=2539654&startDate=1717200000000&endDate=1719791999999
https://app2.cision.com/#/articles/8600004394739938?searchId=2539654&startDate=1717200000000&endDate=1719791999999
https://app2.cision.com/#/articles/8500002424792408?searchId=2539654&startDate=1717200000000&endDate=1719791999999
https://app2.cision.com/#/articles/8500002444813759?searchId=2539654&startDate=1717200000000&endDate=1719791999999
https://app2.cision.com/#/articles/150001909057331?searchId=2539654&startDate=1717200000000&endDate=1719791999999
https://coloradospringskids.com/pages/lookAtBooks.html
https://coloradospringskids.com/pages/newSchoolDirectory.html
https://app2.cision.com/#/articles/8500002452024324?searchId=2539654&startDate=1717200000000&endDate=1719791999999


21 of 29 Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
July 17, 2024 

 

• Engagement: 145  
• Impressions: 329,010 (number of times our content was seen) (59% increase from prior month)  

 
YouTube: 

• Total Subscribers: 8,138 (increase of 57 viewers) 
• Total Views for May: 32,927  
• Total Lifetime Views: 6,286,770 

 
Highlighted Collateral 

• The Summer Adventure collateral package included a sticker sheet designed in-house by the 
graphic design team. Participants receive a sticker sheet when they register for Summer 
Adventure. 

 

 
 

 
Community Connections 
 

Outreach 
• Number of June Outreaches: 9 
• Total Attendance:  10,403 
• Impressions: 1,649 
• Highlights: 

o Switchbacks FC game (June 1) with 120 registered for Summer Adventure  
o El Cinco de Mayo Fiesta and Car Show (June 1) with 74 registered for Summer 

Adventure 
o Thrive Network Program (June 4) 



22 of 29 Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
July 17, 2024 

 

o Family Law Day (June 7) 
o Juneteeth Breakfast hosted by the NAACP (June 19) 

  
Culture Pass 

• 419 passes were issued to patrons in June. 
• Culture Passes issued YTD – 1,770  

 
Partnerships 

• PPLD is partnering with Fountain Valley Communities the Care, an El Paso County Public 
Health initiative, to engage youth in the Fountain Valley, ensuring they have safe spaces 
within the community to connect and build positive relationships. Between Sept. 7 - Dec. 7, 
Fountain Library will serve as a passport location where youth can visit and receive a stamp 
on their “passport”. Each passport stamp offers more opportunities to win prizes at the end of 
the program. Fountain Library will as serve a place where youth can pick up and drop off 
their passports.  

• PPLD finalized the license agreement with El Paso County to formalize a partnership 
initiated in April 2021 with the installation of an exhibit at East Library highlighting the 
contributions of local WWII hero Donald Stratton. Establishing a formal agreement outlines 
the details and timeline of displaying the exhibit, as well as the eventual relocation of the 
exhibit when the agreement concludes in April 2025.  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



23 of 29 Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
July 17, 2024 

 

Facilities Department Report 
July 17, 2024 

 
 

Physical and Virtual Spaces 

District Wide: Facilities has worked with the Programming team to continue moving shelving 
and other items to The Hall in support of their new workplace location. 

 
Gary Syling retired from PPLD on June 28 after 18 years of dedicated service. Travis Keeton is 
the new Interim Chief Facilities Management Officer and Scott Dunkley is acting as the new 
Interim Facilities Project Manager; they are working with the facilities supervisors to keep 
projects moving until permanent hires are solidified. 

 
Library 21c: The facilities team contended with a main line break (closed 21c, trained fire 
watch, assisted in shut off and turn on of water, reopened 21c, coordinated on repair for the 
broken line). A topographical survey has been completed to complete engineering estimation in 
preparation for a bid for a permanent repair. 

Facilities Master Plan: In June, our vendor, HB&A, presented their preliminary report to the 
Board and then the following day to PPLD staff. The completed final report is expected to be 
completed later in July 2024. 

 
Monthly Facilities Statistics: 

 
Monthly Routine Maintenance Visits Completed 
June-24 189 

 
Demand Work Orders Completed Hours 
June-24 130 137.58 
Preventive Maintenance Work Orders   

June-24 171 234.26 
Emergency On-Call   

June-24 5 15 
Total Work Orders 306 386.84 

 
• Monthly routine maintenance visits are completed weekly to all locations and allow Facilities personnel to 

complete work orders, inspect locations for safety issues, address minor projects, restock building supplies 
and meet with managers/supervisors regarding any facilities concerns. 
Demand work orders are submitted by library staff. Preventive Maintenance work orders are regularly 
scheduled tasks usually for equipment. 
Emergency On-call are after hours emergencies. 



24 of 29 Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
July 17, 2024 

 

Human Resources Report 
July 2024 

 
 

Accountability 
• Sr. Director of Human Resources, Timothy Allen along with Director of Organizational 

Development, Joanna Nelson Rendon, began work on a Market Study with the 
Employer’s Council, which is expected to be completed by September to ensure the 
District remains a fair and competitive employer and responsible steward of taxpayer 
resources. 

Communications 
• In response to employee questions, Sr. Director of Human Resources, Timothy Allen 

published training and information on the thoroughness of District disciplinary policies 
and procedures 

 
Staff 

• Director of Organizational Development, Joanna Nelson Rendon, attended a SHRM two- 
day virtual learning about organizational development. This expanded Joanna’s 
understanding of her job and provided exciting ideas for PPLD. 

• Director of Benefits, Compensation, HRIS and Compliance established a partnership 
with CollegeInvest, giving employees easier access to education about 529 plans and 
how to save for college, trade schools, and apprenticeships through tax-free earnings. 
Employees who attend a monthly webinar will be able to receive a $50 bonus for a new 
CollegeInvest 529 account. 

Statistics 

Volunteer 
June 2024 Total # of 

Volunteers 
Total # of Hours 

Adult Volunteers 127 858 
Teen Volunteers 74 402 
Friends of the Library ** ** 

**Data not available 

Recruitment 
Recruitment / Selection Activity June 2024 
Jobs Posted 19 
Newly Hired Employees 5 
Promoted Employees 5 
Transferred Employees 1 
Separated Employees 11 

Staffing 
Staffing Stats June 2024 
Total Permanent Employees 382 
Total Active Positions 438 



25 of 29 Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
July 17, 2024 

 

Information Technology 
June 2024 Monthly Report 

 
Access 
iPads were set up for the Library Explorers. 

 
Wireless systems across the district have been upgraded to the new Meraki system, completing 
this 2022 eRate project. 

 
All branches now have public outdoor wireless access broadcasting to all parking lots and 
various other high traffic areas. 

 
Accountability 
Becca Philipsen created a way for studio statistics to be better collected, which will save time 
when compiling those numbers while providing more information on how patrons use the 
studios. 

 
Physical and Virtual Spaces 
A variety of cybersecurity enhancements were put in place. Firewalls and various network 
systems were updated, restriction policies were set, and an anti-ransomware agent was 
deployed to all virtual servers. 

 
Staff 
All the service desks at Library 21c were upgraded. The upgrade of the computers gives staff 
better performance and the ability to help patrons more efficiently. 

 
After nine years of service to PPLD, Ben Dahlby departed the organization. The Creative 
Training Coordinator position was posted and will close in early July. 

New Macbooks for Communications were deployed for better collaboration with web consultants 
and graphic design. New Microsoft Surfaces were also deployed for Adult Education. 



26 of 29 Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
July 17, 2024 

 

 

PIKES PEAK LIBRARY DISTRICT BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
JUNE 19, 2024 5 pm 
MONUMENT LIBRARY 

 
 

VIRTUAL MEETING (ZOOM) 

 
 
 

Cultivate spaces for belonging, 
personal growth, and strong communities 

Call in: 1-253-215-8782 or 1-312-626-6799 or 1-669-900-6833 or 1-346-248-7799 
Meeting ID: 837 1958 5376 
Passcode: 940463 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
President Dora Gonzales, Vice President Scott Taylor, Secretary/Treasurer Erin Bents, Angela Dougan, Debbie English, 
Aaron Salt, Julie Smyth 

Chief Librarian and CEO Teona Shainidze-Krebs, Chief Communications Officer Denise Abbott, Senior, HR Director Timothy 
Allen, Director of Programming Melody Alvarez, Senior Library Associate Krystal Arnold, Studio Services Coordinator Dustin 
Booth, Chief Safety, Community Resources, and Security Officer Michael Brantner, System Administrator David Burling, 
Friends of PPLD Volunteer & Sales Operations Coordinator Beth Crumrine, Interim Senior Director of Development and 
Interim Foundation Executive Director Courtney Dueser, Director of Creative Services Becca Cruz, Monument & Palmer Lake 
Library Manager Jean Doherty, Director of Branches Janina Goodwin, Chief Information Technology Officer Justin Goodwin, 
Chief Financial Officer Randy Green, Strategic Services Librarian Deb Hamilton, Director of Adult Education Sandy Hancock, 
Controller Kim Hoggatt, Data Analyst Sarah Holland, Assistant Director of Branches Gigi Holman, Friends of the Pikes Peak 
Library District Board of Directors President Rita Jordan, Facilities Project Manager Travis Keeton, Director of IT Systems & 
Technical Support Juanita Lanaux, Chief Operating Officer Heather Laslie, Manitou Springs & Ute Pass Library Manager 
Taryn Malila, Monument Library Supervisory Mary Nash, Library 21c Manager Jennifer Luebbert, Old Colorado City Library 
Supervisor Vanessa Nash, Director of Collection Management Jenny Pierce, Senior Librarian Becca Philipsen, Calhan Library 
Supervisor Liz Phillips, Cheyenne Mountain Library Supervisor Felisha Port, East Library Manager Tracy Roesset, Chief 
Public Services Officer and Deputy Chief Librarian Tammy Sayles, Ruth Holley and Sand Creek Libraries Manager Sara 
Sharples, Director of Patron Experience Abby Simpson, Director of IT Infrastructure Dan Stone, Chief Facilities Management 
Officer Gary Syling, Internal Communications and Special Projects Manager Jeremiah Walter, Library Assistant Jacob Ward, 
Security Manager Tess Warren, Ally B., Randi Brantner, HB&A Principal and Planner Aaron Briggs, Rethinking Libraries 
Managing Principal Rob Cullin, HB&A Planner, Clara Dillon, David Griffin, City Councilmember Nancy Henjum, Kim Polomka, 
Bill Thomas, Brooklyn Thomas, Captain Greg Thomas, Grant, Jeb 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
President Dora Gonzales called the June 19, 2024 regular meeting of the Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees to order 
at 5:00 p.m. 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
Jacob Ward, Pikes Peak Library Workers United (PPLWU) commented on the teleworking policy at PPLD. 

REPORTS 
Friends of the Pikes Peak Library District Report 
The Friends of the Pikes Peak Library District Report was included in the Board packet. 

Pikes Peak Library District Foundation Report 
The Pikes Peak Library District Foundation Report was included in the Board packet. 

 
Financial Report 
The May 2024 Financial Report was included in the Board packet. 

Public Services Report 
The Public Services Report was included in the Board packet. Highlights from this month’s report are: 

• Regional History & Genealogy hosted the first Jewish Genealogy Class which was well attended 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83719585376?pwd=nE510rMvBSxfxc5YMz3uhkkon76pq7.1


27 of 29 Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
July 17, 2024 

 

• Adult Education was awarded AEFLA grant for the full amount requested 

Support Services Reports: Communications Report, Facilities Report, Human Resources Report, Information 
Technology Report, Safety, Community Resources & Security Report 
The Support Services Reports were included in the Board packet. 
Chief Facilities Management Officer Gary Syling provided the following updates: 

• An isolation valve was installed as a result of the water main break at 21c. PPLD is collaborating with an engineer to 
develop a plan to relocate the main line which currently runs under the chiller yard. 

• Ruth Holley Library experienced a sewage backup 
• Old Colorado City Library’s air conditioning shut down due to a failed condenser unit. 
• Work on the parking lot at East Library will be phased to complete one acre at a time. 

Chief Librarian’s Report 
Chief Librarian and CEO Teona Shainidze-Krebs thanked Chief Facilities Management Officer Gary Syling for his 18 years of 
service to Pikes Peak Library District and the community. Gary will retire from the district on June 28, 2024. 

Board Reports 
Governance Committee 
Governance Committee Chairperson Julie Smyth shared that the committee discussed planning for the Board retreat in late 
September and distributed a board Competency Survey as an initial step in the search for a new board member in 2025. 
Liaison comments 
City Councilmember Nancy Henjum shared that she enjoyed using the sewing machine at the East Library Makerspace. 

 
Trustee comments 
Debbie English and Dora Gonzales both attended the Friends of the Pikes Peak Library District Literary Awards. 
Dora Gonzales shared that planning for Latina Voices is underway. Ms. Gonzales also thanked Monument Library Manager 
Jean Doherty for hosting tonight’s Board meeting. 

PRESENTATIONS 
Introduction of new staff and staff promotions 
Director of Creative Services Becca Cruz introduced Studio Services Coordinator Dustin Booth 
Director of Creative Services Becca Cruz introduced Data Analyst Sarah Holland 
Director of Creative Services Becca Cruz introduced Data Analyst Becca Philipsen 
Director of Branches Janina Goodwin introduced Library 21c Manager Jennifer Luebbert 

Facilities Master Plan Report 
Rob Cullin of ReThinking Libraries and Aaron Briggs of HB&A provided a preliminary overview of the recommendations of the 
plan. A final report is expected in the fall. 

 
Penrose Library Mural 
Captain Greg Thomas and David Griffin, grandson of Daniel T. Griffin, provided a presentation on creating a mural on the north 
facing exterior of the Penrose Library honoring AAMIc (NAP) Daniel T. Griffin. He was a native of Colorado Springs and the first 
American casualty of World War II at Pearl Harbor on December 7, 1941. It is expected that the project could be completed in 
30 days, weather permitting. 
The Public Affairs Committee of the Board of Trustees will discuss the mural project at their next meeting and David Griffin is 
available for further questions. 

BUSINESS ITEMS 
Consent Items 
Minutes of the May 15, 2024 Board of Trustees meeting. 
There were no comments or requested changes. 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
The Board will enter into Executive Session to discuss specialized details of security arrangements or 

investigations per CRS §24-6-402(4)(d) (Particular Matter: Cybersecurity). 



28 of 29 Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees 
July 17, 2024 

Motion: Scott Taylor made a motion that the Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees move into Executive 
Session to discuss specialized details of security arrangements or investigations per CRS §24-6-402(4)(d) 
(Particular Matter: Cybersecurity). 

Second:Debbie English seconded the motion. 
Vote: The vote was approved unanimously. 

Chief Librarian and CEO Teona Shainidze-Krebs, Chief Information Technology Officer Justin Goodwin and Director of IT 
Infrastructure Dan Stone were invited to attend the Executive Session. All other meeting attendees left the room. 

Executive Session began at 6:15 p.m. 

Motion: Aaron Salt made a motion that the Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees return to Open Session. 
Second:Julie Smyth seconded the motion. 
Vote: The motion was approved unanimously. 

The Board of Trustees resumed the meeting in open session at 7:07 p.m. 

ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business to discuss, President Dora Gonzales adjourned the regular meeting of the Pikes Peak Library 
District Board of Trustees at 7:31 p.m. 

The full packet of materials for this meeting of the Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees is available at 
https://ppld.org/board-trustees 

https://ppld.org/board-trustees


Pikes Peak Library District 

Annual Comprehensive Financial Report 

For the year ended December 31, 2023 

Board of Trustees  

(As of December 31, 2023) 

Aaron Salt .................................................................................................................. President 

Dora Gonzales .................................................................................................. Vice President 

Erin Bents ................................................................................................. Secretary/Treasurer 

Debbie English .............................................................................................................Trustee 

Scott Taylor ..................................................................................................................Trustee 

Julie Smyth ...................................................................................................................Trustee 

Chief Librarian and Chief Executive Officer 

Teona Shainidze-Krebs 

Administrative Offices 
20 N. Cascade Avenue 

Colorado Springs, Colorado 80903 

DRAFT

29 of 29 



THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

DRAFT



Pikes Peak Library District 

Annual Comprehensive Financial Report 

Table of Contents 

December 31, 2023 

INTRODUCTORY SECTION 

Page 

Chief Librarian and Chief Executive Officer’s Letter of Transmittal .....................................6 

Letter of Transmittal ................................................................................................................7 

Organizational Chart .............................................................................................................16 

Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting ......................................17 

FINANCIAL SECTION 

Independent Auditor’s Report (Draft) ...............................................................................19 

Basic Financial Statements 

Government-wide Financial Statements 

Statement of Net Position ..........................................................................................23 

Statements of Financial Position – Foundation .........................................................24 

Statement of Activities ..............................................................................................25 

Statements of Activities – Foundation ......................................................................26 

Fund Financial Statements 

Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds .......................................................................28 

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental 
Funds to the Statement of Net Position..................................................................29 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 
in Fund Balances – Governmental Funds ..............................................................30 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes 
in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities .............32 

Proprietary Fund 

Internal Service Fund 

Statement of Net Position ...................................................................................33 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position ..............34 

Statement of Cash Flows ....................................................................................35 

Fiduciary Fund – Statement of Fiduciary Net Position .............................................36 

Fiduciary Fund – Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position ..........................37 

3

DRAFT



Pikes Peak Library District 

Annual Comprehensive Financial Report 

Table of Contents 

December 31, 2023 

Notes to Financial Statements ...........................................................................................38 

Required Supplementary Information 

Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share 
of the Net Pension Liability ...........................................................................................67 

Schedule of District Contributions ....................................................................................68 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in 
Fund Balance – Budget and Actual – General Fund .....................................................69 

Notes to Required Supplementary Information ................................................................71 

Supplementary Information – Combining and Individual 
Fund Financial Statements and Schedules 

General Fund 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

 Combining Governmental Nonmajor Balance Sheet ....................................................75 

Combining Governmental Nonmajor Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 
  and Changes in Fund Balances ....................................................................................76 

Combining Governmental Nonmajor Balance Sheet – Capital Projects Funds ............77 

Combining Governmental Nonmajor Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 
  and Changes in Fund Balances – Capital Projects Funds ............................................78 

STATISTICAL SECTION (unaudited) 

Ref. Page 

Financial Trends Information 

Government-wide Net Position by Component ........................................ I-1 .............81 

Government-wide Expenses, Program Revenues and Net Expenses ........ I-2 .............82 

Government-wide General Revenues and Other  
Changes in Net Position ......................................................................... I-3 .............84 

Fund Balances, Governmental Funds ........................................................ I-4 .............85 

Summary of Changes in Total Governmental Fund Balances .................. I-5 .............86 

Governmental Funds Revenues ................................................................. I-6 .............87 

Governmental Funds Expenditures ........................................................... I-7 .............88 

Revenue Capacity Information 

Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property ..................... I-8 .............90 

4

DRAFT



Pikes Peak Library District 

Annual Comprehensive Financial Report 

Table of Contents 

December 31, 2023 

 
Property Tax Rates – Direct and Overlapping .......................................... I-9 .............91 

Principal Property Taxpayers .................................................................... I-10 ...........94 

Property Tax Levies and Collections ........................................................ I-11 ...........95 

Debt Capacity Information 

Ratios of Outstanding Debt ....................................................................... I-12 ...........96 

Debt Limitation Information ..................................................................... I-13 ...........97 

Debt Service Information .......................................................................... I-14 ...........98 

Demographic and Economic Information 

Demographic and Economic Information ................................................. I-15 .........100 

Principal Employers .................................................................................. I-16 .........101 

Operating Information 

District Employees by Function ................................................................ I-17 .........103 

Library Materials Purchased and Circulated ............................................. I-18 .........105 

Circulation by Location ............................................................................. I-19 .........106 

Service Location Information .................................................................... I-20 .........107 

Report on Internal Control over Financial 
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an 
Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards – Independent Auditor’s Report (Draft) .......109 

 

5

DRAFT



(719) 531-6333
ppld.org

P.O. Box 1579 
Colorado Springs, CO 80901 

Chief Librarian and Chief Executive Officer’s Letter of Transmittal 

June 28, 2024 

Members of the Board of Trustees 
Pikes Peak Library District 
20 N. Cascade Avenue 
Colorado Springs, Colorado 80903 

Dear Trustees: 

I am pleased to submit to you the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) of the Pikes Peak Library 
District (the District) for the year ended December 31, 2023. 

This is the 33nd consecutive year that an annual financial report has been submitted to you in ACFR format, in 
accordance with guidelines of the Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada 
(GFOA). 

Please refer to pages x to y for the section of the ACFR called “Management’s Discussion and Analysis.”  This 
section provides a discussion of the significant issues and analysis of the District’s 2023 financial statements. 

Last year’s ACFR received the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting from the GFOA 
for the 32nd consecutive year.  This award represents affirmation that the District has achieved excellence in 
financial reporting.  The District will submit the 2023 ACFR for recognition again this year. 

I want to take this opportunity to thank PPLD’s Chief Financial Officer and the Finance Office staff for their 
operational support that ensures financial excellence, and the Board of Trustees for their stewardship of the 
District’s fiscal activities and their supportive and future-oriented planning. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Teona Shainidze-Krebs 
Chief Librarian and Chief Executive Officer 

6

DRAFT



(719) 531-6333
ppld.org

P.O. Box 1579 
Colorado Springs, CO 80901 

Letter of Transmittal 

June 28, 2024 

To the Board of Trustees and the Citizens of the Pikes Peak Library District: 

State law requires that every general-purpose local government publish within seven months of the close of each 
fiscal year a complete set of audited financial statements.  This report is published to fulfill that requirement for the 
fiscal year ended December 31, 2023. 

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information contained in this 
report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal control that it has established for this purpose.  Because 
the cost of internal control should not exceed anticipated benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than 
absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free of any material misstatements. 

FORVIS, our independent certified public accountants, has issued unmodified (“clean”) opinions on the Pikes Peak 
Library District’s (the District, the Library, or PPLD) financial statements as of and for the year ended 
December 31, 2023.  The independent auditor’s report is located at the front of the financial section of this report. 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the Independent Auditor’s Report, and 
provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements.  MD&A complements 
this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it. 

PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT 

Government Structure 

The District is considered a “Library District,” which is a separate legal entity, and was created through Colorado 
State Statute (C.R.S. 24-90-110).  The District is not considered a component unit of any other government entity, 
including El Paso County, Colorado, and is financially, managerially, and operationally independent, and meets the 
guidelines outlined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.  

Pikes Peak Library District has one component unit affiliation: Pikes Peak Library District Foundation, Inc. (a 
discretely presented component unit), which organized in 2003 to raise funds for the sole benefit of PPLD. 

PPLD provides library services to all of El Paso County, excluding Security/Widefield School District #3. 
Security/Widefield and Manitou Springs did not join the Library District when it was formed in 1962. The city of 
Manitou Springs subsequently voted to join PPLD effective January 1, 2013. 

There are 16 library facilities and three mobile libraries covering a service area of approximately 2,070 square 
miles.  PPLD owns eight facilities: East Library, Calhan Library, Fountain Library, High Prairie Library, Library 
21c, Old Colorado City Library, Penrose Library Campus, and Sand Creek Library.  The District leases the other 
seven facilities: Cheyenne Mountain Library, Manitou Springs Library, Monument Library, Palmer Lake Library, 
Rockrimmon Library, Ruth Holley Library, and Ute Pass Library.  Additionally, a mobile fleet delivers library 
services to remote sites and to special non-mobile populations. 

PPLD's 16 library facilities and mobile fleet are structured under the District’s Branch Administration team, which 
includes daily circulation, shelving, and security. The programing team is structured under a single Programming 
Administration umbrella and includes services previously identified as Adult Services, Family & Children's

7

DRAFT



(719) 531-6333
ppld.org

P.O. Box 1579 
Colorado Springs, CO 80901 

Services, and Young Adult Services.  The administrative offices and departments are comprised of the Chief 
Librarian and CEO, Communications (branding, marketing, video production, and community relations), 
Development, Facilities, Finance, Human Resources, Security, and Information Technology. 

PPLD’s Board of Trustees consists of seven members from the community.  The citizen volunteers are appointed 
jointly by the Colorado Springs City Council and El Paso County Commissioners for a maximum of two five-year 
terms.  The Trustees convene at regular meetings, as well as at special meetings, when necessary, to conduct the 
business of PPLD. Trustees are prohibited by law from receiving compensation, and their duties and responsibilities 
are defined in law (C.R.S. 24-90-109). 

The Pikes Peak Library District Board of Trustees are legally responsible for approving and adopting an annual 
budget by appropriating funds for district expenditures from the revenues and available fund balances of each fund 
to each fund by December 15 of each fiscal year. The annual budget is prepared by fund and department and serves 
as a foundation for PPLD’s financial planning and control.  Management cannot overspend the originally ratified 
budget without the approval of the Board of Trustees. Additional spending, in excess of the original budget, is only 
permitted with the PPLD Board of Trustee’s approved revision(s) to the original budget. 

About Pikes Peak Library District 

PPLD seeks to engage and transform people’s lives via its 16 library facilities, online resources, and mobile library 
services.  With a mission to provide resources and opportunities that impact individual lives and build community, 
PPLD welcomes all community members to enrich their minds, make connections, and reach their full potential. 

As a national leader and the second largest library system in Colorado, the District serves a population of more than 
682,000 residents across 2,070 square miles of El Paso County.  Thanks to an employee base of 451 full and part-
time staff and about 350 volunteers, PPLD continues to be recognized for its commitment to diversity and 
community collaboration, its innovative and community-focused programs, and excellent customer service.  

The history of public libraries in the Pikes Peak Region began in October 1885 when the Colorado Springs Social 
Union established a library on the corner of Tejon and Cucharras Streets in downtown Colorado Springs.  In 1905, a 
new library opened at 21 West Kiowa Street, with funds donated by Andrew Carnegie and land granted by General 
William Jackson Palmer.  In 1962, a majority of El Paso County citizens voted to establish PPLD.  The District 
serves residents of El Paso County, except for Security/Widefield School District #3, including all unincorporated 
areas and municipalities of Calhan, Colorado Springs, Ellicott, Falcon, Fountain, Manitou Springs, Monument, and 
Palmer Lake. 

8

DRAFT



(719) 531-6333
ppld.org

P.O. Box 1579 
Colorado Springs, CO 80901 

2023 Highlights 

Pikes Peak Library District reach a new milestone with e-checkouts: 3 million digital books borrowed in 
2023. This achievement illustrates the Library’s commitment to serving all members of the community in 
innovative ways, including with a large catalog of eBooks, eAudiobooks, and other digital media. The 
Library District was #48 of all standalone public libraries and one of 152 total public library systems 
worldwide that surpassed one million digital checkouts in 2023. 

For the second consecutive year, the Winter Adult Reading Program set a participation record, registering 
4,044 readers, an increase of 18%, 616 participants, over 2022. 

The District’s annual reading program, Summer Adventure presented by Children’s Hospital Colorado, 
enjoyed another year of more than 14,000 children and teens registering for and participating in the 
program – 14,363.  These individuals spent 220,132 hours moving, creating, and imagining during the 
summer. 

2023 was the third consecutive year that PPLD presented the children’s area, Kids Con, at the annual 
Comic Con event at The Broadmoor World Arena. From Aug. 25-27 more than 2,500 adults, teens, and 
children visited PPLD’s Kids Con area. The staff issued 33 new library cards, snapped 500 photos using 
its green screen backgrounds, and distributed information about its makerspaces and other services to a 
much sought after target demographic for libraries - teens. It was the largest outreach of 2023. 

Pikes Peak Library District partners with local museums and attractions to provide library card holders 
access to their locations free of charge if they have a PPLD library card. Culture Pass has allowed 
thousands of people to visit sites throughout Colorado and its popularity is growing. In 2023, 3,180 
Culture Passes were issued to Library patrons. In 2022, 1,644 Culture Passes were issued. The 2023 
numbers represented a 93.5% increase. 

PPLD’s partnership with Pikes Peak Workforce Center to present the Food Industry Training Course, a 
program that helps students learn basic culinary fundamentals, practice, explore career opportunities in 
the culinary industry, and earn their ServSafe Food Handler certification. In 2023, PPLD held two cohorts 
that involved 14 students. Thirteen students graduated and within 90 days seven of them had obtained 
employment. 

PPLD’s East Library was one of only 50 libraries nationwide (and the only Colorado library) to be 
awarded the privilege of hosting the Americans and the Holocaust Exhibit presented by the American 
Library Association and the United States Holocaust Memorial Museum from September 5 through 
October 11.  

There were approximately 3,978 visitors to the exhibit, 977 of which participated in 51 docent-led 
tours. 

12 of the tours were for school groups.  The largest school group was from Discovery Canyon 
Campus - 104 juniors and seniors. 

There were 10 related programs with a total attendance of 297 people.  

9

DRAFT



(719) 531-6333
ppld.org

P.O. Box 1579 
Colorado Springs, CO 80901 

During Library Lovers Month – February 2023 – PPLD asked its patrons to send love letters to the 
Library.  During that month, the Library District received 421 letters from patrons expressing their “love” 
and gratitude for the Library District. 

Family & Children’s Services conducted seven LENA Start co-horts in 2023 (Winter, Spring, Summer, 
and Fall), teaching parents how to increase their conversational turns (interactions) with their children 0-
33 months of age. Eighty-one families graduated from the program. 

LOCAL ECONOMY 

The information included in the following paragraphs under this caption has been extracted and 
summarized from the Colorado Springs Chamber of Commerce, Colorado Department of Revenue, 
Colorado Springs Economic Development Corporation, Colorado Department of Education, the Bureau 
of Labor Statistics, U.S. Census Bureau, and the Colorado Springs Convention and Visitors Bureau. 

Population 

As of December 31, 2023, the population of El Paso County is 744,215 (the District’s legal service is 
682,357 and is included in this total).  Colorado Springs, the largest municipality within El Paso County 
(the County), is the 39th largest city in the nation.  The County’s population has increased by 
approximately 244,277 since 2000, with approximately half of the increase due to migration from other 
states and the balance due to natural growth. 

Age 

The projected median age for El Paso County is around 33.7 at the end of 2023.  The following are 
estimates of the population for El Paso County by certain age categories: 

2023 % Total 2022 % Total 

Under 15 138,326 18.5% 141,129 18.9% 
15-24 111,369 14.9% 117,302 15.7% 
25-44 220,179 29.5% 216,547 29.1% 
45-64 166,218 22.3% 163,531 21.9% 
65+ 110,549 14.8% 106,677 14.3%     
Total 746,641 100.0%        745,186 100.0% 

10

DRAFT



(719) 531-6333
ppld.org

P.O. Box 1579 
Colorado Springs, CO 80901 

Industries 

The following chart shows the percentage of employment by industry type: 

2023  2022  

Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing and Hunting  0.2% 0.2% 
Mining, Quarrying, and Oil and Gas Extraction  0.0% 0.0% 
Utilities  0.2%  0.2% 
Construction  7.1%  7.6% 
Manufacturing  4.9%  4.9% 
Wholesale Trade  2.4%  2.6% 
Retail Trade  11.9%  12.9% 
Transportation and Warehousing  3.5%  3.9% 
Information  3.0%  2.1% 
Finance and Insurance  5.3%  5.1% 
Real Estate and Rental and Leasing  2.1%  2.1% 
Professional, Scientific, and Technical Services  13.3%  13.1% 
Management of Companies and Enterprises  0.8%  0.7% 
Administrative and Support and Waste Management and Remediation 
Services  6.9%  7.1% 

Educational Services  1.7%  1.6% 
Health Care and Social Assistance  15.9%  15.7% 
Arts, Entertainment, and Recreation  2.7%  2.0% 
Accommodation and Food Services  13.3%  13.6% 
Other Services (except Public Administration)  4.7%  4.7% 
Public Administration  0.0%  0.0% 

Wage/Salary 

Wages are competitive with similarly sized cities, but the average education of the El Paso County 
employee is greater, providing employers with a high value workforce. 

In regularly conducted surveys, local employers rank the quality, dependability, and stability of the El 
Paso County workforce as some of the community’s top strengths.  Local employers also consistently 
rank the caliber of their employees as higher than that of employees in sister facilities elsewhere.  

11

DRAFT



(719) 531-6333
ppld.org

P.O. Box 1579 
Colorado Springs, CO 80901 

The following chart depicts the estimated annual mean of wage levels for certain occupations. 

2023 2022 
Annual Annual 

Occupation Wages  Wages

Architecture and Engineering 105,515   102,309 
Arts, Design, Entertainment, Sports, and Media 86,420   68,274 
Building and Grounds Cleaning and Maintenance 41,842   38,865 
Business and Financial Operations 93,014   82,628 
Community and Social Services 60,593   55,066 
Computer and Mathematical 122,232   112,516 
Construction and Extraction 60,555   54,604 
Educational Instruction and Library 61,638   51,864 
Farming, Fishing, and Forestry 43,347   40,215 
Food Preparation and Serving Related 39,552   35,780 
Healthcare Practitioners and Technical 104,181   97,964 
Healthcare Support 43,227   39,433 
Installation, Maintenance, and Repair 62,556   55,277 
Legal 151,463   92,703 
Life, Physical, and Social Science 92,559   85,053 
Management 155,972         136,017 
Office and Administrative Support 51,431   45,068 
Personal Care and Service 43,800   39,820 
Production 51,424   45,355 
Protective Service 63,616   54,048 
Sales and Related 64,363   50,792 
Transportation and Material Moving 51,510   40,604 

All Occupations 73,673  62,164 

Tourism 

Tourism remains one of the main draws to the Colorado Springs area.  More than 20 million visitors per 
year put over two billion dollars into the local economy.  Top attractions include the world-renowned 
Garden of the Gods followed by the United States Air Force Academy.  Most visitors to the Colorado 
Springs area come from Colorado followed by Texas and California. 

Roads 

Colorado Springs is conveniently located near the geographical center of the United States, providing 
easy access to Interstate 70 heading east and west and Interstate 25 heading north and south.  To the city’s 

12

DRAFT



(719) 531-6333
ppld.org

P.O. Box 1579 
Colorado Springs, CO 80901 

east, Powers Boulevard is a major north-south thoroughfare providing rapid access for the city’s growing 
eastern edge.  Highway 24 bypass provides an east-west route. 

Airport 

Air travel is easy from Colorado Springs with two airports from which to choose in close proximity.  The 
Colorado Springs airport features 12 gates and a 13,500-foot runway, which allows modern aircraft to 
reach any city in North America.  The airport can handle all jet aircraft including wide body planes. 
Denver International Airport is just 75 miles to the north (about 1 hour and 30 minutes by car on 
Interstate 25 and E-470). 

Legislation 

The State of Colorado operates under the Taxpayer Bill of Rights (TABOR), which imposes restrictions 
on collected property tax revenues in relation to fiscal year spending.  Both amounts cannot exceed the 
prior year’s amount (adjusted for inflation and a growth factor) without voter approval.  TABOR also 
imposes restrictions and stipulations on elections, including bond issuances and mill levy increases. 

Education 

El Paso County has 17 school districts, as well as private elementary/high schools, charter schools, and 
the state-sponsored Colorado School for the Deaf and the Blind.  The 84% high school graduation rates in 
El Paso County are higher than those for Colorado but are still below the Colorado Department of 
Education’s target of 90%. 

Colorado Springs has 18 institutions of higher education.  The three largest are: 

  Total Enrollment 

2023 2022 

Pikes Peak State College 11,899 11,845 

University of Colorado at Colorado Springs 11,431 12,031 

United States Air Force Academy 4,085 4,181 

13

DRAFT



(719) 531-6333
ppld.org

P.O. Box 1579 
Colorado Springs, CO 80901 

OTHER ITEMS 

Internal Controls 

The District has several policies and procedures, which govern the operations of the District to ensure 
effective cash management, compliance with government accounting regulations, and good business 
practice.  The objectives of these policies and procedures are commensurate with our District-wide goals 
to effectively manage the current assets and resources of the District.   

The oversight responsibilities of the financial operations of the District rest with the Board of Trustees. 
Each month the Board is provided detailed financial information, prepared by the Finance Office, 
including financial statements and budget analysis for each fund.  The Board is responsible for all 
budgetary resolutions and approvals, and for setting the mill levy annually.  The Board is also responsible 
for the approval of any real estate transactions, bonded debt, borrowing of funds, and major contracts. 

The Chief Librarian and CEO can authorize operational contracts and approve expenditures up to 
$100,000.  The Chief Financial Officer can authorize purchase orders up to $50,000.  Purchases more 
than $100,000 are submitted to the Board of Trustees for approval.  These, and other stipulations, are 
included in an extensive Financial Guidelines Policy, which was approved by the Board of Trustees. 

Segregation of duties is a guiding principle in the Finance Office.  For example, the staff members who 
count the cash and prepare deposit slips are not authorized to record deposits in the accounting system. 
Only a few staff members are given the combination to the safe, and only the Chief Financial Officer and 
the Chief Librarian and CEO are authorized to affect wire transfers or banking transactions. 

The Chief Financial Officer approves all purchase orders, payments of services, and journal entries.  The 
accounting system is carefully set up to allow rights for certain functions to the appropriate staff members 
only.  A staff member who does not have cash receipt or cash disbursement responsibility processes bank 
reconciliations, but such reconciliations must be reviewed and approved by the Chief Financial Officer. 

Internally performed cash audits of all petty cash and cash registers banks are scheduled periodically at 
the Library locations. 

We believe that the cash management procedures in place are thorough and comprehensive, providing an 
effective environment of safety and good stewardship of the taxpayers’ trust. 

FINANCIAL POLICIES 

The 2023 ACFR has been prepared in compliance with the District’s Financial Guidelines, applying 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for governmental and Non-Profit entities, without exception. 

14

DRAFT



(719) 531-6333
ppld.org

P.O. Box 1579 
Colorado Springs, CO 80901 

AWARDS and ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a 
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Pikes Peak Library District for its 
Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for the year ended December 31, 2022.  This was the 32nd  
consecutive year that the District has received this prestigious award.    

To be awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting, the government must 
publish an easily readable and efficiently organized annual comprehensive financial report.  This report 
must justify both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.  A 
Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only.  We believe that our current Annual 
Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement for 
Excellence in Financial Reporting program’s requirements, and we are submitting it to the GFOA to 
determine its eligibility for another certificate. 

We wish to thank the members of the Board of Trustees for their leadership and support. 

Finally, we would like to offer special thanks to those individuals employed by the District’s Finance 
Office, and whose efforts and contributions made the preparation of the 2023 ACFR a success. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Teona Shainidze-Krebs 
Chief Librarian and Chief Executive Officer 

Randall A. Green 
Chief Financial Officer 

15

DRAFT



Pikes Peak Library District 
Organizational Chart 

December 31, 2022 

16

DRAFT

esheehan
Highlight



Government Finance Officers Association

Certificate of 
Achievement
for Excellence

in Financial 
Reporting

Presented to

Pikes Peak Library District
Colorado

For its Annual Comprehensive
Financial Report

For the Fiscal Year Ended

December 31, 2022

Executive Director/CEO

17

DRAFT



THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

18

DRAFT



Independent Auditor’s Report 

Board of Trustees 
Pikes Peak Library District 
Colorado Springs, Colorado 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinions 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the discretely presented 
component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Pikes Peak Library 
District (the District), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2023, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of 
contents. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Pikes Peak Library District, as of December 31, 2023, 
and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinions 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit 
of the Financial Statements” section of our report. We are required to be independent of the District and to 
meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our 
audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinions. The financial statements of the discretely presented component unit were not audited 
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a 
going concern for 12 months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information 
that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 

19

DRAFT 06/21/2024 

DRAFT



Board of Trustees 
Pikes Peak Library District 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes 
our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and 
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing 
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are 
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would 
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we: 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters 
that we identified during the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison, and pension information as listed in the table of contents 
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of 
management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with GAAS, which 
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, 
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

20

DRAFT 06/21/2024 

DRAFT



Board of Trustees 
Pikes Peak Library District 

Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The 2023 combining and individual fund financial 
statements and schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of 
the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from 
and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the 2023 
combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules is fairly stated, in all material respects, 
in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. We also have previously audited, in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the District’s basic financial 
statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022, which are not presented with the 
accompanying financial statements. In our report dated August 3, 2023, we expressed unmodified opinions 
on the respective financial statements of the governmental activities, the discretely presented component 
unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information. In our opinion, the 2022 comparative 
combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules supplementary information is fairly stated 
in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as of and for the year ended 
December 31, 2022, taken as a whole. 

Other Information 

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual comprehensive financial report. 
The other information comprises the introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic 
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not 
cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the 
basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based 
on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information 
exists, we are required to describe it in our report. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated ____________, 
on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control 
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance. 

Colorado Springs, Colorado 
______________ 

21

DRAFT 06/21/2024 

DRAFT



THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

22

DRAFT



Primary Government

Governmental Activities

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and investments 24,225,388$  

Property taxes receivable 35,506,170 

Accounts receivable 131,964 

Due from discretely presented component unit 1,588 

Due from other governments 275,090 

Prepaid items 735,246 

Total current assets 60,875,445 

Noncurrent assets:

Right to use lease assets, net 1,200,198$  

Nondepreciable property 16,409,175 

Depreciable building, property and equipment, net 17,900,953 

Total noncurrent assets 35,510,326 

Total assets 96,385,771 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension‐related amounts‐outflow 5,454,028$  

Total deferred outflows of resources 5,454,028 

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 101,839,799 

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 2,094,868$  

Lease liabilities 591,877 

Accrued compensation payable 1,549,344 

Other liabilities 5,602 

Total current liabilities 4,241,691 

Noncurrent liabilities:

Net pension liability 19,377,468$  

Lease liabilities ‐ noncurrent 691,667 

Accrued compensated absences 1,053,405 

Total noncurrent liabilities 21,122,540 

Total liabilities 25,364,231 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension‐related amounts 10,619,497$  

Property taxes 35,506,170 

Total deferred inflows of resources 46,125,667 

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 71,489,898 

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 33,658,011$  

Restricted for:

Declared emergencies 1,186,698 

Gifts and grants 270,148 

Unrestricted (4,764,956) 

Total net position 30,349,901$  

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Pikes Peak Library District

Statement of Net Position

December 31, 2023

23

DRAFT



Pikes Peak Library District Foundation, Inc. 
Statements of Financial Position 
December 31, 2023 and 2022 

See Notes to Financial Statements 

2023 2022

ASSETS
Cash 940,364$             966,329$             
Contributions receivable, net 152,674 257,225
Accounts receivable 50,000 1,400
Prepaid items - 4,684
Investments 2,435,965            2,104,323

Total assets 3,579,003$          3,333,961$          

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Liabilities

Accounts payable 7,578$ 203,251$             
Due to PPLD 1,588 8,598

Total liabilities 9,166 211,849

Net Assets
Without donor restrictions

Undesignated 999,709 879,036
Board-designated 1,231,321            1,057,446            

2,231,030            1,936,482            
With donor restrictions 1,338,807            1,185,630            

Total net assets 3,569,837            3,122,112            

Total liabilities and net assets 3,579,003$          3,333,961$          

24

DRAFT



Net (Expense) Revenue 

and Changes in Net 

Position

Primary Government

 Expenses  Charges for Services

Operating Grants and 

Contributions

Capital Grants and 

Contributions Governmental Activities

Governmental Activities

Public Services 17,496,000$   94,710$   1,235,644$   ‐$    (16,165,646)$  

Human Resources Office 729,735  ‐   ‐   ‐   (729,735) 

Chief Librarian and CEO Office 294,633  ‐   ‐   ‐   (294,633) 

Development Office 367,241  ‐   ‐   ‐   (367,241) 

Finance Office 1,358,086  ‐   ‐   ‐   (1,358,086) 

Facilities Office 3,787,717  ‐   ‐   ‐   (3,787,717) 

Lease interest 47,440   ‐   ‐   ‐   (47,440) 

Information Technology Office 2,603,568  ‐   ‐   ‐   (2,603,568) 

Communications Office 1,104,315  ‐   ‐   ‐   (1,104,315) 

Security Services 1,220,634  ‐   ‐   ‐   (1,220,634) 

Other Administration 5,034,119  478,374  ‐   ‐   (4,555,745) 

Total primary government 34,043,488$   573,084$   1,235,644$   ‐$    (32,234,760)$  

General revenues:

Property taxes levied for library purposes 33,709,365 

Specific ownership taxes 3,585,330 

Investment earnings 1,350,575 

Miscellaneous 82,219  

Special Item(s) 30,249  

Total general revenues, special items, and transfers 38,757,738 

Change in net position 6,522,978 

Net position ‐ beginning 23,826,923 

Net position ‐ ending 30,349,901$  

The notes to financial statements are an integral 

Pikes Peak Library District

Statement of Activities

December 31, 2023

Program Revenues

25

DRAFT



Pikes Peak Library District Foundation, Inc. 
Statement of Activities 
Year Ended December 31, 2023 

See Notes to Financial Statements 

Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total

Revenues, Gains and Other Support
Contributions - financial assets 640,430$      481,487$      1,121,917$        
Contributions - nonfinancial assets 243,304   - 243,304
Investment return, net 314,307   30,545  344,852
Net assets released from restrictions 358,855   (358,855)    -   

Total revenues, gains
and other support 1,556,896     153,177     1,710,073    

Expenses
Program services

Distributions to PPLD 952,779   - 952,779
Contributions - nonfinancial assets 9,488  - 9,488 

Total program services 962,267   - 962,267

Support services
General and administrative

Contributions - nonfinancial assets 23,265     - 23,265

Fundraising 
Contributions - nonfinancial assets 210,551   - 210,551
Other 66,265     - 66,265

276,816   - 276,816

Total support services 300,081   - 300,081

Total expenses 1,262,348     - 1,262,348

Change in Net Assets 294,548   153,177     447,725  

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 1,936,482     1,185,630  3,122,112    

Net Assets, End of Year 2,231,030$        1,338,807$   3,569,837$        

26

DRAFT



Pikes Peak Library District Foundation, Inc. 
Statement of Activities 
Year Ended December 31, 2022 

See Notes to Financial Statements 

Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total

Revenues, Gains and Other Support
Contributions - financial assets 811,843$      479,379$      1,291,222$        
Contributions - nonfinancial assets 293,465   - 293,465
Investment return, net (249,754)  (83,223)      (332,977) 
Net assets released from restrictions 430,070   (430,070)    -   

Total revenues, gains
and other support 1,285,624     (33,914)      1,251,710    

Expenses
Program services

Distributions to PPLD 1,025,434     - 1,025,434
Contributions - nonfinancial assets 16,551     - 16,551

Total program services 1,041,985     - 1,041,985

Support services
General and administrative

Contributions - nonfinancial assets 18,100     - 18,100

Fundraising 
Contributions - nonfinancial assets 258,814   - 258,814
Other 30,116     - 30,116

288,930   - 288,930

Total support services 307,030   - 307,030

Total expenses 1,349,015     - 1,349,015

Change in Net Assets (63,391)    (33,914)      (97,305)   

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 1,999,873     1,219,544  3,219,417    

Net Assets, End of Year 1,936,482$        1,185,630$   3,122,112$        

27

DRAFT



General Fund Total Nonmajor Funds

Total Governmental 

Funds

ASSETS
Cash and investments 23,387,504$   ‐$   23,387,504$  

Property taxes receivable 35,506,170  ‐  35,506,170 

Accounts receivable 123,270  8,694  131,964 

Due from discretely presented component unit 1,588  ‐  1,588 

Due from other governments 275,090  ‐  275,090 

Due from other funds ‐  2,752,428  2,752,428 

Prepaid items 698,579  ‐  698,579 

Total assets 59,992,201$   2,761,122$   62,753,323$  

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 1,506,706$   371,038$   1,877,744$  

Accrued compensation payable 1,097,884  ‐  1,097,884 

Due to other funds 3,495,013  ‐  3,495,013 

Other liabilities 371  ‐  371 

Total liabilities 6,099,974  371,038  6,471,012 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue ‐ property taxes 35,506,170$   ‐$   35,506,170$  

Unavailable fund resources 123,104  ‐  123,104 

Total deferred inflows of resources 35,629,274  ‐  35,629,274 

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 41,729,248  371,038  42,100,286 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
Nonspendable

Prepaid expenditures 698,579$   ‐$   698,579$  

Restricted

Declared emergencies 1,186,698  ‐  1,186,698 

Gifts and grants 269,336  812  270,148 

Committed

Capital projects ‐  2,389,272  2,389,272 

Assigned

Library materials 174,031  ‐  174,031 

Purchased contracts 307,049  ‐  307,049 

Unassigned

15,627,260  ‐  15,627,260 

Total fund balances (deficits) 18,262,953$   2,390,084$   20,653,037$  

Total liabilities and fund balances (deficits) 59,992,201$   2,761,122$   62,753,323$  

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Pikes Peak Library District

Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds

December 31, 2023

28

DRAFT



20,653,037

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are 
different because:

Fund balances of governmental funds

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Cost of capital assets 85,010,467
Less: accumulated depreciation (50,700,339)

34,310,128
Right to use lease assets

1,200,198
Liabilities that are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are
not reported in the funds

Lease liabilities (1,283,544)
Accrued compensated absences (1,504,865)

(2,788,409)
Certain long-term pension related costs and adjustments are not payable
currently and are therefore not reported in the funds.

Net pension-related amounts (24,542,937)
Certain revenue earned but not available, classified as deferred inflows in
governmental funds is susceptible to full accrual on the entity-wide statements.  123,104
Assets and liabilities of internal service funds are included in governmental
activities in the statement of net position. 1,394,780

30,349,901Net position of governmental activities

Reconciliation of Balance Sheet
Pikes Peak Library District

To the Statement of Net Position
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

29

DRAFT



General Fund Total Nonmajor Funds

Total Governmental 

Funds

REVENUES
Taxes 34,261,887                        ‐                                           34,261,887                       

Intergovernmental 539,718                              ‐                                           539,718                             

Fines and fees 94,710                                ‐                                           94,710                               

Interest earnings 1,349,764                          ‐                                           1,349,764                         

Donations 676,707                              ‐                                           676,707                             

Miscellaneous 57,772                                24,447                                82,219                               

Total revenues 36,980,558                        24,447                                37,005,005                       

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Governmental Activities

Public Services

Personnel services 13,744,017                        ‐                                           13,744,017                       

Supplies 150,320                              ‐                                           150,320                             

Library materials 4,958,989                          ‐                                           4,958,989                         

Contractual services 767,391                              ‐                                           767,391                             

Repairs and maintenance 3,844                                  ‐                                           3,844                                 

Other services/expenditures 180,730                              ‐                                           180,730                             

Total Public Services 19,805,291                        ‐                                           19,805,291                       

Human Resources Office

Personnel services 619,794                              ‐                                           619,794                             

Supplies 1,559                                  ‐                                           1,559                                 

Contractual services 26,206                                ‐                                           26,206                               

Other services/expenditures 83,980                                ‐                                           83,980                               

Total Human Resources Office 731,539                              ‐                                           731,539                             

Chief Librarian and CEO Office

Personnel services 282,466                              ‐                                           282,466                             

Supplies 537                                      ‐                                           537                                     

Other services/expenditures 12,328                                ‐                                           12,328                               

Total Chief Librarian and CEO Office 295,331                              ‐                                           295,331                             

Development Office

Personnel services 214,378                              ‐                                           214,378                             

Supplies 2,249                                  ‐                                           2,249                                 

Contractual services 59,788                                ‐                                           59,788                               

Other services/expenditures 91,596                                ‐                                           91,596                               

Total Development Office 368,011                              ‐                                           368,011                             

Finance Office

Personnel services 682,025                              ‐                                           682,025                             

Supplies 5,592                                  ‐                                           5,592                                 

Contractual services 628,285                              ‐                                           628,285                             

Other services/expenditures 45,232                                ‐                                           45,232                               

Total Finance Office 1,361,134                          ‐                                           1,361,134                         

Facilities Office

Personnel services 894,890                              ‐                                           894,890                             

Supplies 73,058                                ‐                                           73,058                               

Utilities 682,629                              ‐                                           682,629                             

Contractual services 1,021,811                          ‐                                           1,021,811                         

Repairs and maintenance 410,921                              ‐                                           410,921                             

Other services/expenditures 84,990                                ‐                                           84,990                               

Lease principal 601,232                              ‐                                           601,232                             

Lease interest 47,440                                ‐                                           47,440                               

Total Facilities Office 3,816,971                          ‐                                           3,816,971                         

Information Technology Office

Personnel services 927,035                              ‐                                           927,035                             

Supplies 361,254                              ‐                                           361,254                             

Pikes Peak Library District

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

30

DRAFT



Telecommunication costs 480,771   ‐   480,771  

Contractual services 27,340   ‐   27,340  

Repairs and maintenance 235,698   ‐   235,698  

Other services/expenditures 32,981   ‐   32,981  

Total Information Technology Office 2,065,079   ‐   2,065,079  

Communications Office

Personnel services 773,192   ‐   773,192  

Supplies 3,969   ‐   3,969  

Contractual services 143,257   ‐   143,257  

Repairs and maintenance 260   ‐   260  

Other services/expenditures 186,539   ‐   186,539  

Total Communications Office 1,107,217   ‐   1,107,217  

Security Services

Personnel services 1,166,019   ‐   1,166,019  

Supplies 27,870   ‐   27,870  

Repairs and maintenance 3,263   ‐   3,263  

Other services/expenditures 26,305   ‐   26,305  

Total Security Services 1,223,457   ‐   1,223,457  

Other Administration

Personnel services 488,059   ‐   488,059  

Supplies 11,163   ‐   11,163  

Library materials 202,838   ‐   202,838  

Contractual services 388,287   ‐   388,287  

Other services/expenditures 116,100   ‐   116,100  

Capital outlay 11,140   2,143,653   2,154,793  

Total Other Administration 1,217,587   2,143,653   3,361,240  

Total expenditures 31,991,617   2,143,653   34,135,270  

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 4,988,941   (2,119,206)   2,869,735  

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Insurance proceeds ‐   30,249   30,249  

Total other financing sources (uses) ‐   30,249   30,249  

Net change in fund balances 4,988,941   (2,088,957)   2,899,984  

Fund balances ‐ beginning 13,274,012$   4,479,041$    17,753,053$  

Fund balances ‐ ending 18,262,953$   2,390,084$    20,653,037$  

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

31

DRAFT



Net change in fund balances - total government funds 2,899,984

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are 
different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. The details of this difference
are as follows:

(2,670,522)Depreciation expense
2,070,616Capital outlay for building, furniture, land and vehicles
1,144,251Amounts paid for books, audio visual materials and historical collections

544,345
633,141Principal payments on lease liabilities

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds.

(661,333)Right to use lease asset amortization expense
(661,333)

19,220
Certain revenue earned but not available, classified as deferred inflows in
governmental funds is susceptible to full accrual on the entity-wide statements.  

2,440,252

Pension expense at the fund level represents cash contributions to the defined
benefit plan. For the activity level presentation, the amounts represent the
actuarial cost of the benefits for the fiscal year.

Pension related amounts

76,229

Compensated absences expenses reported on the statement of activities do not
require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as
expenditures in governmental funds.

571,140Net revenue(loss) of internal service funds

Change in net position of governmental activities 6,522,978

Pikes Peak Library District

Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

32

DRAFT



Governmental Activities

Internal Service Fund

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 837,884$                                      

Deposits 36,667                                          

Due from other funds 737,352                                        

Total current assets 1,611,903                                    

Total assets 1,611,903$                                   

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 24,002                                          

Claims payable 193,121                                        

Total current liabilities 217,123                                        

Total liabilities 217,123$                                      

NET POSITION
Unrestricted 1,394,780                                    

Total net position 1,394,780$                                   

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Pikes Peak Library District

Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Fund

December 31, 2023

33

DRAFT



Governmental Activities

Internal Service Fund

OPERATING REVENUES
Employee contributions 478,374                             

Total operating revenues 478,374                             

OPERATING EXPENSES
Claims incurred 1,681,595                          

Administrative 990,119                             

Personnel services 223,582                             

Total operating expenses 2,895,296                          

Operating income (loss) (2,416,922)                         

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Taxes 2,987,251                          

Interest earnings 812                                     

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 2,988,063                          

Income (loss) before contributions and transfers 571,141                             

Total net position ‐ beginning 823,639$                            

Total net position ‐ ending 1,394,780$                         

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Pikes Peak Library District

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Proprietary Fund

December 31, 2023

34

DRAFT



Governmental Activities

Internal Service Fund

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Employee and employer contributions 478,374$                           

Payment of claims (1,675,377)                        

Payments to service providers (990,119)                           

Payments to or on behalf of employees (199,579)                           

Cash from interfund (364,055)                           

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (2,750,756)                        

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Property taxes levied for library purposes 2,987,251                         

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities 2,987,251                         

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received 812                                    

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 812                                    

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 237,307                            

Cash balances ‐ beginning of year 600,577                            

Cash balances ‐ end of the year 837,884$                           

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash provided (used) by operating 

activities:

Operating Loss (2,416,923)$                      

Changes in assets and liabilities:

Accounts Payable ‐ Interfund (364,055)                           

Claims Payable 6,218                                 

Accounts Payable ‐ Other 24,003                               

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities  (2,750,757)$                      

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Pikes Peak Library District

Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Fund

December 31, 2023

35

DRAFT



Custodial Fund

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 47,826$  

Other assets 11,000 

Due from other funds 5,233 

Total assets 64,059 

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 10,388$  

Total liabilities 10,388 

NET POSITION
Restricted for:

Individuals 53,671$  

Total net position 53,671$  

Pikes Peak Library District

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

December 31, 2023

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

36

DRAFT



Custodial Fund

ADDITIONS
Contributions:

Employee contributions 98,047$  

Total contributions 98,047 

Investment earnings:

Interest earnings 42$  

Total investment earnings 42 

Total additions 98,089 

DEDUCTIONS
Benefit payments 102,368$  

Total deductions 102,368 

Net increase (decrease) in fiduciary net position (4,279) 

Net Position ‐‐ beginning of the year 57,950 

Net Position ‐‐ end of the year 53,671$  

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Pikes Peak Library District

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

December 31, 2023

37

DRAFT



Pikes Peak Library District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2023 

 
 
 
 
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies I 60 
 Reporting Entity I-A. 60 
 Basis of Presentation I-B. 61 
 Measurement Focus I-C. 63 
 Basis of Accounting I-D. 63 
 Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows,  
     and Net Position or Fund Balances I-E. 66 
 Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments I-E-1. 66 
 Receivables I-E-2. 66 
 Restricted Assets I-E-3. 66 
 Interfund Activity I-E-4. 66 
 Prepaid Items I-E-5. 67 
 Capital Assets  I-E-6. 67 
 Compensated Absences I-E-7. 68 
 Accrued Liabilities and Long-term Obligations I-E-8. 69 
 Net Position or Fund Balances I-E-9. 69 
 Estimates I-E-10. 70 

Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability II 70 
 Budgetary Information II-A. 70 
 Encumbrances II-B. 71 
Detailed Notes on All Funds III 71 
 Deposits and Investments III-A. 71 
 Deposits III-A-1. 71 
 Investments III-A-2. 72 
 Taxes III-B. 75 
 Property Taxes III-B-1. 75 
 Specific Ownership Taxes III-B-2. 75 
 Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers III-C. 76 
 Capital and Lease Assets III-D. 78 
 Long-term Liabilities III-E. 79 
 Changes in Long-term Liabilities III-E-1. 79 
 Computation of Legal Debt Margin III-E-2. 79 
Other Information  IV 80 
 Retirement Plan IV-A. 80 
 Deferred Compensation Plan IV-B. 86 
 Contingencies IV-C. 86 
 Risk Management IV-C-1. 86 
 Grants IV-C-2. 87 
 TABOR Amendment IV-C-3. 87 

 Commitments IV-D. 88 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

38

DRAFT



Pikes Peak Library District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2023 

 
Note I: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The financial statements of the Pikes Peak Library District (the District) have been prepared in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (US GAAP) 
as applied to government units.  The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the 
accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting 
principles.  The more significant of the District’s accounting policies are described below. 

I-A.  Reporting Entity 

The District was created through state statute (C.R.S. 24-90-110).  A joint committee equally 
represented by the City of Colorado Springs, Colorado and El Paso County, Colorado appoints 
members of the District’s seven-member Board of Trustees. 

As required by US GAAP, these financial statements present the District and its discretely presented 
component unit, the Pikes Peak Library District Foundation, which is reported in a separate statement 
in the financial statements to emphasize it is legally separate from the District. 

Depending upon the significance of the District’s financial and operational relationships with various 
separate entities, the organizations are classified as blended or discrete component units, related 
organizations, joint ventures, or jointly governed organizations, and the financial disclosure is treated 
accordingly. 

Related Organizations – The District had no financial relationships of this type during the fiscal year 
ended December 31, 2023. 

Joint Ventures – The District did not participate in any joint venture during the fiscal year ended 
December 31, 2023. 

Jointly Governed Organizations – The District had no financial relationships of this type during the 
fiscal year ended December 31, 2023. 

Discretely Presented Component Unit 

The Pikes Peak Library District Foundation, Inc. (the Foundation). 

The Foundation, which was formed in 2003, was established exclusively for the benefit of, to perform 
the function of, or to carry out the charitable and educational purposes of the Pikes Peak Library 
District.  The Foundation is a tax–exempt corporation under the provisions of 501(c)(3) of the Internal 
Revenue Code.  The Foundation issues separate financial statements and a copy can be obtained from 
the District’s Financial Office at 1175 Chapel Hills Drive, Colorado Springs, Colorado 80920. 

The District maintains control of the Foundation in the following areas: 

 The Board of Trustees of the District originally elected members of the Foundation’s Board 
of Directors.  The Members of the Foundation Board make subsequent Board appointments. 

 The Foundation may not disburse funds for costs that have not been recommended by the 
District’s Board of Trustees. 

 Two members of the District’s Board of Trustees serve on the Foundation’s Board of 
Directors at all times. 

 

 

39

DRAFT



Pikes Peak Library District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2023 

I-B.  Basis of Presentation

The District’s basic financial statements consist of government-wide statements, including a statement
of net position, a statement of financial position and statements of activities, and fund financial 
statements, which provide a more detailed level of financial information. 

Government-wide Financial Statements – The government-wide financial statements include the 
District’s statement of net position, the Foundation’s statement of financial position and a statement 
of activities for the District and the Foundation.  These statements report financial information on all 
the non-fiduciary activities of the District and its component unit.  The effect of interfund activity has 
been removed from these statements.  The primary government and the discretely presented 
component unit are presented separately within these financial statements with the focus on the 
primary government.  Individual funds are not displayed, and the statements report governmental 
activities, generally supported by taxes and District general revenues.  The District does not have any 
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. 

The District’s statement of net position presents the financial position of the governmental activities 
of the District at year-end.  The Foundation’s statement of financial position presents the financial 
position of the Foundation at year-end using not-for-profit accounting and financial reporting 
principles promulgated by the Financial Accounting Standards Board.   

The District’s statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program 
revenues for the year for each function of the District’s governmental activities.  The Foundation’s 
statement of activities presents the activities of the Foundation using not-for-profit accounting and 
financial reporting principles promulgated by the Financial Accounting Standards Board.  Direct 
expenses are those that are specifically associated with a function and, therefore, clearly identifiable 
to that function.  The District does not allocate indirect expenses to functions in its statement of 
activities. 

The Foundation reports under not-for-profit accounting and financial reporting principles 
promulgated by the Financial Accounting Standards Board, including FASB Codification ASC 958-
205. As such, certain revenue recognition criteria and presentation features are different from GASB
revenue recognition criteria and presentation features.  No modifications have been made to the
Foundation’s financial information in the District’s financial reporting entity for these differences.
Because the Foundation uses generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) reporting model that
is different from the District’s reporting model, the District has elected to present the Foundation’s
financial statements separately from those of the District as provided for under GASB standards.

The District’s statement of activities reports the expenses of a given function offset by program 
revenues directly connected with the functional program.  A function is an assembly of similar 
activities and may include portions of a fund or summarize more than one fund to capture the expenses 
and program revenues associated with a distinct functional activity.  Program revenues include: (1) 
charges for services that report fees and other charges to users of the District’s services; (2) operating 
grants and contributions that finance annual operating activities including restricted investment 
income; and (3) capital grants and contributions that fund the acquisition, construction, or 
rehabilitation of capital assets.  These revenues are subject to externally imposed restrictions to these 
program uses.  For identifying to which function program revenue pertains, the determining factor for 
charges for services is which function generates the revenue.  For grants and contributions, the 
determining factor is to which functions the revenues are restricted. 

Taxes and other revenue sources not properly included with program revenues are reported as general 
revenues of the District.  The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the 
extent to which each governmental function is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of 
the District. 

40

DRAFT



Pikes Peak Library District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2023 

 
Fund Financial Statements – During the year, the District segregates transactions related to certain 
District functions or activities in separate funds to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal 
compliance.  Fund financial statements are designed to present financial information of the District at 
this more detailed level.  Fund financial statements are provided for governmental, proprietary, and 
fiduciary funds. 

The major individual governmental fund (the General Fund) is reported in a separate column with a 
composite column for non-major funds. 

Fund Accounting – The District uses funds to maintain its financial records during the year.  A fund 
is a fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts.  The District uses three 
categories of funds:  governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. 

Governmental Funds – Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions 
typically are financed.  Governmental fund reporting focuses on the sources, uses and balances of 
current financial resources.  Expendable assets are assigned to the various governmental funds 
according to the purposes for which they may or must be used.  Fund liabilities are assigned to the 
fund from which they will be liquidated.  The District reports the difference between governmental 
fund assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources as fund balance. 

The following is the District’s major governmental fund: 

General Fund – The General Fund accounts for all financial resources except those required to be 
accounted for in another fund.  The General Fund balance is available to the District for any purpose 
provided it is expended or transferred according to the general laws of Colorado. 

Additionally, the District reports the following non-major governmental fund type: 

Special Revenue Fund – This consolidated fund accounts for resources that are restricted or committed 
for specific purposes, specifically gifts and grants across activities for three distinct locations: 
Cheyenne Mountain Library, High Prairie Library, and Sand Creek Library. 

Capital Projects Funds – These funds account for the financial activity related to significant capital 
projects. 

The District also reports the following proprietary fund type: 

Internal Service Fund – This fund accounts for the health insurance plan that is provided to eligible 
District employees (employees with a regularly scheduled workweek of 30 hours or more). 

Additionally, the District reports the following fiduciary fund type: 

Custodial Fund – This fund is used to report resources held by the District, purely in a custodial 
capacity, and is used to account for contributions made by employees who elect to participate in the 
District’s Flexible Spending Program as authorized under Section 125 of the Internal Revenue Code. 
All program administration, oversight, and financial involvement have been outsourced to a third-
party administrator.   

As a rule, interfund services provided and used are not eliminated in the process of consolidation of 
the government-wide statement of activities. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.  Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods 
in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.  The principal operating 
revenues of the District’s Internal Service Fund are charges to customers for sales and services.  
Operating expenses for the District’s Internal Service Fund include the cost of sales and services and 

41

DRAFT



Pikes Peak Library District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2023 

 
administrative expenses.  All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-
operating revenues and expenses.   

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District’s policy to use 
restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

I-C.  Measurement Focus 

Government-wide Financial Statements – The District’s government-wide financial statements are 
prepared using the economic resources measurement focus.  All assets, all liabilities, and all deferred 
inflows of resources associated with the operation of the District are included on the statement of net 
position.  The statement of activities reports revenues and expenses. 

Fund Financial Statements – All governmental funds are accounted for using a flow of current 
financial resources measurement focus.  With this measurement focus, only current assets, current 
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources generally are included on the balance sheet.  The 
statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances reports the sources (i.e., revenue 
and other financing sources) and uses (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) of current financial 
resources.  This approach differs from the manner in which the governmental activities of the 
government-wide financial statements are prepared.  Governmental fund financial statements 
therefore include reconciliation with brief explanations to better identify the relationship between the 
government-wide statements and the governmental fund statements.  

 

I-D.  Basis of Accounting 

District 

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial records and reported 
on the financial statements.  Government-wide financial statements are prepared using the accrual 
basis of accounting.  At the fund reporting level, governmental funds use the modified accrual basis 
of accounting, and the fiduciary fund uses the accrual basis of accounting.  Differences in the accrual 
and the modified accrual basis of accounting arise in the recognition of revenue, the recording of 
unearned revenue, and in the presentation of expenses versus expenditures. 

Revenues – Exchange Transactions – Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each 
party gives and receives essentially equal value is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange 
takes place.  On the modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded when the exchange takes place and 
in the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become available.  Available means that 
the resources will be collected within the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon 
enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year.   

The District considers revenues, other than grants, to be measurable and available if collected within 
three months after year-end.  Grants are considered measurable and available if 1) they are collected 
within one year after year-end, and 2) all eligibility requirements, including incurring allowable costs, 
have been met. 

Revenues – Non-exchange Transactions – Non-exchange transactions in which the District receives 
value without directly giving equal value in return, include property taxes, specific ownership taxes, 
grants, and donations.  On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal 
year for which the taxes are levied (See Note III-B-1.).  Revenue from grants and donations is 
recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.  Eligibility 
requirements include timing requirements, which specify the year when the resources are required to 
be used or the year when use is first permitted, matching requirements, in which the District must 

42

DRAFT



Pikes Peak Library District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2023 

 
provide local resources to be used for a specified purpose, and expenditure requirements, in which the 
resources are provided to the District on a reimbursement basis.  On a modified accrual basis, revenue 
from non-exchange transactions also must be available (i.e., collected within 60 days) before it can 
be recognized. 

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered susceptible to accrual: 
property taxes, specific ownership taxes, interest, and federal and state grants. 

Unearned Revenue – Unearned revenue arises when assets are recognized before revenue recognition 
criteria have been satisfied. 

Grants and entitlements received before the eligibility requirements are met (e.g., cash advances) also 
are recorded as unearned revenue. 

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources – Deferred outflows related to pensions arise from 
differences between expected and actual experience about economic and demographic factors, 
changes in assumptions or other inputs, projected and actual pension plan earnings, and changes in 
proportional share.  These deferrals are amortized over a closed period.  The amounts not recognized 
as a pension expense in the current year are reported as deferred outflows related to pensions. 

Deferred inflows of resources are an acquisition of net assets by the District that is applicable to a 
future reporting period, and deferred outflows of resources are a consumption of net assets by the 
District that is applicable to a future reporting period.  Both deferred inflows and outflows are reported 
in the statement of net position but are not recognized in the financial statements as revenues and 
expenses until the period(s) to which they relate. 

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues and other fund financial resources are 
recognized in the period in which they become both measurable and available.  Assets recorded in the 
fund financial statements for which the revenues are not available are reported as deferred inflows of 
resources.  In addition, property tax receivables are reported as deferred inflows of resources when 
levied in the fund statements. 

Since property taxes are levied in December (i.e., there is a legal claim) for the next calendar year’s 
operations, the total levy is reported as taxes receivable and deferred inflows. 

On governmental fund financial statements (i.e., on the modified accrual basis), receivables that will 
not be collected within the available period have been reported as deferred inflows (i.e., they are 
measurable but not available) rather than as revenue. 

In addition, deferred outflows and deferred inflows related to pension liabilities are presented 
separately under this category, and they are more fully described under note IV-A. 

Expenses/Expenditures – On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time they 
are incurred.  On the modified accrual basis, expenditures generally are recognized in the accounting 
period in which the related fund liability is incurred and due, if measurable. 

Foundation 

The Foundation uses the accrual basis of accounting. 

Net assets with donor restrictions are those whose use by the Foundation has been limited by donors 
to a specific time period or purpose, and include amounts restricted by donors to be maintained by the 
Foundation in perpetuity. 

Gifts of cash and other assets received without donor stipulations are reported as revenue and net 
assets without donor restrictions.  Gifts received with a donor stipulation that limits their use are 

43

DRAFT



Pikes Peak Library District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2023 

 
reported as net assets with donor restrictions.  When a donor stipulated time restriction ends or purpose 
restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without 
donor restrictions and reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions.  
Gifts and investment income that are originally restricted by the donor, and for which the restriction 
is met in the same time period, are recorded as net assets with donor restrictions and then released 
from restriction. 

Gifts of land, buildings, equipment, and other long-lived assets are reported as revenue and net assets 
without donor restrictions unless explicit donor stipulations specify how such assets must be used, in 
which case the gifts are reported as revenue and net assets with donor restrictions.   

Unconditional gifts expected to be collected within one year are reported at their net realizable value.  
Unconditional gifts expected to be collected in future years are reported at the present value of 
estimated future cash flows.  The resulting discount is amortized using the level-yield method and is 
reported as contribution revenue. 

Conditional gifts depend on the occurrence of a specified future and uncertain event to bind the 
potential donor and are recognized as assets and revenue when the conditions are substantially met, 
and the gift becomes unconditional. 

In addition to receiving cash contributions, the Foundation receives in-kind contributions from various 
donors.  It is the policy of the Foundation to record the estimated fair value of certain in-kind donations 
as an expense in its financial statements, and similarly increase contribution revenue by a like amount.   

The Foundation is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code 
and a similar provision of state law.  However, the Foundation is subject to federal income tax on any 
unrelated business taxable income.  The Foundation had no unrelated business taxable income for the 
year ended December 31, 2022.  The Foundation is not considered a private foundation.   

 

I-E.  Assets, Deferred Outflows, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Net Position or Fund Balances 

I-E-1.  Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments 

Cash and cash equivalents include amounts in demand deposits as well as short-term investments with 
a maturity date within three months of the date acquired by the District. 

Investments are stated at fair value based on quoted market prices. 

Under Colorado statutes, the District, its fund and fund types may lawfully invest eligible funds in the 
following securities: 

a. Obligations of the United States and certain U.S. government agencies’ securities. 
b. Certain international agency securities. 
c. General obligation and revenue bonds of U.S. local government entities. 
d. Bankers’ acceptances of certain banks. 
e. Commercial paper. 
f. Local government investment pools. 
g. Written repurchase agreements collateralized by certain authorized securities. 
h. Certain money market funds. 
i. Guaranteed investment contracts. 
j. Certain corporate bonds 

44

DRAFT



Pikes Peak Library District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2023 

 
The District may also deposit funds in Colorado financial institutions that are members of the Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation. 

I-E-2.  Receivables 

All trade and property tax receivables are reported net of an allowance for uncollectible amounts, 
when applicable.  Property tax allowance as of December 31, 2023 was $179,487. 

I-E-3.  Restricted Assets 

Restricted assets are reported when restrictions on asset use change the nature or normal understanding 
of the availability of the asset.  Restrictions on assets can be externally imposed by creditors, grantors, 
contributors, laws, or regulations of other governments, or can be imposed by law through 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

I-E-4.  Interfund Activity 

Exchange transactions between funds are reported as revenues in the seller funds and as 
expenditures/expenses in the purchaser funds.  Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another 
without a requirement for repayment are reported as interfund transfers.  Interfund transfers are 
reported as other financing sources/uses in governmental funds and after the non-operating 
revenues/expenses section in the Internal Service Fund.  Repayments from funds responsible for 
expenditures/expenses to the funds that initially paid for them are not presented on the financial 
statements.  Transfers between funds reported in the governmental activities’ column are eliminated. 
A single Special Revenue Fund is being reported to track the activities for three distinct locations: 
Cheyenne Mountain Library, High Prairie Library, and Sand Creek Library. 

I-E-5.  Prepaid Items 

Payments made to vendors for services (e.g., insurance, rents, and library services from other libraries) 
that will benefit periods beyond December 31, 2022, are recorded as prepaid items using the 
consumption method by recording an asset for the prepaid amount and reflecting the 
expenditure/expense in the year in which services are consumed.  At the fund reporting level, an equal 
amount of fund balance is classified as Nonspendable, as this amount is not available for general 
appropriation. 

I-E-6.  Capital Assets 

Capital assets include land, improvements to land, easements, buildings, building improvements, 
vehicles, machinery, equipment, works of art and historical treasurers, infrastructure, books and 
audiovisual materials and all other tangible or intangible assets that are used in operations and that 
have initial useful lives extending beyond a single reporting period.  These assets generally result from 
expenditures in governmental funds.  The District reports these assets in the governmental activities’ 
column of the government-wide statement of net position but does not report these assets in the 
governmental fund financial statements. 

All capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for additions and 
retirements during the year.  Donated capital assets are recorded at their acquisition values as of the 
date received.  The District maintains a capitalization threshold of $5,000.  Improvements to capital 
assets are capitalized.  The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the 
assets or materially extend an asset’s life are expensed.   

All reported capital assets are depreciated except for land, collections of historical treasures and 
construction-in-progress.  Improvements are depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related 
capital assets.  Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the term of the lease or 

45

DRAFT



Pikes Peak Library District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2023 

 
the estimated useful life of the asset.  Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over 
the following useful lives: 

Description Estimated Lives 
   

Land improvements 20 years 
Buildings 20 years 
Vehicles 5 to 10 years 
Computer equipment 3 to 5 years 
Other equipment 3 to 5 years 
Furniture and fixtures 10 to 30 years 
Books and audio visual materials 6 years 
   

The District capitalizes its library books and audiovisual materials.  Purchased items are recorded at 
cost, and donated items are capitalized at fair value on the date donated.  Damage and lost materials 
are deleted from the inventory, using the specific identification method. 

I-E-7.  Compensated Absences 

Employees earn 15 to 20 days of vacation leave annually based on length of service.  District policy 
allows employees to carryover up to 320 hours of unused vacation leave into the next year for full-
time employees, prorated for part-time employees.  All outstanding vacation leave is payable upon 
resignation, termination, retirement, or death. 

Employees also earn sick leave and can accumulate up to 180 days of sick leave.  Accumulated sick 
leave is payable only upon retirement or termination after twenty years of service at 50% of the 
accrued balance as specified in the District’s policies.  Upon resignation, termination, or death prior 
to 20 years of service, any outstanding sick leave is forfeited. 

The District estimates its accrued sick leave liability based on the sick leave accumulated at the 
statement of net position date by those employees who currently are eligible to receive termination 
payments as well as other employees who are expected to become eligible in the future to receive 
such payments. 

Vacation benefits are accrued as a liability as the benefits are earned if the employees’ rights to receive 
compensation are attributable to services already rendered and it is probable that the employer will 
compensate the employees for the benefits through paid time off or some other means. 

Sick leave benefits are accrued as a liability using the termination payment method.  An accrual for 
earned sick leave is made to the extent that it is probable that the benefits will result in termination 
payments.  The liability is based on the District’s past experience of making termination payments. 

All compensated absence liabilities include salary-related payments, where applicable. 

The total compensated absence liability is reported on the government-wide financial statements.  
Governmental funds report the compensated absence liability at the fund reporting level only “when 
matured”. 

I-E-8.  Accrued Liabilities and Long-term Obligations 

All payables accrued liabilities and long-term obligations are reported in the government-wide 
financial statements. 

In general, governmental fund payables and accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely 
manner and in full from current financial resources and are reported as obligations of these funds.  

46

DRAFT



Pikes Peak Library District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2023 

 
However, compensated absences that will be paid from governmental funds are reported as a liability 
in the fund financial statements only to the extent that they are “due for payment” during the current 
year.   

I-E-9.  Net Position or Fund Balances 

Fund equity at the governmental fund financial reporting level is classified as “fund balance”.  Fund 
equity for all other reporting is classified as “net position”. 

Net Position – Net position is assets minus liabilities plus deferred inflows of resources.  Net 
investment in capital assets consist of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, and reduced by 
the outstanding balances of any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction, or improvement of 
those assets.  Net position is reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use 
either through the enabling legislation adopted by the District or through external restrictions imposed 
by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments.  All other net position is reported 
as unrestricted. 

Fund Balance – Generally, fund balances reflect assets minus liabilities and deferred inflows of 
resources.  Financial reporting standards establish criteria for classifying fund balance amounts into 
specifically defined categories to make the nature and extent of constraints on these amounts more 
useful and understandable.  The categories comprise a hierarchy based on the extent to which 
constraints must be honored for a specified purpose and for which amounts can be spent.  Fund 
balances of governmental funds may be categorized as Nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, 
and unassigned. 

Nonspendable Fund Balance – cannot be spent because it is either in Nonspendable form or is legally 
or contractually required to be maintained intact.  Examples include items not expected to be 
converted to cash such as inventories and prepaid assets. 

Restricted Fund Balance – is restricted for specific purposes based on constraints externally imposed 
by creditors, grantors, contributors, laws, or regulations of other governments, or imposed by law 
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

Committed Fund Balance – is constrained for a specific purpose by formal action (resolution or 
ordinance), adopted by the Board of Trustees, and can be rescinded only through the same type of 
formal action used to establish the original commitment.  Trustee actions require either an ordinance 
or resolution.  Both are equally binding for their respective purposes and are mutually exclusive, not 
interchangeable with one another. 

Assigned Fund Balance – is constrained for specific purposes as determined by management and the 
Board of Trustees through the budget process.  The Chief Librarian and CEO is the only employee 
authorized to assign fund balance. 

Unassigned Fund Balance – is unconstrained and comprised of residual uncategorized fund balance 
amounts.  The General Fund is the only fund that reports a positive unassigned fund balance.  In other 
governmental funds, if expenditures incurred for specific purposes exceed the amounts that are 
restricted, committed, or assigned to those purposes, it may be necessary to report a negative fund 
balance in those funds. 

As previously discussed, the District applies restricted resources first when an expense is incurred for 
purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted resources are available.  When expenditures are 
incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balance classifications could 
be used, committed amounts are reduced first, followed by assigned amounts and then unassigned 
amounts. 

47

DRAFT



Pikes Peak Library District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2023 

 
I-E-10.  Estimates 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes.  Actual results 
may differ from those estimates. 

 
Note II: Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability 

II-A.  Budgetary Information 

The District adheres to the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the 
financial statements: 

1. The District adopts an annual operating budget for its General Fund, Special Revenue Fund, 
Debt Service Fund (none for 2023) and Capital Projects Funds.  During October, the Chief 
Librarian/CEO submits to the Board of Trustees a proposed budget for the fiscal year 
commencing the following January 1.  The budget includes proposed expenditures and means 
of financing them. 

2. Public hearings are conducted by the Board of Trustees to obtain taxpayer comments. 

3. Prior to December 15, the budget is adopted by formal resolution. 

4. Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the fund level.  Authorization to 
transfer budgeted amounts between departments within any fund and the reallocation of 
budget line items within any department in the General Fund rests with the Executive Director 
and/or Chief Finance Officer.  The Board of Trustees must approve revisions that alter the 
total expenditures of any fund. 

5. Budgets for all fund types are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting 
principles. 

Budgeted amounts reported in the accompanying financial statements are as originally adopted per a 
separate budget report, and as amended by the Executive Director and/or the Board of Trustees 
throughout the year. 

 

The original appropriation (including transfers out) for all governmental funds has been amended as 
follows: 

Changes to Original Budget 
 Original  Revised  Budget 
 Budget   Budget   Change 

      
General Fund  $  35,667,731    $  35,425,186    $    (242,545) 
Self-Insurance Fund       3,588,098         3,588,098                   -    
Library 21c Capital Project Fund          104,000            349,388           245,388  
East Library Renovation Fund            45,000            164,522           119,522  
Penrose Library Renovation Fund            45,000            809,310           764,310  
Capital Reserve Fund          806,000            3,622,278         2,816,278  

 

6. All original and supplemental appropriations for all funds lapse at the end of the year. 

48

DRAFT



Pikes Peak Library District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2023 

 
II-B.  Encumbrances 

Appropriations in governmental funds are encumbered upon issuance of purchase orders, contracts, 
or other forms of legal commitments.  While appropriations lapse as of the end of the fiscal year, the 
succeeding year’s budget is amended for the re-appropriation of year-end encumbrances. 

 

Note III: Detailed Notes on All Funds 

III-A.  Deposits and Investments 

III-A-1.  Deposits 

Deposits include bank accounts and short-term investments. 

The Colorado Public Deposit Protection Act (PDPA) requires that all units of local government 
deposit cash in eligible public depositories.  Eligibility is determined by State regulators.  Amounts 
on deposit more than federal deposit insurance levels must be collateralized.  The eligible collateral 
is determined by PDPA.  PDPA allows the institution to create a single collateral pool for all public 
funds.  The pool for all the uninsured public deposits as a group is to be maintained by another 
financial institution or held in trust.  The fair value of the collateral must be equal to 102% of the 
aggregate uninsured deposits. 

The District has transaction accounts that are covered under FDIC insurance.  The FDIC insurance 
limit for cash accounts is $250,000.  The carrying amount of the District’s deposits, excluding the 
cash held in the Custodial Fund of $47,826, as of December 31, 2023 was $1,417,286.  The bank 
balances, excluding the cash held in the Custodial Fund of $47,826, were $1,448,656, of which 
$1,198,656 is not covered by federal deposit insurance. While this amount is uninsured, it is 
collateralized in accordance with provisions of the PDPA.  Additionally, the District had $6,786 in 
cash on hand as of December 31, 2023. 

 

III-A-2.  Investments 

Investment decisions are governed by the District’s investment policy.  

The primary objectives of the investment policy are: 

Safety of Principal – The primary objective is to protect against the loss of any principal. 

Liquidity – Investments will be managed to ensure that funds are available to meet obligations, as 
necessary. 

Yield – Investments will be managed to optimize returns within the appropriate safety and liquidity 
constraints. 

The standard of prudence to be used shall be the “prudent investor” standard which states 
“Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, which 
persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs, not 
for speculation, but for preservation, considering the probable safety of their capital as well as 
probable income to be derived.” 

49

DRAFT



Pikes Peak Library District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2023 

 
Interest Rate Risk – The District does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment 
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest 
rates. 

The following is a list of eligible instruments for investments: 

U.S. Treasury Obligations – Treasury Bills, Notes and Bonds with a maturity of five years or less. 

Federal Agency Securities – Instruments such as those issued by the Government National Mortgage 
Association (GNMA) that are backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S. Treasury.  Such securities 
must have a maturity of five years or less. 

Federal Instrumentality Securities – Instruments such as those issued by the Federal National 
Mortgage Association (FNMA), Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB), Federal Home Loan Bank 
(FHLB), and the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC).  These obligations carry only 
an implied government guarantee.  Such securities must have a maturity of five years or less. 

Repurchase Agreements – Such instruments must be collateralized at 102% by U.S. Treasury 
securities, Federal Agency securities, or Federal Instrumentality securities. 

Prime Commercial Paper – Such instruments must have a maturity of 270 days or less, and be rated 
in the highest category by one or more nationally recognized rating services. 

Bonds – Instruments/debt issued by a U.S. corporation or bank with a net worth more than $250 
million.  Securities must mature within three years and must be rated at least AA or Aa3 by two or 
more nationally recognized rating services. 

Bankers Acceptances – Instruments issued by a state or national bank with a combined capital surplus 
of at least $250 million. 

General Obligation Debt or Revenue Obligation Debt – Debt with a maturity of five years or less, 
issued by any state or any political subdivision of any state. 

Local Government Investment Pools – Investment pools, such as COLOTRUST, which are authorized 
by C.R.S. 24-75-701 and 702 at seq. 

Money Market Mutual Funds – Funds that are registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940 
that are no load and maintain a constant share price.  Funds must be rated in the highest category by 
one or more nationally recognized rating services and must have a weighted average maturity in 
accordance with Federal Securities Regulation 2a-7. 

Interest-bearing Accounts, Certificates of Deposit – Such accounts either must be fully insured by the 
FDIC or are approved to accept public deposits, and which have pledged eligible collateral to secure 
uninsured public funds on deposit with such institution in accordance with the requirements of the 
PDPA. 

The District has invested in the Colorado Government Liquid Asset Trust (COLOTRUST).  This 
investment vehicle has been established for local government entities in Colorado to pool surplus 
funds for investment purposes by state statute.  This fund operates similarly to a money market fund 
and each share is equal in value to $1.00.  This investment pool operates under the authority and in 
conformity with Part 6 of Article 75 of Title 24 of the Colorado State Revised Statutes. 

 

 

 

50

DRAFT



Pikes Peak Library District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2023 

 
Credit Risk 

The composition of the portfolio will vary according to market opportunities; however, the investment 
should be diversified by security type and institution. 

Instrument Allowed   Per Issuer 

    
U.S. Treasury Obligations 100%  100% 
Federal Agency Securities 75%  50% 
Federal Instrumentality Securities 75%  50% 
Repurchase Agreements 100%  50% 
Prime Commercial Paper 100%  100% 
Bonds 50%  50% 
Banker's Acceptances 50%  50% 
General Obligation Debt or Revenue Obligation Debt 50%  50% 
Local Government Investment Pools 100%  100% 
Money Market Mutual Funds 100%  100% 
Interest-bearing Accounts, Certificates and Deposits 100%  100% 

 

The maturity of the securities shall be structured to avoid undue concentration in any sector of the 
yield curve.  No investment maturity shall exceed three years.  Exceptions to this structure may be 
allowed where maturities can be structured to accommodate readily identifiable cash flows as 
approved by the Board. 

The District’s policy permits investment in local government investment pools.  Current investments 
of $22,754,055 are held in COLOTRUST, which was rated AAAm by Standard & Poor’s on 
December 31, 2023.  The District policy also encourages diversification of investments, limited to the 
Colorado Revised Statute CRS 24-75-701.   

 

Cash and Investment Reconciliation 

 
The Foundation’s cash and investments are comprised of the following as of December 31, 2023: 

 Cash and     
 

 Cash     
 

 Equivalents  Investments  Total  
 

     
 

Governmental activities - statement      
 

of net position  $   1,471,333    $ 22,754,055    $ 24,225,388   
Custodial Fund           47,826                       -             47,826   
Less cash on hand and petty cash           (6,786)                    -             (6,786)  

       
 

Total deposits and investments  $   1,512,373    $ 22,754,055    $ 24,266,428   
 

     
 

Per note disclosure above      
 

Deposits      $   1,512,373   
Investments         22,754,055   

 
     

 
Primary government total      $ 24,266,428   

51

DRAFT



Pikes Peak Library District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2023 

* As applicable

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial 
institution, a government will not be able to recover deposits or will not be able to recover collateral 
securities that are in the possession of an outside party.  The custodial credit risk for investments is 
the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to a transaction, a government will not be 
able to recover the value of investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside 
party. At December 31, 2023, the Foundation’s cash accounts exceeded insurance limits by 
approximately $700,000. Uninvested money market accounts included in investment accounts are not 
considered to be cash and cash equivalents.  

Investment in a State Investment Pool 

During the year, the District invested in COLOTRUST, a public fund investment pool established for 
local government entities in Colorado pursuant to Part 7 of Article 75 of Title 24 of the Colorado 
Revised Statutes, to pool surplus funds for investment purposes.  COLOTRUST operates similarly to 
a money market fund and each share is equal in value to $1.00.  The value of the position in the pool 
is the same as the value of the pool shares.  The designated custodial bank provides safekeeping and 
depository services in connection with the direct investment and withdrawal functions.  Substantially 
all securities owned by the pool are held by the Federal Reserve Bank in the account maintained for 
the custodial bank.  The custodian’s internal records identify the investments owned by the pool. 

The District’s investment in COLOTRUST is rated AAAm by S&P. COLOTRUST is routinely 
monitored by the Colorado Division of Securities with regard to operations and investments. 
Separately issued financial statements may be obtained at the following address: 

COLOTRUST 
717 17th Street, Suite 1850 
Denver, CO 80202 
www.colotrust.com 

52

DRAFT



Pikes Peak Library District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2023 

 
III-B.  Taxes 

III-B-1.  Property Taxes 

Property taxes for the current year are certified in arrears to El Paso County on December 15 and 
attach as a lien on property the previous January 1.  For example, property taxes owed in 2023 are 
certified to the County in December 2022 and are available for collection on the due date, January 1, 
2023.  Property taxes are payable in full by April 30 or in two equal installments due February 28 and 
June 15.  El Paso County bills and collects property taxes for all taxing districts in the County.  The 
property tax receipts collected by El Paso County are remitted to the District in the subsequent month. 

Property taxes are reported as a receivable and as deferred inflows of resources when the District has 
an enforceable legal claim to the taxes and as revenue when available for collection in the following 
year. 

III-B-2.  Specific Ownership Taxes 

Specific ownership taxes are collected by El Paso County for motor vehicles and other personal 
property registered in the District’s assessment area.  Specific ownership taxes are recorded as revenue 
when collected by El Paso County. 

 

III-C.  Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers 

The following schedule reflects the District’s interfund receivables and payables as of December 31, 
2023: 

Payable 

 Fund 

 General 
Receivable Fund Fund 

 
 

Designated Purpose Fund  $      (63,791) 
Internal Service Fund        (737,352) 
Custodial Fund           (5,233) 
Library 21c Project Fund        (117,084) 
East Library Renovation Fund        (151,977) 
Penrose Library Renovation Fund        (476,232) 
Capital Reserve Fund     (1,943,344) 
  

Total  $  (3,495,013) 
 

 

Interfund balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and services 
are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting 
system, and (3) payments between funds are made. 

 

 

 

 

53

DRAFT



Pikes Peak Library District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2023 

 
III-D.  Capital and Lease Assets 

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2023 was as follows: 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

54

DRAFT



Pikes Peak Library District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2023 

 
 

The District, as lessee, leases library space and equipment, the terms of which expire in various years 
through 2028.   

The changes in the right to use lease assets for the year ended December 31, 2023 are as follows: 

  Balance at      Balance at 

  January 1,      

December 
31, 

  2023  Additions  Disposals  2023 

         
Right to Use Lease Assets - 

Library Space   $ 2,405,691    $          -      $         -      $    2,405,691  
Right to Use Lease Assets - 

Library Equipment        117,174                -        117,174                    -    

         

   $ 2,522,865    $          -      $ 117,174    $    2,405,691  

         
Accumulated Amortization - 

Library Space   $    602,747    $   602,746    $         -      $    1,205,493  
Accumulated Amortization - 

Library Equipment         58,587        58,587     117,174                   -    

   $    661,334    $  661,333    $ 117,174    $    1,205,493  

         

   $ 1,861,531    $ (661,333)   $         -      $    1,200,198  
 

 

The following is a schedule by year of payments under the leases as of December 31, 2023: 

Year  Total  Principal  Interest 

       
2024             623,186              591,877             31,309  
2025             291,746              273,729             18,017  
2026             252,377              242,980               9,397  
2027             164,205              160,900               3,305  
2028               14,094                14,058                   36  

       

   $      1,345,608    $      1,283,544    $       62,064  
 

 

 

 

 

55

DRAFT



Pikes Peak Library District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2023 

 
 

The changes in the lease liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2023 are as follows: 

 

Balance at      Balance at   
January 1,      December 31,  Due Within 

2023  Additions  Deletions  2023  One Year 

         
 $ 1,916,685    $         -      $ 633,141    $   1,283,544    $  591,877  

 

III-F.  Long-term Liabilities 

III-F-1.  Changes in Long-term Liabilities 

Long-term liability activity of the District for the year ended December 31, 2023 was as follows: 

 Balance   Balance Due 

 January 1,   December 31, Within 

 2023 Additions Reductions 2023 One Year 
Governmental activities      

EPCRP net pension liability  $      19,694,126   $                     -   $     316,658   $   19,377,468   $             -  
Compensated absences *            1,581,094           2,065,506       2,141,735          1,504,865      451,460  

     

Total governmental activities      

long-term liabilities  $      21,275,220   $      2,065,506   $  2,458,393   $   20,882,333   $ 451,460  

 

Compensated absences are generally liquidated by the General Fund. 

* Reported in accrued compensation payable in the Statement of Net Position, which also includes 
accrued wages. 

 

III-F-2.  Computation of Legal Debt Margin 

Assessed valuation  $    11,660,021,660   
Debt limitation - 1.5% of total assessed value 174,900,325   
Total debt (excluding compensated absences)                           -    
Total debt applicable to limitation                           -    
Legal debt margin  $          174,900,325  

 

Lease liabilities are not included as debt for purposes of calculating legal debt margin (Colorado 
Revised Statute 22-42-104). 

 
 
 
 
 

56

DRAFT



Pikes Peak Library District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2023 

 
Note IV: Other Information 

IV-A.  Retirement Plan 

The District participates in the El Paso County Retirement Plan (the Plan), a cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan.  The net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources 
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, pension expense, information about the 
fiduciary net position and additions to/deductions from the fiduciary net position of the Plan have 
been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the Plan.  For this purpose, benefit 
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in 
accordance with the benefit terms.  Investments are reported at fair value. The District’s pension 
funding is derived exclusively from the General Fund. 

General — The Plan is a cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit plan covering all 
permanent, full-time, and job-share employees of the participating employers upon their date of 
employment.  Employers, as defined in the Plan document, include El Paso County, El Paso County 
Public Health, Pikes Peak Library District, 4th Judicial District Attorney and El Paso County 
Retirement Plan.  All employees hired after September 1, 1967 are required to participate.  
Employees hired from 1974 through 1981 who were age 60 or older at their date of employment 
could elect to become a member as of January 1, 1982.  

The participants of the Plan consisted of the following as of January 1, 2024 (the most recent 
actuarial valuation date): 

Inactive plan members or beneficiaries 
currently receiving benefits             2,046  

Inactive plan members entitled to but  
not yet receiving benefits               868  

  
Active plan members             2,987  

  
Total             5,901  

 
The El Paso County Board of Retirement (the Board) manages and administers the Plan.  The Board 
consists of five members, one of whom is the El Paso County Treasurer, two of whom are appointed 
by the El Paso County Board of Commissioners (the Board of Commissioners) and two of whom 
are employees of the participating employers elected by participants.  The Board shall have all 
powers necessary to affect the management and administration of the Plan in accordance with its 
terms.  The Board has the powers set forth in Part 1, Title 24, Article 54, of the Colorado Revised 
Statutes. 

Plan Amendments — The Board has the right to alter, amend, or terminate the Plan or any part 
thereof in such manner as it may determine; provided that no such alteration or amendment shall 
provide that a retirement benefit payable to any retired member shall be less than that provided by 
his or her accumulated contributions or affect the right of any member to receive a refund of his 
accumulated contributions and provided further that no alteration, amendment or termination of the 
Plan or any part thereof shall permit any part of the Plan to revert to or be recoverable by any 
employer or be used for or diverted to purposes other than the exclusive benefit of members, retired 
members, terminated vested members or beneficiaries under the Plan, except such funds, if any, as 
may remain at termination of the Plan after satisfaction of all liabilities with respect to members, 
retired members, terminated vested members and beneficiaries under the Plan and are due solely to 
erroneous actuarial calculations. 

57

DRAFT



Pikes Peak Library District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2023 

 
The Plan is intended to comply with the requirements of the applicable provisions of Internal 
Revenue Service Code Section 401(a) as now in effect or hereafter amended, and any modification 
or amendment of the Plan may be made retroactive, as necessary or appropriate, to establish and 
maintain such compliance. 

Contributions — Contribution requirements are established and may be amended by the Board. 
Through December 31, 2023, participants contributed 8% of their monthly compensation to the 
Plan.  The participating employers make monthly contributions at least equal to the contributions 
made by the participants.  Interest is credited on employee contributions at the  rate of 3% per 
annum, compounded monthly.  Employee and employer basic contributions  amounted to 16% of 
covered payroll for 2022 and 18.8% for 2023. 

Contributions are tax-deferred to the participants for federal income tax purposes.  If participants 
have at least five or eight years of credited service (see Retirement Benefits below), they are eligible 
to receive a future monthly retirement benefit.  Any refund of contributions paid waives all future 
rights to any benefits.  However, eligible participants who return to employment with a 
participating employer within 48 months and were previously refunded their contributions may 
reinstate withdrawn service if they repay the Plan the amount received when employment was 
terminated, plus interest, within twelve months of rehire. 

Active participants who have completed five years of service if hired before January 1, 2013 and 
eight years of service if hired on or after January 1, 2013 may purchase up to five years of service 
credit for any period of full-time, nonvested previous employment with any public or private 
employer.  One month of service credit may be purchased for each full month of full-time, 
nonvested, noncovered employment.  The cost to purchase one month of service credit for 
noncovered employment is the “actuarial equivalent cost”, as determined by the actuary for the 
Plan. 

Participants may elect to pay for purchases of service credit in a lump sum or on an installment 
basis.  Effective July 2016, service credit purchases may also be made by rollover contributions 
from an eligible retirement plan.  Payments may be made on a monthly, quarterly, or annual basis 
with interest due at the actuarial equivalent interest rate for periodic benefits.  The period over 
which installment payments may be made cannot exceed a period equal to the total amount of 
credited service to be purchased.  Purchased service is recognized when paid. 

Contributions to the plan by the District were $1,496,250 for 2023. 

Administrative Expenses — The Plan's administrative expenses are paid from the assets of the Plan 
accumulated from contributions and investment earnings. 

Termination Benefits — Participants vest in accumulated contributions as follows: 

 
(a) If hired before January 1, 2013 and credited with less than five years of service or hired on or 

after January 1, 2013 and credited with less than eight years of service: Refund of the 
participant's accumulated contributions. 

(b) If hired before January 1, 2013 and credited with five or more years of service or hired on or 
after January 1, 2013 and credited with eight or more years of service: 
(i) The participant may elect to receive a deferred retirement benefit which shall be equal to 

the participant's accrued benefit as of the date of termination and payable on the 
participant's normal retirement date.  The participant may elect to receive a reduced 
retirement benefit beginning on the first day of any month after the participant's attainment 
of age 55.  The reduction shall be 3% for each year by which payments commence prior 
to the first of the month following the participant's normal retirement date. 

(ii) In lieu of (i), a participant may elect a current refund of accumulated contributions made 
by the participant. 

58

DRAFT



Pikes Peak Library District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2023 

 
Retirement Benefits — Participants hired before January 1, 2010 are eligible for normal retirement on 
the first of the month coincident with attainment of age 62.  Participants hired after 
December 31, 2009 are eligible for normal retirement after attainment of age 62, but not before the 
completion of 60 months of continuous service.  Participants hired after December 31, 2012 are 
eligible for normal retirement after attainment of age 62, but not before the completion of 96 
months of continuous service. 

If hired before January 1, 2010, the monthly benefit payable at normal retirement is equal to 2.22% 
times the final average monthly compensation, times years of credited service earned through 
December 31, 2012 and 2.00% times the final average monthly compensation, times years of 
credited service earned after December 31, 2012.  If hired on or after January 1, 2010, the monthly 
benefit payable at normal retirement is equal to 2.00% times final average monthly compensation 
times years of credited service. 

The normal retirement benefit will not be greater than 75% of the participant's final average 
monthly compensation if hired before January 1, 2013 and not greater than 60% of final average 
monthly compensation if hired on or after January 1, 2013.  Final average compensation is the 
highest monthly average of considered compensation during the 36 consecutive calendar months of 
credited service out of the last 120 calendar months of credited service. 

A participant is eligible for an early retirement benefit at age 55, provided the member has 
completed five or eight years of credited service.  If the participant is hired before January 1, 2013, 
five years is required.  If hired on or after January 1, 2013, eight years is required.  The monthly 
pension is based on the vested portion of the normal retirement benefit, reduced by 3% for each year 
the early retirement date precedes the normal retirement date. 

A participant is eligible for special early retirement benefits if the sum of the participant's age and 
credited service equals 75 or more.  Employees hired on or after January 1, 2016 must be a minimum age 
of 50 to be eligible under this provision.  The monthly benefit is equal to the normal retirement benefit 
and is not reduced for early commencement. 

The annuity for delayed retirement is computed by the normal retirement formula considering 
credited service and compensation to actual retirement. 

Disability Benefits — A participant is eligible for disability benefits if the participant's employment is 
terminated due to total and permanent disability as determined by eligibility for and receipt of 
disability benefits continuously until the normal retirement date under (1) the employer's long‐term 
disability plan, or (2) Title II of the Federal Social Security Act.  The annuity, payable at age 62, shall 
be calculated as for normal retirement considering the credited service that would have accrued had the 
participant been employed until the normal retirement date and the final average compensation during 
the calendar year preceding the year of the member's disability retirement. 

Payment of Benefits — The monthly benefit, computed as set forth above, shall be paid in equal 
monthly payments commencing one month after the actual retirement date continuing at monthly 
intervals for the retired participant's lifetime thereafter. If the retired participant's death occurs prior 
to the payment of 120 monthly payments, the remainder of the 120 payments shall be paid to the 
participant's beneficiary. 

Death Benefits Prior to Retirement — Death benefits prior to retirement are as follows: 
 
If an active participant or vested participant dies prior to their normal retirement date, the 
participant's surviving beneficiary will be entitled to either two times the participant's accumulated 
contributions payable immediately or a monthly benefit equal to 60% of the monthly retirement 
benefit earned by the member prior to the date of death.  Payment of the monthly benefit to the 
beneficiary will begin on the first of the month following the death or the date the member would 
have attained age 55, if later.  If the participant met the rule of 75 while working and had not applied for 

59

DRAFT



Pikes Peak Library District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2023 

 
retirement nor ceased employment as of date of death, their beneficiary will be entitled to a monthly 
benefit.  Under these circumstances, the participant will be deemed to have retired on the first day of 
the month of their death.  If no optional benefit had been elected prior to death, the participant shall be 
deemed to have elected the full joint and survivor benefit and such benefit shall be payable for the life 
of the participant's designated beneficiary, if living, following the participant's death. 

Between normal and delayed retirement — In the event that a participant dies after their normal 
retirement date but prior to their actual retirement, their beneficiary will be entitled to a monthly 
benefit.  Under these circumstances, the participant will be deemed to have retired on the first day of 
the month of their death.  If no optional benefit had been elected prior to death, the participant shall be 
deemed to have elected the full joint and survivor benefit and such benefit shall be payable for the life 
of the participant's designated beneficiary, if living, following the participant's death. 

Death Benefits After Retirement — Death benefits after retirement consist of a lump‐sum benefit of 
$3,000 payable upon the death of a retired participant. 
 
Plan Termination — Although not presently contemplated, the Board has the right to terminate the 
Plan at any time, subject to limitations.  In the event of termination, after payment of expenses, 
accumulated contributions would be returned to the participants, and the remaining assets 
distributed on a pro rata method to the participants based on accrued benefits.  Participating 
employers would not receive any Plan assets. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows 
of Resources Related to Pensions 

On December 31, 2023, the District reported a liability of $19,377,468 for its proportionate share of 
the net pension liability.  The net pension liability was measured as of December 31, 2023, and the 
total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of January 1, 2024.  The District’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on 
the District’s contribution to the El Paso County Retirement Plan for the calendar year 2023 relative 
to the total contributions of participating employers to the EPCRP.  The net pension liability is the 
difference between the total pension liability and fiduciary net position as of December 31, 
2023. 

As of December 31, 2023, the District’s proportion was 6.054%, which was a decrease of 0.51% from 
its proportion measured as of December 31, 2022. 

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the District recognized pension expense of ($944,084).  As of 
December 31, 2023, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions from the following sources: 

 Deferred  Deferred 

 Outflows   Inflows 
    

Difference between expected and actual    
experience  $     905,064    $     219,932  

    
Changes in actuarial assumptions      2,010,086        8,417,797  
    
Net difference between projected and    

actual earnings on pension plan investments      2,027,870                   -    
    
Changes in proportion         511,008        1,981,768  

    

Total  $  5,454,028    $ 10,619,497  
 

60

DRAFT



Pikes Peak Library District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2023 

 
Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year Ended December 31, Amount 

 
 

2024        (3,652,804) 
2025        (2,235,096) 
2026            785,632  
2027            (63,201) 
2028                      -  

 
 

Total  $    (5,165,469) 
 
 

The Plan determined that the average of expected remaining service lives for active and inactive 
members on January 1, 2024 was 4.25 years. 

Actuarial Assumptions — The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of 
January 1, 2024.  The liability reflects various actuarial assumption changes adopted by the Board.  
The following is a summary of the actuarial assumptions: 

Inflation 2.5% 

Salary increases 3.00% to 8.00% including inflation 

Investment rate of return  7.0%, net of investment expenses.  This is based on an 
average inflation rate of 2.5% and a real rate of return of 
4.5% 

Discount rate 7.0%  

Mortality rates were based on the RP‐2000 Sex‐Distinct Mortality Table projected generationally 
using Projection Scale MP‐2017.  Mortality rates used for disabled members is based on the RP‐2000 
Disabled Mortality Table projected generationally using Projection Scale MP‐2017. 

 
The long‐term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a 
building‐block method in which best‐estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return 
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each 
major asset class.  These ranges are combined to produce the long‐term expected rate of return by 
weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and adding 
expected inflation.  Best estimates of arithmetic rates of return for each major asset class included 
in the pension plan's target asset allocation are summarized in the following table (note that the rates 
shown below exclude the inflation component): 

 Long-term Expected 
Asset Class Real Rate of Return 

  
Equities 7.74% 
Fixed income 4.74% 
Real assets 6.53% 
Diversifying alternative investments 5.60% 

 

61

DRAFT



Pikes Peak Library District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2023 

 
Discount Rate — The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.0%.  The 
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employer contributions will 
continue to follow the current funding policy adopted by the Board.  Based on those assumptions, the 
Plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit 
payments of current plan members.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on Plan 
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension 
liability. 

 
Sensitivity of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount 
Rate — The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability, 
calculated using the discount rate of 7.0%, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the 
net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point 
lower (6.0%) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.0%) than the current rate: 
 

   Current  

 1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase 
 (6.00%) (7.00%) (8.00%) 

District's proportionate share     

    of the net pension liability  $   25,517,375   $   19,377,468   $   14,592,691 
 
 

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately 
issued financial reports found at www.epcretirement.org. 

Additional Information - Additional information supporting the Schedule of Employer Allocations 
and the Schedule of Pension Amounts by Employer is in the Plan’s financial statements.  This 
information is available by contacting the Executive Director of the Plan at: El Paso County 
Retirement Plan, 2880 International Circle, Suite N030, Colorado Springs, CO 80910. 

IV-B.  Deferred Compensation Plan 

The District offers its employees the Pikes Peak Library District Deferred Compensation Plan, an 
Internal Revenue Code Section 457 deferred compensation plan.  Participation is voluntary.  The 
District does not contribute to the Plan, and the maximum amount that may be deferred under the Plan 
for 2023 excluding catch-up provisions, was the lesser of $19,500 or 33-1/3 percent of the 
participant’s includable compensation.  The District does not have fiduciary accountability for the 
Plan and does not hold the Plan’s assets in a trustee capacity.  Accordingly, the Plan’s assets and 
related liabilities to Plan participants are not recorded on the financial statements of the District. 

 

IV-C.  Contingencies 

IV-C-1.  Risk Management 

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees and natural disasters.  The District carries 
commercial insurance for the risks of loss, including worker’s compensation and employee accident 
insurance.  There were no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the prior year, and there 
have been no settlements that exceed the District’s insurance coverage during the past three years. 

 

62

DRAFT



Pikes Peak Library District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2023 

 
 

The following is a summary of claims activity for the District’s employee health plan for the years ended 
December 31, 2023 and 2022: 

 Claims      Claims 
 Payable      Payable 
 Beginning  Claims  Claims  End 
 of Year  Incurred  Paid  of Year 
        

Fiscal Year 2023  $      186,903   $   1,681,595    $  (1,675,377)   $      193,121          
Fiscal Year 2022  $      300,510    $   1,690,085    $  (1,803,692)   $      186,903  
 

The plan is partially self-insured and is offered to employees with a regularly scheduled workweek of 
30 or more hours. 

IV-C-2.  Grants 

The District periodically receives federal and state grants for specific purposes that are subject to 
review and audit by the grantor agencies.  Such audits could lead to a request for reimbursements to 
grantor agencies for expenditures disallowed under the terms of the grant.  District management 
believes disallowances, if any, will be immaterial. 

IV-C-3.  TABOR Amendment 

In November 1992, the people of the State of Colorado passed an amendment to the State’s 
constitution (Article X, Section 20) known as the Taxpayer’s Bill of Rights (TABOR), which was 
effective December 31, 1992.  TABOR’s intended purpose was to reasonably restrain the growth of 
government by imposing spending and revenue limits on the state and any local government, 
excluding enterprises.  Provisions of TABOR require, among other things, that: 

 Each district shall reserve for use in declared emergencies 3% or more of its fiscal year 
spending (as defined by TABOR) excluding bonded debt service, and this amount is set aside 
as part of reserved fund balance, called “declared emergencies”. 

 If revenue from sources not excluded from fiscal year spending exceeds the limits prescribed 
by TABOR in dollars for that fiscal year, the excess shall be refunded in the next fiscal year 
unless voters approve a revenue change as an offset. 

 Revenue collected, kept, or spent illegally since four full fiscal years before an individual or 
class action enforcement suit is filed shall be refunded with 10% annual simple interest from 
the initial conduct. 

 With minor exceptions, advance voter approval is required for any new tax, tax rate increase, 
or mill levy above that for the prior year or creation of any multiple-fiscal year direct or 
indirect district debt or other financial obligation without certain cash reserve amounts or a 
non-appropriation clause contained within the legal documents. 

 Management believes it complies with all aspects of TABOR. 

 

 

63

DRAFT



Pikes Peak Library District 
Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2023 

 
 

IV-D.  Commitments 

Total encumbrances outstanding as of December 31, 2023 by fund are as follows: 

      

Fund Balance 
  

General Fund  $      694,420  
Penrose Library Fund         104,088  
East Library Capital Projects Fund           42,041  
Capital Reserve Fund         185,881  

 

 

 

64

DRAFT



THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

65

DRAFT



66

Required Supplementary Information 

DRAFT



Pikes Peak Library District
Schedule of the District's Proportionate Share

of the Net Pension Liability
(Required Supplementary Information)

El Paso County Retirement Plan

12/31/2023 12/31/2022 12/31/2021 12/31/2020 12/31/2019 12/31/2018 12/31/2017 12/31/2016 12/31/2015

Proportionate share of total pension liability 49,251,022$     50,114,523$     49,855,920$    70,562,293$    55,348,696$    49,488,139$    34,179,173$    30,304,461$    30,891,857$    

Proportionate share of fiduciary net position (29,873,554)      (30,420,397)      (35,482,367)     (29,225,013)     (28,630,807)     (23,587,708)     (24,631,386)     (20,673,246)     (20,867,698)     

Proportionate share of net pension liability 19,377,468$     19,694,126$     14,373,553$    41,337,280$    26,717,889$    25,900,431$    9,547,787$      9,631,215$      10,024,159$    

District's proportion of the net pension
liability 6.54% 7.05% 7.22% 6.79% 7.12% 6.54% 6.42% 5.98% 6.45%

District's covered payroll 13,854,167$     13,301,631$     12,704,072$    12,074,763$    11,499,138$    10,084,281$    9,584,675$      8,456,687$      8,572,275$      

District's proportionate share of the net
pension liability as a percentage
of its covered payroll 139.87% 149.28% 113.14% 342.34% 232.35% 256.84% 99.62% 113.89% 116.94%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage
of the total net pension liability 60.66% 60.70% 71.17% 41.42% 51.73% 46.34% 72.07% 68.22% 67.55%

Note - Information determined under the provisions of GASB 68 is not available prior to 2015.  In future years, additional years will be added until 10 years of historical data are presented.
Information provided in this schedule has been determined as of the District's measurement date (December 31) of the net pension liability in accordance with GASB Statement No. 68.

67

DRAFT



Pikes Peak Library District
Schedule of District Contributions

(Required Supplementary Information)
El Paso County Retirement Plan

12/31/2023 12/31/2022 12/31/2021 12/31/2020 12/31/2019 12/31/2018 12/31/2017 12/31/2016 12/31/2015

Contractually required contributions 1,496,250$      1,345,629$      1,016,389$      965,981$         919,931$         806,737$         766,774$         676,535$         685,782$         

Actual contributions (1,496,250)       (1,345,629)       (1,016,389)       (965,981)          (919,931)          (806,737)          (766,774)          (676,535)          (685,782)          

Contributions deficiency (excess) -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  

District's covered payroll 13,854,167$    13,301,631$    12,704,072$    12,074,763$    11,499,138$    10,084,281$    9,584,675$      8,456,687$      8,572,275$      

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 10.8% 10.2% 8.0% 8.0% 8.0% 8.0% 8.0% 8.0% 8.0%

Note - Information determined under the provisions of GASB 68 is not available for years prior to 2015.  In future reports, additional years will be added until 10 years of historical data is presented.
Information presented in this schedule has been determined as of the District's most recent fiscal year-end (December 31) in accordance with GASB Statement No. 68.

Note - The following are the changes in actuarial assumptions made during 2023:

* Inflation from 3.5% in 2017 to 2.5% in 2018 - 2023.
* Graded by service, including inflation, from 7.76% to 3.75% in 2017 to 8.0% to 3.0% in 2018 - 2023.
* Investment rate of return from 8.0% in 2017 to 7.5% in 2018 and 2019, and 7.0% in 2020 - 2023.
* Discount rate from 8.00% in 2017 to 5.23% in 2018 to 5.37% in 2019 to 3.39% in 2020 to 7.0% in 2021 - 2023.

68

DRAFT



Original Final Actual

Variance with Final 

Budget

REVENUES
Taxes 34,292,356  34,417,356  34,261,887  (155,468) 

Intergovernmental 854,219  547,713  539,718  (7,995) 

Fines and fees 67,500  67,500  94,710  27,210 

Interest earnings 38,250  1,387,250  1,349,764  (37,486) 

Donations 287,912  568,463  676,707  108,244 

Miscellaneous 59,798  55,275  57,772  2,497 

Total revenues 35,600,035  37,043,557  36,980,558  (62,999) 

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Governmental Activities

Public Services ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 

Personnel services 15,900,061  14,393,162  13,744,017  649,146 

Supplies 313,287  320,660  150,320  170,340 

Library materials 5,064,926  5,413,255  4,958,989  454,266 

Contractual services 992,712  1,407,928  767,391  640,537 

Repairs and maintenance 20,000  22,168  3,844  18,324 

Other services/expenditures 329,807  278,248  180,730  97,518 

Total Public Services 22,620,793  21,835,422  19,805,291  2,030,131 

Human Resources Office ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 

Personnel services 610,184  512,519  619,794  (107,275) 

Supplies 5,500  5,500  1,559  3,941 

Contractual services 35,232  35,338  26,206  9,132 

Other services/expenditures 178,839  228,732  83,980  144,752 

Total Human Resources Office 829,754  782,089  731,539  50,550 

Chief Librarian and CEO Office ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 

Personnel services 258,991  237,268  282,466  (45,198) 

Supplies 530  530  537  (7) 

Other services/expenditures 32,118  62,118  12,328  49,790 

Total Chief Librarian and CEO Office 291,639  299,916  295,331  4,585 

Development Office ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 

Personnel services 190,802  174,315  214,378  (40,063) 

Supplies 3,000  3,000  2,249  751 

Contractual services 63,000  64,800  59,788  5,012 

Other services/expenditures 97,650  95,850  91,596  4,254 

Total Development Office 354,452  337,965  368,011  (30,046) 

Finance Office ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 

Personnel services 645,832  635,350  682,025  (46,674) 

Supplies 9,000  10,033  5,592  4,441 

Contractual services 643,773  647,740  628,285  19,456 

Other services/expenditures 62,624  57,624  45,232  12,392 

Total Finance Office 1,361,229  1,350,747  1,361,134  (10,386) 

Facilities Office ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 

Personnel services 894,599  823,426  894,890  (71,464) 

Supplies 78,545  80,545  73,058  7,487 

Utilities 847,578  834,977  682,629  152,348 

Contractual services 1,451,581  1,451,133  1,021,811  429,322 

Repairs and maintenance 506,700  518,750  410,921  107,829 

Other services/expenditures 116,210  116,210  84,990  31,220 

Lease principal 713,339  712,339  601,232  111,107 

Lease interest ‐  ‐  47,440  (47,440) 

Total Facilities Office 4,608,551  4,537,379  3,816,971  720,408 

Information Technology Office ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 

Personnel services 1,116,766  1,037,376  927,035  110,341 

Supplies 471,308  476,000  361,254  114,746 

Telecommunication costs 617,957  617,957  480,771  137,186 

Contractual services 120,000  115,000  27,340  87,660 

Repairs and maintenance 376,200  381,200  235,698  145,502 

Other services/expenditures 46,000  41,308  32,981  8,327 

Total Information Technology Office 2,748,231  2,668,841  2,065,079  603,762 

Communications Office ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 

Personnel services 849,984  815,310  773,192  42,118 

Supplies 8,850  8,850  3,969  4,881 

Budgeted Amounts

Pikes Peak Library District

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances ‐ Budget and Actual

General Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

69

DRAFT



Contractual services 115,000  226,176  143,257  82,919 

Repairs and maintenance 2,000  2,000  260  1,740 

Other services/expenditures 337,364  226,188  186,539  39,649 

Total Communications Office 1,313,198  1,278,524  1,107,217  171,307 

Security Services ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 

Personnel services 1,218,212  1,138,411  1,166,019  (27,608) 

Supplies 35,000  30,702  27,870  2,832 

Repairs and maintenance 6,000  2,815  3,263  (448) 

Other services/expenditures 30,375  37,859  26,305  11,554 

Total Security Services 1,289,587  1,209,786  1,223,457  (13,671) 

Other Administration ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 

Personnel services 7,700  7,700  488,059  (480,359) 

Supplies ‐  2,379  11,163  (8,784) 

Library materials 10,913  9,250  202,838  (193,588) 

Contractual services 108,569  99,612  388,287  (288,675) 

Other services/expenditures 109,138  109,241  116,100  (6,859) 

Capital outlay 2,497  10,737  11,140  (403) 

Total Other Administration 238,816  238,919  1,217,587  (978,668) 

Total current 35,656,251  34,539,589  31,991,617  2,547,973 

Total expenditures 35,656,251  34,539,589  31,991,617  2,547,973 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (56,216)  2,503,968  4,988,941  2,484,973 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in ‐  33,000  ‐  (33,000) 

Transfers out ‐  (500,000)  ‐  500,000 

Total other financing sources (uses) ‐  (467,000)  ‐  467,000 

Net change in fund balances (56,216)  2,036,968  4,988,941  2,951,973 
Fund balances ‐ beginning 13,274,012$   13,274,012$   13,274,012$   ‐$  

Fund balances ‐ ending 13,217,796$   15,310,980$   18,262,953$   2,951,973$  

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

70

DRAFT



Pikes Peak Library District 
Notes to Required Supplementary Information 

Year Ended December 31, 2023 

Note I: General Fund Budgetary Information 

The District adopts an annual operating budget for its General Fund each year.  Expenditures may 
not legally exceed appropriations at the fund level.  Authorization to transfer budgeted amounts 
between departments within any fund and the reallocation of budget line items within any department 
in the General Fund rests with the Executive Director and/or Chief Financial Officer.  The Board of 
Trustees must approve revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund.  Budgets for all fund 
types are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles. 

Note II: Pension Plan Schedules 

Proportion, proportionate share, and covered-employee payroll amounts are as of the immediate plan 
year for consistency with the plan’s proportionate calculations.  Years will be added to these 
schedules as they become available. 

71

DRAFT



Supplementary Information 

72

DRAFT



MAJOR FUND 

General Fund 

The General Fund is used to account for all transactions of the District that are not required legally or by 
sound financial management to be accounted for in another fund.  This fund accounts for the District’s 
ordinary operating expenditures, which are financed primarily from property taxes.  It is the most significant 
fund in relation to the District’s overall operations. 

73

DRAFT



NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

A Special Revenue Fund is used to account for financial activity related to funds received that are restricted or 
committed for specific purposes.  The District is reporting one, consolidated Special Revenue Fund, the Designated 
Purpose Fund, which is used for this purpose and tracks activities for three distinct locations: Cheyenne Mountain 
Library, High Prairie Library, and Sand Creek Library.  

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 

A Capital Projects Fund is used to account for all financial activity related to the acquisition, construction, and 
renovation of major capital facilities.  The District has four Capital Projects Funds as follows: 

North Facility Project Fund 

The North Facility Project Fund, a capital projects fund, is used to account for all financial activity related to the 
purchase of and renovation of a facility located in northern Colorado Springs.  Funds are being accumulated over a 
period of several years.  Primary and anticipated sources of funding for this project include the General Fund and other 
fundraising activities including grants and donations. 

East Library Renovation Fund 

This fund is used to account for all financial activity related to the renovation of the East Library facility.  Funds are 
being accumulated over a period of several years.  The primary source of funding for this project is the General Fund.   

Penrose Library Renovation Fund 

This fund is used to account for all financial activity related to the renovation of the Penrose Library complex.  Funds 
are being accumulated over a period of several years.  The primary source of funding for this project is the General 
Fund.   

Capital Reserve Fund 

This fund is used to account for all financial activity related to capital projects and expenditures of capital items not 
specifically accounted for under a separate fund.  Funds are being accumulated over a period of several years.  The 
primary source of funding for these projects is annual transfers from the General Fund.  

74

DRAFT



Special Revenue Fund Capital Projects Funds

Total Nonmajor 

Governmental Funds

ASSETS
Accounts receivable ‐$   8,694$   8,694$  

Due from other funds 63,791  2,688,637  2,752,428 

Total assets 63,791$   2,697,331$   2,761,122$  

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable ‐$   371,038$   371,038$  

Total liabilities ‐  371,038  371,038 

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources ‐  371,038  371,038 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
Restricted

Gifts and grants 812  ‐  812 

Committed

Capital projects 62,979  2,326,293  2,389,272 

Total fund balances (deficits) 63,791$   2,326,293$   2,390,084$  

Total liabilities and fund balances (deficits) 63,791$   2,697,331$   2,761,122$  

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Pikes Peak Library District

Combining Governmental Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Summary by Fund Type

December 31, 2023

75

DRAFT



Special Revenue Fund Capital Projects Funds

Total Nonmajor 

Governmental Funds

REVENUES
Miscellaneous ‐  24,447  24,447 

Total revenues ‐  24,447  24,447 

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Governmental Activities

Capital outlay ‐  2,143,653  2,143,653 

Total expenditures ‐  2,143,653  2,143,653 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures ‐  (2,119,206)  (2,119,206) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Insurance proceeds ‐  30,249  30,249 

Total other financing sources (uses) ‐  30,249  30,249 

Net change in fund balances ‐  (2,088,957)  (2,088,957) 

Fund balances ‐ beginning 63,791$   4,415,249$   4,479,041$  

Fund balances ‐ ending 63,791$   2,326,293$   2,390,084$  

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Pikes Peak Library District

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Summary by Fund Type

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

76

DRAFT



2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

ASSETS
Accounts receivable ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   8,694$   8,694$   8,694$   8,694$  

Due from other funds 117,084  342,669  151,977  197,754  476,232  712,297  1,943,344  3,359,166  2,688,637  4,611,886 

Total assets 117,084$   342,669$   151,977$   197,754$   476,232$   712,297$   1,952,038$   3,367,860$   2,697,331$   4,620,580$  

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 14,768$   50,387$   2,304$   3,847$   85,799$   54,032$   268,167$   97,064$   371,038$   205,331$  

Total liabilities 14,768  50,387  2,304  3,847  85,799  54,032  268,167  97,064  371,038  205,331 

‐  ‐ 

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 14,768  50,387  2,304  3,847  85,799  54,032  268,167  97,064  371,038  205,331 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)

Committed

Capital projects 102,316  292,282  149,673  193,907  390,433  658,265  1,683,870  3,270,796  2,326,293  4,415,250 

Total fund balances (deficits) 102,316$   292,282$   149,673$   193,907$   390,433$   658,265$   1,683,870$   3,270,796$   2,326,293$   4,415,250$  

Total liabilities and fund balances (deficits) 117,084$   342,669$   151,977$   197,754$   476,232$   712,297$   1,952,038$   3,367,860$   2,697,331$   4,620,581$  

Consolidated totals

Pikes Peak Library District

Comparative Governmental Balance Sheet 

Capital Projects Funds

 December 31, 2022 to 2023

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Library 21c Project Fund East Library Renovation Fund Penrose Library Renovation Fund Capital Reserve Fund

77

DRAFT



2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

REVENUES
Donations ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   ‐$   100,000$   ‐$   100,000$  

Miscellaneous 24,447  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  24,447  ‐ 

Total revenues 24,447  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  100,000  24,447  100,000 

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Governmental Activities

Capital outlay 215,393  194,722  45,840  898,075  295,496  875,912  1,586,925  2,365,921  2,143,653  4,334,630 

Total expenditures 215,393  194,722  45,840  898,075  295,496  875,912  1,586,925  2,365,921  2,143,653  4,334,630 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (190,946)  (194,722)  (45,840)  (898,075)  (295,496)  (875,912)  (1,586,925)  (2,265,921)  (2,119,206)  (4,234,630) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in ‐  171,601  ‐  321,738  ‐  1,191,200  ‐  2,058,935  ‐  3,743,474 

Insurance proceeds 980  ‐  1,605  680,067  27,664  ‐  ‐  ‐  30,249  680,067 

Total other financing sources (uses) 980  171,601  1,605  1,001,805  27,664  1,191,200  ‐  2,058,935  30,249  4,423,541 

Net change in fund balances (189,966)  (23,121)  (44,235)  103,730  (267,832)  315,288  (1,586,925)  (206,986)  (2,088,957)  188,911 

Fund balances ‐ beginning 292,282$   315,403$   193,908$   90,177$   658,265$   342,977$   3,270,795$   3,477,781$   4,415,249$   4,226,338$  

Fund balances ‐ ending 102,316$   292,282$   149,673$   193,908$   390,433$   658,265$   1,683,870$   3,270,795$   2,326,293$   4,415,249$  

Consolidated totals

Pikes Peak Library District

Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Capital Projects Funds

 December 31, 2022 to 2023

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Capital Reserve FundLibrary 21c Project Fund East Library Renovation Fund Penrose Library Renovation Fund

78

DRAFT



THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

79

DRAFT



STATISTICAL SECTION 

This part of the Pikes Peak Library District’s annual comprehensive financial report presents detailed 
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note 
disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the District’s overall financial health. 

Financial Trends

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how 
the District’s financial performance and well-being have changed over time. 

Revenue Capacity

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the District’s 
most significant revenue source, the property tax. 

Debt Capacity

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability 
of the District’s current levels of outstanding debt and the District’s ability to 
issue additional debt in the future. 

Demographic and Economic Information

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader 
understand the environment within which the District’s financial activities take 
place. 

Operating Information

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader 
understand how the information in the District’s financial report relates to the 
services the District provides and the activities it performs. 

80

DRAFT



Exhibit I-1

Pikes Peak Library District
Government-wide Net Position by Component

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)

Net Investment
Fiscal In Capital
Year Assets Restricted Unrestricted Total

2013 33,839,914$      1,005,719$        12,831,121$      47,676,754$      
2014 37,633,108        994,338             9,249,165          47,876,611        
2015 38,922,766        998,444             282,577             40,203,787        
2016 37,308,714        956,559             1,371,475          39,636,748        
2017 36,767,440        1,004,708          971,294             38,743,442        
2018 34,938,136        1,131,310          (990,490)            35,078,956        
2019 34,741,176        1,179,070          (6,932,278)         28,987,968        
2020 33,556,137        1,298,802          (12,866,551)       21,988,388        
2021 32,293,214        1,393,285          (11,939,086)       21,747,413        
2022 33,505,299        1,498,665          (11,177,041)       23,826,923        
2023 33,658,011        1,456,846          (4,764,956)         30,349,901        

Governmental Activities

81

DRAFT



Exhibit I-2

Pikes Peak Library District
Government-wide Expenses, Program Revenues and Net Expenses

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)

Expenses
Governmental Activities

Chief 
Fiscal Public  Human Administrative Librarian & Development Finance Facilities
Year Services Resources Services CEO's Office Office Office Office

2014 11,479,186        - 4,117,367 400,652               - 436,539 - 
2015 13,250,047        - 3,785,191 398,398               - 476,755 - 
2016 13,251,004        - 3,823,660 466,816               - 522,810 - 
2017 20,382,695        - 3,914,245 474,077               - 551,716 - 
2018 23,333,788        495,338             - 311,333 182,018             629,124 3,885,930          
2019 24,175,768        615,099             - 346,106 205,177             718,925 4,196,460          
2020 25,521,426        706,307             - 337,521 303,389             791,730 4,376,400          
2021 21,439,663        740,806             - 295,077 268,937             724,847 3,938,656          
2022 21,618,087        663,932             - 265,212 277,090             678,055 3,630,516          
2023 17,496,000        729,735             - 294,633 367,241             1,358,086          3,787,717          

Expenses
Governmental Activities

Information Communi- Total
Fiscal Technology cations Security Other Interest Primary
Year Office Office Services Administration Expense Government

2013 1,716,479$        709,136$           -$ 2,489,209$          -$  26,123,824$      
2014 7,814,245          766,469             - 2,652,230 - 27,666,688 
2015 7,855,225          853,076             - 3,107,846 - 29,726,538 
2016 7,631,440          764,629             - 3,116,763 - 29,577,122 
2017 1,868,122          830,962             - 3,222,456 - 31,244,273 
2018 2,794,960          979,183             - 3,299,412 - 35,911,086 
2019 3,121,662          1,259,541          758,615 3,690,897 - 39,088,250 
2020 3,214,137          1,147,285          1,058,946              4,178,464 - 41,635,605 
2021 2,881,161          1,051,216          1,001,954              4,000,995 - 36,343,312 
2022 2,649,778          950,097             963,291 5,448,405 60,224               37,204,687 
2023 2,603,568          1,104,315          1,220,634              5,034,119 47,440               34,043,488 

82

DRAFT



Exhibit I-2 (continued)

Pikes Peak Library District

Government-wide Expenses, Program Revenues and Net Expenses

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)

Program Revenues
Governmental Activities

Charges for Services Operating Grants and Contributions

Fiscal Public Other Public Information
Year Services Administration Total Services Technology Facilities Total

2014 530,364$           -$  530,364$               136,227$             142,433$           -$  278,660$           
2015 538,214             - 538,214 258,925               15,769               - 274,694 
2016 494,493             - 494,493 233,889               143,982             - 377,871 
2017 274,186             - 274,186 596,824               - - 596,824 
2018 114,964             - 114,964 426,310               - - 426,310 
2019 124,503             - 124,503 370,939               - - 370,939 
2020 63,530               - 63,530 784,756               35,354               46,319               866,429 
2021 86,322               - 86,322 611,823               81,098               107,942             800,863 
2022 91,779               - 91,779 940,423               126,442             136,334             1,203,199          
2023 94,710               478,374             573,084 1,235,644            - - 1,235,644          

Program Revenues
Governmental Activities

Total
Capital Grants and Contributions Net Expenses

Total Total
Fiscal Public Facilities Administrative Information Primary Primary
Year Services Office Services Technology Total Government Government

2013 166,769$           -$  240,217$               -$  406,986$           1,285,238$        (24,838,586)$     
2014 229,665$           -$  88,553$  170,380$             488,598$           1,297,622$        (26,369,066)       
2015 836,583             - 258,308 550,299               1,645,191          2,458,099          (27,268,439)       
2016 142,378             - 41,939 85,304 269,621             1,141,985          (28,435,137)       
2017 253,467             - 53,096 36,030 342,593             1,213,603          (30,030,670)       
2018 709,178             118,863             - 86,512 914,553             1,455,827          (34,455,259)       
2019 153,237 26,468 - 19,264 198,969 694,411 (38,393,839)
2020 145,873             24,563               - 18,749 189,185             1,119,144          (40,516,461)       
2021 - - - - - 887,185 (35,456,127)       
2022 - - - - - 1,294,978 (35,909,709)       
2023 - - - - - 1,808,728 (32,234,760)       

83

DRAFT



Exhibit I-3

Pikes Peak Library District
Government-wide General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Position

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)

Governmental Activities
TABOR Refund

Fiiscal Year Total Changes
Spending and in Net Position
Property Tax Total Total  

Fiscal Specific Investment Revenue in Primary Primary
Year Property Taxes Ownership Taxes Earnings Miscellaneous Special Item(s) Total Excess of Limit Government Government

2014 23,823,607$       2,546,327$             18,692$             180,297$           -$  26,568,923$      -$  26,568,923$      (136,995)$          
2015 24,137,929         2,765,049               26,550               201,916             - 27,131,444 - 27,131,444 (567,039)            
2016 24,780,995         2,892,197               96,038               155,941             - 27,925,171 (57,073)              27,868,098 (893,316)            
2017 25,762,260         3,547,865               187,896             182,529             - 29,680,550 (543,196)            29,137,354 (3,664,486)         
2018 26,834,122         3,410,423               386,768             165,290             - 30,796,603 (5,830) 30,790,773 (6,090,987)         
2019 28,235,667         3,486,228               426,392             154,564             - 32,302,851 - 32,302,851 (6,999,579)         
2020 30,095,828         3,344,277               116,945             139,939             - 33,696,989 (180,108)            33,516,881 (6,999,580)         
2021 31,402,556         3,720,458               9,250 82,888               - 35,215,152 - 35,215,152 (240,975)            
2022 33,299,124         3,517,120               429,895             63,014               - 37,309,153 - 37,309,153 2,079,510           
2023 33,709,365         3,585,330               1,350,575          82,219               30,249 38,757,738 - 38,757,738 6,522,978           

General Revenues

84

DRAFT



Exhibit I-4

Pikes Peak Library District
Fund Balances, Governmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)

General Fund

Fiscal Non-
Year spendable Restricted Committed Assigned Unassigned Total

2014 475,065$           918,560$           -$  679,883$           3,632,798$        5,706,306$        
2015 510,377             944,548             900,000             583,947             4,896,422          7,835,294          
2016 386,130             945,380             865,000             668,852             6,425,409          9,290,771          
2017 339,785             1,001,784          865,000             377,529             7,848,739          10,432,837        
2018 311,114             1,128,386          - 385,511 8,900,930          10,725,941        
2019 260,645             1,178,258          - 285,461 8,336,338          10,060,702        
2020 382,929             1,297,990          - 243,769 9,395,403          11,320,091        
2021 400,575             1,392,473          - 306,562 11,228,870        13,328,480        
2022 562,009             1,497,853          - 561,401 10,652,749        13,274,012        
2023 698,579             1,186,698          269,336             481,080 15,627,260        18,262,953        

Other Governmental Funds

Fiscal Non-
Year spendable Restricted Committed Assigned Total

2014 -$  75,778$             5,394,260$        7,624$               5,477,662$        
2015 4,990 53,896               1,976,494          7,624 2,043,004          
2016 14,092               11,179               2,378,444          7,000 2,410,715          
2017 5,877 2,924 1,845,995          212 1,855,008          
2018 - 2,924 3,199,791          212 3,202,927          
2019 - 812 3,089,709          - 3,090,521 
2020 - 812 3,101,003          - 3,101,815 
2021 - 812 4,326,216          - 4,327,028 
2022 - 812 4,478,229          - 4,479,041 
2023 - 812 2,389,272          - 2,390,084 

Notes: For fiscal years 2011 - 2014, the North Facility Project Fund was presented
as a Major Fund.  For 2015, this Fund was no longer considered a Major Fund. 
Fund balances for 2011 - 2014 have been reclassified and are now presented 
as part of Other Governmental Funds.

85

DRAFT



Exhibit I-5

Pikes Peak Library District
Summary of Changes in Total Governmental Fund Balances

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
TABOR Refund

Fiscal Year Ratio of
Proceeds Spending and Debt Service

Proceeds from from Property Tax Expenditures to
Fiscal Sale of Insurance  Revenue In Net Change in Noncapital
Year Revenues Expenditures Capital Assets Reimbursement Excess of Limit Fund Balance Expenditures

2014 29,432,914        30,383,156        50,403               - - (899,839)$           0.00%
2015 29,432,914        30,785,347        28,060               18,703 - (1,305,670) 0.00%
2016 29,109,072        27,246,156        17,345               - (57,073) 1,823,188 0.00%
2017 30,942,008        29,824,093        11,640               - (543,196) 586,359               0.00%
2018 32,258,020        30,630,672        19,505               - (5,830) 1,641,023            0.00%
2019 32,994,312        33,774,905        2,948 - - (777,645)             0.00%
2020 34,588,026        33,154,864        17,629               - (180,108) 1,270,683            0.00%
2021 36,434,017        33,200,415        - - - 3,233,602            0.00%
2022 38,604,132        38,786,653        - 680,066 - 97,545 1.94%
2023 37,005,005        34,135,270        30,249 - 2,899,984 2.03%

86

DRAFT



Exhibit I-6

Pikes Peak Library District
Governmental Funds Revenues

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)

Fiscal Intergov- Interest Donations &
Year Taxes ernmental Fines and Fees Earnings Miscellaneous Total

2014 26,369,934$      291,251$           530,364$           18,692$             592,822$           27,803,063$      
2015 26,902,978        305,794             538,214             26,550               1,659,378          29,432,913$      
2016 27,673,192        398,039             494,493             96,038               447,310             29,109,072        
2017 29,310,125        458,187             274,186             187,896             711,614             30,942,008        
2018 30,244,545        384,404             114,964             386,768             1,127,339          32,258,020        
2019 31,721,895        392,810             124,503             426,392             328,712             32,994,313        
2020 33,440,106        715,285             63,530               116,945             252,160             34,588,026        
2021 35,123,014        823,325             86,322               9,250 392,106             36,434,017        
2022 36,816,244        697,213             91,779               429,895             569,001             38,604,132        
2023 34,261,887        539,718             94,710               1,349,764          758,926             37,005,005        

 $-

 $5,000,000

 $10,000,000

 $15,000,000

 $20,000,000

 $25,000,000

 $30,000,000

 $35,000,000

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

$27,803,063 $29,432,913
$29,109,072 $30,942,008

$32,258,020 $32,994,313
$34,588,026 $36,434,017

$38,604,132

$37,005,005

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
s

Year

Pikes Peak Library District
Governmental Fund Revenues

2014 - 2023

87

DRAFT



Exhibit I-7

Pikes Peak Library District
Governmental Funds Expenditures

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)

Telecommu-
Fiscal Personnel Library nication Contractual Repairs and Other
Year Services Supplies Materials Utilities Costs Services Maintenance Services Total

2014 15,032,543$     605,206$          4,324,974$       587,082$          362,758$          2,720,845$       612,068$          734,423$          24,979,899$     
2015 15,904,077       732,640            4,279,833         571,033            409,626            2,587,094         578,877            753,353            25,816,533       
2016 16,007,317       690,060            4,482,638         539,735            339,276            2,769,599         672,300            742,652            26,243,577       
2017 17,599,286       664,432            4,368,968         583,442            465,959            2,753,994         649,023            834,117            27,919,221       
2018 18,362,919       666,926            4,528,390         615,141            479,359            2,936,686         503,869            678,177            28,771,467       
2019 19,907,957       727,608            4,716,819         639,248            479,868            3,150,559         613,411            935,456            31,170,925       
2020 20,388,490       758,385            4,818,308         586,580            579,783            3,055,942         553,522            635,754            31,376,765       
2021 20,420,285       639,994            4,766,105         701,654            606,985            3,313,673         681,970            840,987            31,971,653       
2022 21,652,786       673,884            5,112,585         806,674            532,230            3,134,841         655,677            1,159,357         33,728,034       
2023 19,791,875       637,571            5,161,827         682,629            480,771            3,062,365         653,986            860,781            31,331,805       

Fiscal Capital Total
Year Outlay Principal Interest Expenditures

2014 5,403,257$       -$  -$  30,383,156$     
2015 4,968,814         - - 30,785,347       
2016 1,002,579         - - 27,246,156       
2017 1,904,872         - - 29,824,093       
2018 1,859,205         - - 30,630,672       
2019 2,603,980         - - 33,774,905       
2020 1,778,099         - - 33,154,864       
2021 1,228,762         - - 33,200,415       
2022 4,392,215         606,180            60,224              38,786,653       
2023 2,154,793         601,232            47,440              34,135,270       

 $20,000,000

 $22,000,000

 $24,000,000

 $26,000,000

 $28,000,000

 $30,000,000

 $32,000,000

 $34,000,000

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

$30,383,156 $30,785,347

$27,246,156

$29,824,093
$30,630,672

$33,774,905
$33,154,864 $33,200,415

$38,786,653
$34,135,270

Year

Pikes Peak Library District
Governmental Funds Expenditures

2014 - 2023

88

DRAFT



THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

89

DRAFT



Exhibit I-8
Pikes Peak Library District

Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)

All Other Property
Assessment Collection Assessed Estimated Assessed Estimated

Year Year Value Actual value Value Actual Value

2013 2014 3,323,732,184$        41,755,429,448$     2,705,167,116$       9,328,162,469$     

2014 2015 3,383,673,117          42,508,456,238       2,733,459,583         9,425,722,702       

2015 2016 3,772,618,178          47,394,700,732       2,845,238,612         9,811,167,627       

2016 2017 3,785,355,234          47,554,713,989       2,832,501,556         9,767,246,746       

2017 2018 3,932,149,665          54,613,189,788       3,148,445,775         10,856,709,570     

2018 2019 4,041,515,731          56,132,162,928       3,157,308,979         10,887,272,342     

2019 2020 4,792,932,200          67,031,120,058       3,453,536,110         11,908,693,842     

2020 2021 4,895,319,720          68,463,062,349       3,322,893,400         11,458,213,951     

2021 2022 5,841,913,840          81,703,155,521       3,850,327,460         13,276,977,109     

2022 2023 5,814,508,030          83,822,310,804       3,935,572,350         13,575,257,702     

Ratio of Total
Assessed Value 

Total to Total
Assessment Collection Assessed Total Estimated Estimated

Year Year Value Mill Levy Actual Value Actual Value  
2013 2014 6,028,899,300$        4.000 51,083,591,917$     11.8%

2014 2015 6,117,132,700          4.000 51,934,178,939       11.8%

2015 2016 6,516,617,460          3.857 57,205,868,359       11.4%

2016 2017 6,617,856,790          3.957 57,321,960,736       11.5%

2017 2018 7,080,595,440          3.812 65,469,899,358       10.8%

2018 2019 7,198,824,710          4.000 67,019,435,270       10.7%

2019 2020 8,246,468,310          3.731 78,939,813,900       10.4%

2020 2021 8,218,213,120          3.855 79,921,276,300       10.3%

2021 2022 9,692,241,300          3.490 94,980,132,630       10.2%

2022 2023 9,750,080,380          3.512 97,397,568,506       10.0%

Notes:
The following are the assessment rates for collection years 2011 through 2023:

Collection All Other
Year Residential Categories

2011-2018 7.96% 29.00%
2020-2021 7.20% 29.00%
2021-2022 7.15% 29.00%
2022-2023 6.95% 29.00%

Data Source:  El Paso County Assessor's Office Abstracts of Assessment

Residential

90

DRAFT



Exhibit I-9
Pikes Peak Library District

Property Tax Rates - Direct and Overlapping
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Per $1,000 of assessed value)
(Unaudited)

Collection Year Collection Year
Taxing Authority 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Direct
  Pikes Peak Library District 3.512               3.490               3.855 3.731 4.000               3.812               3.957               3.857               4.000               4.000               

Overlapping Governments
  El Paso County 8.062               7.450               8.085 7.552 8.068               7.965               7.919               7.869               7.791               7.714                 
  Cities and Towns
    Calhan 17.563             17.563             17.563 17.563 17.563             17.563             17.563             17.563             17.563             17.563             
    Colorado Springs 3.929               3.929               4.279 4.279 4.279               4.279               4.279               4.279               4.279               4.279               
    Fountain 16.339             10.239             10.239 10.239 10.239             10.239             10.239             10.239             10.239             10.239             
    Green Mountain Falls 17.588             17.588             17.588 17.588 17.588             17.588             17.588             17.588             17.588             17.588             
    Manitou Springs 12.988             12.999             13.004 13.019 13.083             13.072             13.001             12.246             12.050             12.060             
    Monument 5.750 5.750               6.152 6.152 6.289               6.225               6.289               6.255               6.289               6.289               
    Palmer Lake 21.238             21.238             21.238 21.238 21.238             21.135             21.238             11.238             16.459             16.459             
    Ramah 19.827             19.827             19.827 19.827 19.827             19.827             19.827             19.827             19.827             19.827             

  Fire Districts
    Big Sandy 8.000               8.000               8.000 8.000 8.000               8.000               8.000               8.000               8.000               8.000               
    Black Forest 14.951             14.500             15.139 12.549 10.052             10.114             10.178             10.237             10.356             10.382             
    Black Forest (OPS) - - 0.639 0.653 0.837               0.899               0.963               1.022               1.141               1.167               
    Broadmoor 4.500               4.500               4.500 4.500 4.500               4.500               4.500               4.500               4.500               4.500               
    Calhan 17.563             17.563             17.563 17.563 6.402               6.049               5.971               6.061               6.552               6.523               
    Cascade 10.848             10.848             10.848 10.153 10.848             10.848             10.245             9.774               9.410               9.168               
    Cimarron Hills 16.621             16.200             16.200 16.200 16.200             16.200             15.286             15.286             15.290             14.390             
    Donald Wescott 7.170               7.000               7.000 7.000 7.000               7.000               7.000               7.000               7.000               7.000               
    Wescott N. Sub. 15.250             14.900             14.900 14.900 14.900             14.900             - - - - 
    Edison 9.000               9.000               9.000 9.000 9.000               9.000               9.000               9.000               9.000               9.000               
    Elbert 9.067               7.484               7.715 7.528 8.500               8.500               8.500               8.500               4.575               4.575               
    Ellicott 15.030             8.113               8.496 8.589 9.451               9.515               9.850               9.760               10.220             10.290             
    Falcon 14.886             14.886             14.886 14.886 14.886             8.612               8.612               8.612               8.612               8.612               
    Green Mountain Falls/Chipita Park 17.090             17.090             17.090 16.615 17.460             16.950             9.763               9.812               9.293               8.788               
    Hanover 11.000             10.000             10.000 10.000 7.217               7.428               7.366               7.000               4.720               4.720               
    Northeast Teller City 14.718             13.182             13.547 0.000 - - - - - - 
    Peyton 6.130               6.134               6.140 6.130 6.130               6.130               6.130               6.130               6.130               6.130               
    Security 16.400             16.400             10.002 10.002 10.002             10.002             10.002             10.002             10.002             10.001             
    SW Hwy 115 13.211             13.211             13.210 13.200 13.483             13.200             13.200             13.200             13.200             13.200             
    Stratmoor Hills Fire 13.834             13.083             13.810 13.251 13.200             12.582             12.811             12.768             12.686             12.002             
    Tri-County 3.000               3.000               3.000 3.000 3.000               3.000               3.000               3.000               3.000               3.000               
    Tri-Lakes/Monument 18.830             18.400             18.400 18.400 18.400             18.100             11.500             11.500             11.500             11.500             
    Woodman Valley 9.050               9.050               9.050 9.050 9.050               9.050               9.050               9.050               9.050               9.050               

(Continued)

91

DRAFT



Exhibit I-9
Pikes Peak Library District

Property Tax Rates - Direct and Overlapping
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Per $1,000 of assessed value)
(Unaudited)

Collection Year Collection Year
Taxing Authority 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
  Water Districts
    Cheyenne Creek 0.500               0.500               1.000 1.000 1.000               1.000               1.000               0.500               0.500               0.500               
    Forest View 5.000               5.000               5.000 5.000 5.000               5.000               5.000               5.000               5.000               5.000               
    Park Forest 14.437             14.437             14.437 14.437 14.437             14.437             14.437             14.437             14.437             14.437             
    Red Rock Valley Estates 17.725             17.725             17.725 17.725 17.725             17.725             17.725             16.444             18.575             17.872             
    Stratmoor Hills Water - - - - - 2.071 2.105               2.086               1.974               2.055               
    S.E. Colo. Water Conserv. 0.887               0.839               0.942 0.902 0.944               0.094 0.940               0.941               0.094               0.944               
    Security Water 4.292               4.283               5.000 5.007 5.679               5.703 5.695               5.654               5.955               5.980               
    Turkey Canyon Ranch 9.500               9.500               9.500 9.500 9.500               9.500 9.500               9.500               9.500               9.500               
    Upper Big Sandy 0.532               0.532               0.532 0.532 0.532               0.532 0.532               0.532               0.532               0.532               
    Upper Black Squirrel 1.062               1.005               1.056 1.029 1.065               1.065 1.063               1.057               1.082               1.082               
    Upper Arkansas Water Conserv. 0.438               0.398               0.445 0.435 0.479               0.481 0.478               0.471               0.478               0.478               

  Sanitation Districts
    Fountain Sanitation 6.082 5.707 6.340 6.030 6.637               6.328               6.248               6.040               6.101               5.755               
    Monument Sanitation - - - - - 7.734 - - - - 
    Security Sanitation 0.652 0.651 0.757 0.757 0.854               0.863 0.862               0.856               0.899               0.903               
    Stratmoor Hills - - - - - 0.583 0.591               0.587               0.578               0.578               

  Water and Sanitation Districts
    Academy 2.937 2.937 2.937 2.937 2.937               2.937               2.937               2.937               2.937               2.937               
    Donala (Area A) 21.296 21.296 21.296 21.296 21.296             21.296             21.296             21.296             21.296             21.296             
    Donala (Area B) 10.648 10.648 10.648 10.648 10.648             10.648             10.648             10.648             10.648             10.648             
    Garden Valley 18.608 18.570 16.061 19.710 12.766             11.083             10.296             9.695               9.055               9.920               
    Garden Valley #2 - - - - - 4.308 5.196               5.816               5.736               5.613               
    Westmoor - - 37.165 34.998 38.277             36.953 36.836             34.943             41.288             34.956             

(Continued)

92

DRAFT



Exhibit I-9
Pikes Peak Library District

Property Tax Rates - Direct and Overlapping
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Per $1,000 of assessed value)
(Unaudited)

Collection Year Collection Year
Taxing Authority 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
  School Districts 
    Air Force Academy #20 53.030 56.507 60.216 60.216 60.216             60.216             60.216             60.216             60.216             60.216             
    Big Sandy #100J 31.965 31.080 32.294 35.473 37.666             38.189             38.782             38.860             40.379             40.787             
    Calhan #RJ-1 37.494 27.342 27.172 27.083 27.013             27.068             27.003             27.091             27.193             27.096             
    Cheyenne Mountain #12 55.000 55.000 55.000 55.000 55.000             55.000             53.000             53.000             53.000             50.000             
    Colorado Springs #11 42.821 44.054 51.104 51.558 56.084             52.499             40.878             40.803             43.165             44.264             
    Edison #54 31.344 31.603 36.501 36.501 36.503             36.504             36.502             40.834             37.340             37.861             
    Ellicott #22 30.000 30.534 31.673 31.921 31.863             37.011             37.046             37.001             37.126             37.124             
    Falcon #49 45.159 44.111 43.021 43.189 43.044             43.648             44.417             44.635             45.796             45.617             
    Fremont/Florence #39 30.382 29.381 28.665 29.378 28.816             29.762             29.300             28.908             29.251             28.776             
    Fountain/Ft. Carson #8 26.704 25.704 24.741 24.845 24.776             24.731             24.748             25.195             24.775             24.726             
    Hanover #28 29.820 28.393 26.664 32.439 33.708             35.736             34.679             35.112             27.759             31.103             
    Harrison #2 40.799 41.024 48.394 47.227 48.333             33.138             36.278             36.414             36.997             41.344             
    Lewis-Palmer #38 40.500 39.455 41.000 41.430 44.068             44.651             46.404             45.501             49.677             50.091             
    Manitou Springs #14 51.732 50.887 53.144 58.817 61.900             52.000             52.000             52.000             47.555             47.649             
    Miami/Yoder #60 27.290 27.182 27.687 29.263 30.006             28.079             28.303             28.504             41.926             42.710             
    Peyton #23 30.435 30.469 30.469 30.469 30.469             30.469             30.469             30.419             30.919             30.985             
    Widefield #3 47.615 49.384 56.164 56.396 60.294             61.320             45.657             - - - 

  Miscellaneous Districts 8,293.691        7,409.238        5,857.851        5,084.281        4,648.287        3,576.017        3,075.868        3,391.527        3,083.266        2,975.466        

Data Source:  El Paso County Assessor's Office Abstracts of Assessment

93

DRAFT



Exhibit I-10
Pikes Peak Library District

Principal Property Taxpayers - Top 10
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

(Unaudited)

Percent of Percent of
Assessed Total Assessed Assessed Total Assessed

Principal Taxpayer Type of Business Valuation Valuation Valuation Valuation

CELLCO Partnership (dba Verizon) Investments 95,209,540$          0.98% 40,538,500$          0.67%

Comcast of CO/PA/WV LLC Investments 57,434,340            0.59% - 0%

Wal-Mart Real Estate Merchandise/Retail 34,069,610            0.35% 43,323,610            0.72%

Broadmoor Hotel, Inc. Hotel/Resort 30,691,210            0.31% 29,677,640            0.49%

Mountain View Electric Utilities 28,448,750            0.29% 25,403,500            0.42%

ENT Credit Union Banking 24,312,190            0.25% - 0%

T. Rowe Price Colorado Springs LLC Investments 20,435,970            0.21% - 0%

Palmer Center LTD Retail Mall 19,114,290            0.20% 13,688,640            0.23%

Union Pacific Railroad Co. Transportation 16,542,380            0.17% - 0%

Fountain Valley Power LLC Utilities 15,673,100            0.16% - 0%

Quest Corporation / Century Link Corp Technology 0% 61,930,980            1.03%

Black Hills Fountain Valley Power LLC Utilities 0% 13,941,300            0.23%

dpiX, LLC Technology 0% 30,045,560            0.50%

Colorado Interstate Gas Technology 0% 17,496,200            0.29%

Macerich Citadel LLP Retail Mall 0% 12,721,970            0.21%

    Total Top 10 Principal Taxpayers 341,931,380$        3.51% 288,767,900$        4.79%

    Total Assessed Valuation 9,750,080,380$     100.00% 6,028,899,300$     100.00%

Data Source:  El Paso County Assessor's Office

2023 2014

94

DRAFT



Exhibit I-11
Pikes Peak Library District

Property Tax Levies and Collections
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)

Penalties and
Interest Omitted Ratio of Ratio of 

Percent of Delinquent Delinquent Property Total Tax Outstanding Delinquent
Assessment Collection Current Current Tax Current Tax Tax Tax Tax Total Tax Collections to Delinquent Taxes to Total

Year Year Tax Levy Collections Collected Collections Collections Collections Collection Total Tax Levy Taxes Tax Levy

2013 2014 23,978,299        23,691,576        98.8% 72,755               56,389               2,887 23,823,607        99.4% 55,656               0.2%

2014 2015 24,290,297        24,092,442        99.2% 12,160               29,628               3,699 24,137,929        99.4% 54,997               0.2%

2015 2016 24,926,355        24,730,868        99.2% 10,720               29,902               9,505 24,780,995        99.4% 62,246               0.2%

2016 2017 25,942,634        25,709,842        99.1% 14,007               33,187               5,224 25,762,260        99.3% 71,429               0.3%

2017 2018 27,187,071        26,767,115        98.5% 17,132               35,319               5,451 26,825,017        98.7% 92,436               0.3%

2018 2019 28,454,290        28,160,917        99.0% 20,995               38,420               6,145 28,226,476        99.2% 94,397               0.3%

2019 2020 30,374,738        30,042,362        98.9% 11,964               24,708               7,195 30,086,229        99.1% 101,564             0.3%

2020 2021 31,307,840        31,139,776        99.5% 25,309               45,574               1,681 31,212,340        99.7% 39,935               0.1%

2021 2022 33,457,987        33,231,556        99.3% 6,378 46,767               3,964 33,288,665        99.5% 58,404               0.2%

2022 2023 33,827,682        33,681,066        99.6% 9,017 49,649               6,489 33,746,221        99.8% 106,863             0.3%

Data Sources:  District's financial records and El Paso County Treasurer's Office

95

DRAFT



Exhibit I-12
Pikes Peak Library District
Ratios of Outstanding Debt

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)

Funds Debt as a Assessed Ratio of Net
Available in Net Percentage of Value Used Bonded Debt

Year Ended LSA Gross Debt Service Net Debt Per Personal Personal for Current Year to Assessed
December 31, Population Debt Fund Debt Capita Income Income Collections Value

2013 598,549             -$  -$  -$  -$  26,626,735$          - 6,028,899,300$     - 

2014 607,457             - - - - 28,079,165            - 6,117,132,700 - 

2015 616,089             - - - - 29,262,206            - 6,516,617,460 - 

2016 623,805             - - - - 30,315,645            - 6,617,856,790 - 

2017 639,625             - - - - 31,149,325            - 7,080,595,440 - 

2018 650,185             - - - - 35,603,678            - 7,198,824,710 - 

2019 662,241             - - - - 36,605,524            - 8,246,468,310 - 

2020 669,874             - - - - 36,825,059            - 8,218,213,120 - 

2021 670,046             - - - - 39,438,712            - 9,692,241,300 - 

2022 677,964             - - - - 43,258,594            - 9,692,241,300 - 

2023 682,357             - - - - 45,230,988            - 9,750,080,380 - 

Data Source(s):  Colorado Department of Labor, U.S. Bureau of Economic Analysis, Colorado Department of Education, Colorado

96

DRAFT



Exhibit I-13

Pikes Peak Library District
Debt Limitation Information

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Assessed valuation 9,750,080,380$     9,692,241,300$     8,218,213,120$     8,246,468,310$     7,198,824,710$     7,080,595,440$     6,617,856,790$     6,516,617,460$     6,117,132,700$     6,028,899,300$     

Debt limitation - 1.5% of total assessed value 146,251,206$        145,383,620$        123,273,197$        123,697,025$        107,982,371$        106,208,932$        99,267,852$          97,749,262$          91,756,991$          90,433,490$          

Total debt (excluding compensated absences) - - - - - - - - - - 

Less:  Certificates of Participation (1) - - - - - - - - - - 

            Capital leases (1) - - - - - - - - - - 

Total debt applicable to limitation - - - - - - - - - - 

Legal debt margin 146,251,206$        145,383,620$        123,273,197$        123,697,025$        107,982,371$        106,208,932$        99,267,852$          97,749,262$          91,756,991$          90,433,490$          

Notes:

(1) Certificates of Participation and capital leases are not included as debt for
purposes of calculating legal debt margin (Colorado Revised Statue 22-42-104).

Data Source:  District's financial records and El Paso County Assessor's Office

97

DRAFT



Exhibit I-14

Pikes Peak Library District
Debt Service Information

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)

Ratio of Debt
Service to

Noncapital Noncapital
Governmental Governmental

Fiscal Principal Interest Fund Fund
Year Payments Payments Total Expenditures Expenditures

2014 -$  -$  -$  24,979,899$      0.00%

2015 - - - 25,816,533        - 

2016 - - - 26,243,577        - 

2017 - - - 27,919,221        - 

2018 - - - 28,771,467        - 

2019 - - - 31,170,925        - 

2020 - - - 31,376,765        - 

2021 - - - 31,971,653        - 

2022 - - - 29,335,819        1.94%

2023 - - - 31,980,478        2.03%

Debt Service Expenditures

98

DRAFT



THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

99

DRAFT



Exhibit I-15
Pikes Peak Library District

Demographic and Economic Information
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)

Total Per Capita          Households Public
Fiscal LSA Personal Personal Unemploy. Average Median School
Year Population Income* Income* Rate* Total Size Age Enrollment*

2014 607,457     28,079,165            42,360             5.1% 255,364     2.41           34.3           113,837            

2015 616,089     29,262,206            43,385             4.6% 259,082     2.41           34.0           117,928            

2016 623,805     30,315,645            44,409             3.2% 263,383     2.43           34.4           118,754            

2017 639,625     31,149,325            46,511             3.4% 267,300     2.43           34.4           119,442            

2018 650,185     35,603,678            48,467             4.5% 271,234     2.44           34.4           121,192            

2019 662,241     36,605,524            51,117             2.8% 270,074     2.48           33.7           122,783            

2020 669,874     36,825,059            54,151             7.2% 273,613     2.60           33.7           118,023            

2021 670,046     39,438,712            57,765             4.1% 295,342     2.63           34.6           119,609            

2022 677,964     43,258,594            61,076             3.0% 287,459     3.00           35.2           119,808            

2023 682,357     45,230,988            42,212             3.9% 276,371     2.57           34.7           120,806            

Notes:
*Data revised in 2023 with most recent information from the El Paso County Annual Comprehensive Financial Report and updated sources

Data sources: 
2023 El Paso County ACFR, El Paso County 2023 Adopted Budget, Library Research Service Database, El Paso County Clerk and Recorder, 
Colorado Department of Education, Colorado Division of Local Government, Colorado Division of Labor and Employment,  
US Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis, Occupational Employment and Wage Statistics Program

100

DRAFT



Exhibit I-16
Pikes Peak Library District

Principal Employers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

(Unaudited)

Percent Percent
of Total of Total

Employer Employees Employment Employees Employment

Fort Carson 33,500           13.14% 31,800           11.06%

Peterson, Schriever, and Cheyenne 25,400           9.96% 19,564           6.80%

United States Air Force Academy 7,700             3.02% 7,583             2.64%

UC Health Memorial Health System 7,050             2.77% 3,146             1.09%

Colorado Springs School District #11 5,150             2.02% 3,978             1.38%

University of Colorado, Colorado Springs 3,700             1.45% 1,300             0.45%

Amazon 3,000             1.18% - 0.00%

Academy School District #20 3,050             1.20% 3,226             1.12%

City of Colorado Springs 3,050             1.20% 2,300             0.80%

El Paso County Government 2,900             0.00% 2,650             0.92%

Penrose St. Francis Health Services / Centura 2,450             0.96% 2,833             0.98%

    Total 96,950           36.89% 78,380           27.25%

Total Employment - El Paso County, Colorado 254,917         287,631         

Data source: U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics 

Fiscal Year 2023 Fiscal Year 2014

101

DRAFT



THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

102

DRAFT



Exhibit I-17

Pikes Peak Library District
District Employees By Function

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)

Full-time Equivalent Employees
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Public Services
Administration - Public Services 1.00           1.00           1.00           1.00           2.00           2.00           2.00           1.00           1.00           3.00           
        Adult Education 11.00         7.00           7.00           8.00           7.00           6.50           6.50           3.85           4.20           3.45           
        Collection Management 23.50         25.00         23.52         23.52         23.52         19.25         18.40         19.00         19.65         19.30         
        Regional History and Genealogy 10.00         10.50         10.50         11.00         11.00         9.50           9.50           9.50           9.25           9.25           
      Administration - Programming 2.00           - - - - - - - - - 
        Adult Services 5.00           9.00           9.00           11.00         11.00         - - - - - 
               East Library - - - - - 16.32 17.32         16.80         16.80         15.80         
               Penrose Library - - - - - 21.22 21.22         21.22         20.24         20.24         
               Library 21c - - - - - 8.25 8.25           8.25           8.25           8.25           
               Library 21c - Computer Commons - - - - - 9.50 9.50           9.50           9.50           9.00           
        Family and Children Services 9.50           9.50           9.00           9.00           9.00           - - - - - 
               East Library - - - - - 8.27 8.27           8.27           6.82           6.82           
               Penrose Library - - - - - 6.12 6.12           6.12           6.12           6.12           
               Library 21c - - - - - 7.88 8.88           7.88           7.88           6.88           
        Young Adult Services 5.00           6.00           6.00           6.00           6.00           - - - - - 
      Community Libraries
              Administration - West Region - 4.00 3.50           3.50           3.00           5.00           - - - - 
              Administration - Southeast Region - 5.00 4.00           4.00           4.00           3.00           - - - - 
              Administration - North Region - 3.00 3.00           3.00           3.00           3.00           - - - - 
          Administration - Branches 11.00         - - - - - - - - - 
               Briargate Library - - - - - - - - - - 
               Calhan Library 1.70           1.70 1.70           1.70           1.70           -            - - - - 
               Cheyenne Mountain Library 10.00         9.98 10.08         10.58         10.58         10.55         10.55         10.93         10.93         10.93         
               Fountain Library 7.50           8.25 7.13           7.63           7.63           6.63           6.63           7.88           7.88           7.75           
               East Library 34.70         36.75 42.15         18.93         16.93         - - - - - 
               High Prairie Library 7.80           7.75 7.75           7.75           8.25           8.25           8.25           8.25           8.25           8.25           
               Ruth Holley Library 9.50           10.00 9.63           9.63           9.63           10.50         10.50         12.13         12.13         12.50         

103

DRAFT



Exhibit I-17 (continued)
Full-time Equivalent Employees

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Public Services (cont.)

              Library 21c 28.60         28.78         31.57         21.19         18.69         - - - - - 
              Manitou Springs Library 6.80           5.80           4.20           4.20           4.35           4.25           4.25           4.25           4.25           4.00           
              Monument Library 12.00         12.05         9.96           9.96           9.96           10.49         10.49         10.49         10.55         10.55         
              Old Colorado City Library 8.30           8.90           8.90           8.90           8.90           8.90           8.90           8.90           8.63           8.88           
              Palmer Lake Library - - 1.53           2.03           2.03           2.03           2.03           2.03           1.79           1.79           
              Penrose Library 28.10         29.33         30.54         17.64         17.64         - - - - - 
              Rockrimmon Library 10.70         9.80           9.85           9.85           9.45           10.08         10.08         10.65         10.65         10.65         
              Sand Creek Library 9.90           12.03         12.55         12.55         12.55         16.20         16.20         15.95         15.73         14.23         
              Ute Pass Library - 0.75 1.35           1.35           1.35           1.28           1.28           1.28           1.28           1.80           

Circulation
East Library - - - 15.35         16.35         18.84         18.84         20.62         20.62         20.22         
Penrose Library - - - 11.07         11.02         11.84         11.84         11.74         11.74         11.62         
Library 21c - - - 6.50           6.50           6.50           6.50           6.50           6.50           6.50           

Shelving
East Library - - - 9.57           10.57         12.07         12.07         13.64         13.70         13.70         
Penrose Library - - - 4.88           4.88           6.12           6.12           7.99           7.99           7.99           
Library 21c - - - 5.75           5.25           5.25           5.25           5.18           5.55           5.18           

            The Hall at PPLD 1.00           1.00           1.00           1.00           1.00           - - - - - 
            Mobile Library Services 9.00           9.00           9.15           9.15           9.65           9.15           9.15           8.95           8.70           8.70           

Diversity, Equity & Inclusion (DEI) - 3.00 3.00           - - - - - - - 
        Total Public Services 263.60       274.85       292.18       289.38       284.74       274.89       278.75       276.58       273.35       249.42       

Administrative Services
Administration 1.00           - - - - - - - - 1.00           
Facilities
    East Library 3.00           3.00           3.00           3.00           3.00           3.00           3.00           3.00           3.00           3.00           
    Penrose Library 5.00           5.00           5.00           5.00           5.00           5.00           6.00           6.00           6.75           6.75           
    Library 21c 6.00           6.00           6.00           6.00           5.00           3.00           3.00           3.00           2.00           2.00           
Human Resources 6.80           6.75           6.25           6.25           6.25           5.15           5.15           5.15           5.15           5.15           
Information Technology Office
    Information Technology 11.50         14.00         16.60         16.60         16.10         13.10         14.10         14.10         14.10         14.00         
    Creative Services 6.00           7.00           5.00           5.00           5.00           - - - - - 
        Total Administrative Services 39.30         20.75         20.25         19.25         16.15         17.15         17.15         16.90         17.90         16.15         

Other Administrative Operations
Chief Librarian and Chief Executive Officer Office 3.00           2.00           2.00           2.00           2.00           2.00           2.00           2.00           2.00           2.00           
Communications Office 13.70         12.35         11.75         11.75         14.25         12.25         12.25         12.25         12.25         11.75         
Development Office 2.00           2.00           3.00           3.00           3.00           2.50           2.50           2.50           2.50           2.50           
Finance Office 10.00         8.00           7.75           7.75           7.75           7.75           6.75           6.75           6.75           5.75           
Security 28.50         23.50         20.52         20.52         20.52         15.00         15.00         14.50         13.00         11.00         
        Total Other Administration Operations 57.20         47.85         45.02         47.52         39.50         38.50         38.00         36.50         33.00         29.40         

        Total Full Time Equivalents 360.10       357.45       374.05       372.25       353.49       344.64       348.00       344.08       338.25       307.97       

Data Source:  District's Human Resources Office

104

DRAFT



Exhibit I-18
Pikes Peak Library District

Library Materials Purchased and Circulated
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)

Number of Acquisition Net Book Number
Fiscal Number Audio Visual Cost of Cost of New Value of of Items in Turnover
Year of Volumes and eMaterials Total Items Collections Acquisitions Collections Circulation Rate

2014 918,701 316,647 1,235,348              34,256,218            2,663,493              14,599,576            1,189,875              7.09 
2015 718,638 279,776 998,414 28,479,378            2,731,728              14,211,399            951,064 8.43 
2016 689,980 353,667 1,043,647              27,162,050            2,313,177              13,806,198            995,151 7.73 
2017 700,758 346,176 1,046,934              26,923,183            2,140,189              13,803,275            996,826 7.43 
2018 684,908 362,788 1,047,696              25,614,835            1,812,545              13,245,127            996,698 7.35 
2019 658,014 453,315 1,111,329              24,234,938            1,670,175              12,739,934            1,059,914              7.81 
2020 630,270 461,230 1,091,500              23,209,685            1,135,208              12,152,697            1,041,060              5.89 
2021 596,976 492,694 1,089,670              22,555,452            1,630,811              12,346,538            1,037,212              5.50 
2022 585,430 511,405 1,096,835              21,324,095            1,224,613              11,614,737            1,043,673              5.60 
2023 564,407 497,649 1,062,056              20,775,725            1,829,897              11,998,795            1,008,789              5.00 

Data Source:  District's Collection Management Department

105

DRAFT



Exhibit I-19

Community Libraries
Old

Fiscal Penrose Library Cheyenne High Manitou Colorado
Year East Library Library 21c Briargate Calhan Mountain Fountain Prairie Springs Monument City

2014 1,983,752    1,049,901    464,794       283,986       - 503,092 249,356       341,333       48,404         502,640       294,604       

2015 1,621,753    900,407       894,810       - - 474,082 211,731       326,736       47,067         451,594       284,910       

2016 1,533,028    776,925       888,192       - - 437,569 199,196       307,167       46,452         415,012       246,141       

2017 1,303,118    714,133       986,551       - - 386,538 191,400       289,874       47,318         390,805       214,947       

2018 1,325,067    626,308       904,180       - - 374,674 187,269       284,624       40,953         383,845       193,591       

2019 1,577,714    577,467       1,053,083    - 3,211 421,297 197,568       326,298       52,330         425,456       220,319       

2020 842,299       280,922       565,421       - 13,993 234,309 111,849       182,899       19,148         248,858       120,102       

2021 996,323       301,424       681,518       - 18,911 279,981 128,429       236,860       20,883         306,924       89,301         

2022 1,081,138    279,901       753,940       - 20,547 269,920 126,729       274,513       26,764         295,388       108,515       

2023 1,060,418    239,606       756,254       - 16,044 254,078 128,929       276,597       25,402         283,882       104,609       

Community Libraries
Mobile Library Inter-

Fiscal Palmer Ruth Sand Ute Library Express  Cyber- Nook  Other Library
Year Lake Rockrimmon Holley Creek Pass Services Dispenser Shelf eReaders Categories Loan Total

2014 58,095         474,322       518,641       514,578       39,549         188,500       48,784         792,432       492              57,224         25,622         5,721,862   

2015 50,653         431,335       457,623       463,715       33,806         179,297       28,993         1,068,783    70 60,608         25,835         5,213,090   

2016 43,152         385,294       395,346       417,248       31,724         166,186       20,958         1,295,052    325              55,209         28,098         4,849,682   

2017 44,718         368,714       367,831       370,525       31,623         157,979       2,363           1,459,032    467              54,764         26,154         4,524,684   

2018 40,011         360,463       338,586       332,100       27,973         148,384       - 1,681,835 220              52,932         27,253         4,320,511   

2019 47,399         394,445       355,739       361,589       26,234         148,737       - 1,976,428 67 84,496         24,796         4,854,743   

2020 14,068         243,994       177,597       161,651       18,434         92,155         - 2,430,575 58 90,448         17,279         2,619,800   

2021 7 288,091       177,529       155,569       24,510         102,001       - 2,504,503 18 55,259         12,694         3,060,554   

2022 12,837         289,905       180,870       154,038       22,286         103,956       - 2,627,237 26 3,687           15,041         6,647,238   

2023 12,642         253,882       155,193       135,396       17,748         97,626         - 3,008,405 15 6,439           15,154         6,848,319   

Data Source:  District's Collection Management Department

Pikes Peak Library District
Circulation By Location

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)

106

DRAFT



Exhibit I-20
Pikes Peak Library District

Service Location Information
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)

Owned (O) Open Hrs/Week      Square Footage as of Fiscal Year-end
Library Address Leased (L) FY 2023 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Briargate Library 9475 Briar Village Pt.
Colorado Springs, CO 80920 L -             -              -              -              -              -             -             -             - 8,627 

Calhan Library 600 Bank Street
Calhan, CO  80803 O 32 2,400     2,400      2,400      2,400      2,400      -             -             -             -             -             

Cheyenne Mountain 1785 S. 8th Street, Suite 100
  Library Colorado Springs, CO 80906 L 44 9,303     8,900      8,900      8,900      8,900      8,900     8,900     8,900     8,900     8,900     

East Library 5550 N. Union
Colorado Springs, CO 80918 O 60 70,153   70,153    70,153    70,153    70,153    70,153   70,153   70,153   70,153   70,153   

Fountain Library 230 S. Main Street
Fountain, CO 80817 O 54 9,582     9,582      9,582      9,582      9,582      9,582     9,582     9,582     9,582     9,582     

High Prairie Library 7035 Old Meridian Rd.
Falcon, CO 80831 O 55 6,008     6,008      6,008      6,008      6,008      6,008     6,008     6,008     6,008     6,008     

Library 21C 1175 Chapel Hills Drive
Colorado Springs, CO 80920 O 60 115,058 115,058  115,058  115,058  115,058  115,058 115,058 115,058 115,058 115,058 

Manitou Springs 701 Manitou Avenue
  Library Manitou Springs, CO 80829 L 38 2,391     2,391      2,391      2,391      2,391      2,391     2,391     2,391     2,391     2,391     

Monument Hill 1706 Lake Woodmoor Drive
  Library Monument, CO 80132 L 46 7,536     7,536      7,536      7,536      7,536      7,536     7,536     7,536     7,536     7,536     

Old Colorado City 2418 W. Pikes Peak
  Library Colorado Springs, CO 80904 O 44 4,909     4,909      4,909      4,909      4,909      4,909     4,909     4,909     4,909     4,909     

Palmer Lake Library 66 Lower Glenway
Palmer Lake, CO 80133 L 21 1,574     1,574      1,574      1,574      1,574      1,574     1,574     1,574     1,574     1,574     

Penrose Library 20 N. Cascade
Colorado Springs, CO 80903 O 54 78,831   78,831    78,831    78,831    78,831    78,831   78,831   78,831   78,831   78,831   

Rockrimmon Library 832 Village Center Drive
Colorado Springs, CO 80919 L 56 8,668     8,668      8,668      8,668      8,668      8,668     8,668     8,668     8,668     8,668     

Ruth Holley Library 685 N. Murray
Colorado Springs, CO 80915 L 47 10,469   10,469    10,469    10,469    10,469    10,469   10,469   10,469   10,469   10,469   

Sand Creek Library 1821 S. Academy
Colorado Springs, CO 80916 O 49 14,060   14,060    14,060    14,060    14,060    14,060   14,060   14,060   14,060   14,060   

Ute Pass Library 8010 Severy
Cascade, CO 80809 L 28 2,123     2,123      2,123      2,123      2,123      2,123     2,123     2,123     2,123     2,123     

Mobile Library Services -
  three vehicles O 51 455        455         455         455         455         455        455        455        455        455        

The Hall at PPLD, formerly 25 W. Kiowa
  Knights of Columbus Hall Colorado Springs, CO 80903 O 44 11,988   11,988    11,988    11,988    11,988    11,988   11,988   11,988   11,988   11,988   

827 355,508 355,105  355,105  355,105  355,105  352,705 352,705 352,705 352,705 361,332 

Data Source:  District's Facilities Office

107

DRAFT



THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

108

DRAFT



Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and 
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in 
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

Independent Auditor’s Report 

Board of Trustees 
Pikes Peak Library District 
Colorado Springs, Colorado 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of Pikes Peak Library District (the District), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2023, 
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial 
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated ____________. The financial statements of the Pikes 
Peak Library District Foundation, Inc. (the Foundation), a discretely presented component unit of the 
District, were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, and accordingly, this report 
does not include reporting on internal control over financial reporting or instances of reportable 
noncompliance associated with the Foundation. 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting103F 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the District’s 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses 
or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 

109

DRAFT 06/21/2024 

DRAFT



Board of Trustees 
Pikes Peak Library District 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed 
no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Colorado Springs, Colorado 
______________ 

110

DRAFT 06/21/2024 

DRAFT


	July 17, 2024 Board Packet.pdf
	Penrose Library
	Monthly Financial Report - PPLD (as a whole) As of June 30, 2024
	Total Taxes

	Monthly Financial Report - GENERAL FUND As of June 30, 2024
	Total Public Services Expenditures
	Total Administration Expenditures

	Monthly Financial Report - GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURE DETAIL As of June 30, 2024
	Support Services
	Security Finance Office
	ATTRITION SAVINGS UNDESIGNATED
	Total Revenue
	Total Expenditures

	Monthly Financial Report - SELF-INSURANCE FUND (SIF) As of June 30, 2024
	Total Revenue
	Total Expenditures
	Ending Fund Balance (Projected)
	Public Services Report June 2024
	Access
	Accountability
	Community Connections
	Staff
	Access
	Accountability
	Communications
	Community Connections
	Physical and Virtual Spaces
	Staff
	Access
	Accountability
	Community Connections
	Physical and Virtual Spaces
	Staff
	Access
	Community Connections
	Staff
	Access
	Accountability
	Community Connections
	Physical and Virtual Spaces
	Facilities Department Report July 17, 2024
	Human Resources Report July 2024
	Communications
	Staff
	Statistics
	Information Technology June 2024 Monthly Report
	Accountability
	Physical and Virtual Spaces
	Staff
	Monument Library
	Call to Order
	Pledge of Allegiance
	Reports
	Pikes Peak Library District Foundation Report
	Financial Report
	Public Services Report
	Support Services Reports: Communications Report, Facilities Report, Human Resources Report, Information Technology Report, Safety, Community Resources & Security Report
	Chief Librarian’s Report
	Board Reports Governance Committee
	Liaison comments
	Trustee comments
	Presentations
	Facilities Master Plan Report
	Penrose Library Mural
	Business Items
	Executive Session
	Adjournment


	2023 PPLD ACFR (DRAFT 7.16.24)
	0_PPLD 2022 COA Certificate
	0_Title Page & Elected Officials
	1a_Basic Financial Statements_Statement of Net Position
	1a_PPLD Foundation, Inc. - Statements of Financial Position
	1b_Basic Financial Statements_Statement of Activities
	1b_PPLD Foundation, Inc. - Statements of Activities (2yrs)
	2a_Basic Financial Statements_Governmental Balance Sheet
	2a_Basic Financial Statements_Governmental Balance Sheet-RECON
	2a_Basic Financial Statements_Governmental Stmt of Rev,Exp,&Chgs in FB (7.1.24)
	2a_Basic Financial Statements_Governmental Stmt of Rev,Exp,&Chgs in FB (7.1.24)-RECON
	2b2_Basic Financial Statements_Proprietary Stmt of Rev, Exp, & Chgs in Net Position
	2b3_Basic Financial Statements_Proprietary Stmt of Cash Flows
	2c1_Basic Financial Statements_Custodial_Stmt of Fiduciary Net Position
	2c2_Basic Financial Statements_Custodial Stmt of Rev, Exp, & Chgs in Fiduciary Net Position
	2d_Template_Notes to FS (all) 7.16.24
	3a_RSI_Schedule of District's Proportionate Share of NPL
	3b_RSI_Schedule of District's Contributions
	3c_RSI_Governmental Stmt of Rev,Exp, & Changes in FB - Budget & Actual_Gen Fund
	3d_Notes to Required Supplementary Information
	5a_Supplementary Info_Comb & Indiv Fund FS_Governmental Balance Sheet_Non-Major Funds
	5b_Supplementary Info_Comb & Indiv Fund FS_Governmental Stmt of Rev,Exp,&Changes in FB_Non-Major Funds
	5c_Supplementary Info_Comparative Fund FS_CPF_Balance Sheet ALLxlsx
	5d_Supplementary Info_Comparative Fund FS_CPF_Stmt of Rev,Exp,&Changes ALLxlsx
	7_Statistical Section_Exhibit I-1
	7_Statistical Section_Exhibit I-2
	7_Statistical Section_Exhibit I-3
	7_Statistical Section_Exhibit I-4
	7_Statistical Section_Exhibit I-5
	7_Statistical Section_Exhibit I-6
	7_Statistical Section_Exhibit I-7
	7_Statistical Section_Exhibit I-8
	7_Statistical Section_Exhibit I-9
	7_Statistical Section_Exhibit I-10
	7_Statistical Section_Exhibit I-11
	7_Statistical Section_Exhibit I-12
	7_Statistical Section_Exhibit I-13
	7_Statistical Section_Exhibit I-14
	7_Statistical Section_Exhibit I-15
	7_Statistical Section_Exhibit I-16
	7_Statistical Section_Exhibit I-17
	7_Statistical Section_Exhibit I-18
	7_Statistical Section_Exhibit I-19
	7_Statistical Section_Exhibit I-20




